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Our Company
Agriauto Industries Limited is a public limited company, 
incorporated in 1981 and listed on the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange. 

The company began its journey by producing essential 
components for local vehicle assemblers, primarily shocks 
and parts for tractor assemblies. Over the decades, it has 
expanded its capabilities through strategic partnerships, 
technical collaborations and continuous investment in 
technology and people.

Today, Agriauto is recognized as one of the leading private 
sector manufacturers of automotive components in Pakistan 
and was the first in the country to obtain TS-16949 
Certification. 

Technical collaborations with leading international 
companies have further strengthened its versatility. Its 
product portfolio serves both Original Equipment 
Manufacturers (OEMs) and the aftermarket.

Powered by
PARTS
Driven by
TEAM



Table of Contents
Our Vision
Company Information
Board of Directors 
Our Customers and Partners
Organization Chart 
Our Products 
Awards and Highlights
Key Performance Indicators (Consolidated)
Six years at a glance (Consolidated)
Financial Highlights (Consolidated)
Vertical Analysis (Consolidated)
Horizontal Analysis(Consolidated)
Notice of the Annual General Meeting
Chairman’s Review 
Chairman’s Review in Urdu
Directors’ Report
Directors’ Report in Urdu
Statement of Compliance with Listed 
   Companies (Code of Corporate 
   Governance) Regulations, 2019 
Independent Auditor’s Review Report
Independent Auditor’s Report            
 (Unconsolidated) 
Financial Statements (Unconsolidated) 
Independent Auditor’s Report  
 (Consolidated) 
Financial Statements (Consolidated)
Pattern of Shareholding
Sustainability & CSR
Proxy Form

06
08
10
12
13
16
20
23
24
25
26
28
30
37
39
41
61

66
69

70
75

122
127
176
180



Our Vision 
A world class manufacturer and supplier of high entry 
barrier automotive components providing competitive 
returns to all stakeholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Yutaka Arae  Chairman 
Fahim Kapadia  Chief Executive
Hamza Habib  Non Executive Director
Salman Burney  Non Executive Director
Sohail P. Ahmed  Non Executive Director
Ayesha T. Haq  Independent Director
Aqueel E. Merchant  Independent Director
  
BOARD AUDIT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Aqueel E. Merchant  Chairman 
Sohail P. Ahmed  Member 
Ayesha T. Haq  Member 
   
HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE 

Aqueel E. Merchant  Chairman 
Salman Burney  Member 
Sohail P. Ahmed  Member 
Yutaka Arae  Member 
Fahim Kapadia  Member 
   
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Fahad Tariq Rafi   
   
COMPANY SECRETARY

Shaharyar Ashraf Khan   
   
AUDITORS

A.F. Ferguson and Co., 
Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Aga Faquir Mohammad & Co.
712, 7th Floor, Uni Shopping Centre, Abdullah 
Haroon Road, Karachi, Sindh, Pakistan.
Tel: 35213375, 35214801

SHARE REGISTRAR   

FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) 
Limited 8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery, 
Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.
Tel: 34380101-5, 34384621-3   

REGISTERED OFFICE

5th Floor, House of Habib   
3 JCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,   
Karachi.   
Website: www.agriauto.com.pk
Email: info@agriauto.com.pk

BANKERS

Bank Al-Habib Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
The Bank of Punjab   
United Bank Limited

FACTORY

Agriauto Industries Limited
Mouza Baroot, Hub Chowki, 
Distt. Lasbella, Balochistan.

Agriauto Stamping Company (Pvt.) Ltd
DSU-12B, Down Stream Industrial Estate
Pakistan Steel, Bin Qasim, Karachi.
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Board Of
Directors

With an illustrious career spanning decades, Mr. Yutaka Arae has left an 
indelible mark on the automotive sector through his transformative 
leadership and strategic insights. His journey began at Toyota Tsusho 
Corporation, Japan, where he played a pivotal role in propelling the 
company to new heights of success. His visionary approach continued at 
Indus Motor Co., Ltd., Pakistan, where he led the organization to become a 
market leader known for innovation and operational excellence. As a 
director at Agriauto Industries Ltd., Mr. Arae's influence further optimized 
operations, cementing his reputation as a driving force in the industry. His 
extensive experience and proven track record have solidified his position 
as a revered figure in the global automotive landscape, inspiring 
generations to come.

Yutaka Arae Chairman 
Salman Burney joined the Board in August 2017 as a Non-Executive Director. He 
began his professional career with ICl Pakistan in Sales and Marketing, holding 
various roles in Pakistan and at ICI plc, London and as General Manager of ICl's  
Agrochemicals & Seeds Business. He later joined Smithkline Beecham in 1992 
and was appointed MD, in 1997 with additional responsibility for Iran and the 
Caspian Region and was later responsible for GlaxoSmithKlines's 
Pharmaceutical business in Pakistan, Iran and Afghanistan in the capacity of 
VP/Area GM. He has a degree in Economics from Trinity College, University of 
Cambridge, UK and has been the President of Pakistan's foreign investors 
Chamber (OICCI) and Chairperson of the MNC Pharma Association, has led 
the industry interface with the government on various issues. He has also been 
a member of the Privatisation Commission, and a member of the Boards of 
P.I.D.C. and N.T.D.C.

Salman Burney Non Executive Director

Hamza Habib was appointed as a Director of Agriauto Industries Limited in 
October 2018. He has over 14 years of banking experience and is currently 
the Head of Corporate Banking at Habib Bank AG Zurich (HBZ) in Dubai, 
UAE. He has held various positions within the HBZ Group, including 
Alternate Chief Executive at Habib Bank Zurich (Hong Kong) Ltd, prior to 
which he was an Area Head with HBZ in the UAE. He also worked with 
Standard Chartered Bank in Geneva and London. He graduated from 
Babson College in Wellesley, Massachusetts (USA), with a Bachelor of 
Science in Business Management. He is also a Certified Director from the 
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.

Hamza Habib Non Executive Director

Ayesha T. Haq is a Barrister-at-Law and, for 13 years, was a media 
personality. She has practiced law in the UK, Pakistan, the Philippines and 
the USA and has worked on several international projects. A member of 
the Vision 2020 think tank of the Government of Pakistan, she has worked 
on policy and governance matters. She hosted 24Seven on Business Plus, 
where she has interviewed presidents, prime ministers, political leaders 
and policymakers. She wrote opinion pieces for several publications and 
hosted a radio show. She has been the CEO of Fashion Pakistan and 
organized Pakistan’s first ever fashion week in 2009. At present, she heads 
Pharma Bureau, the association of the research-based multinational 
pharmaceutical companies operating in Pakistan.

Ayesha T. Haq Independent Director

Aqueel E. Merchant is a professional with a wealth of experience spanning 
more than 30 years in professional services, mainly consulting, covering 
Banking and Financial Services, FMCGs, Manufacturing, Development, and 
Government and Public sector clients in Pakistan, Afghanistan, UK and 
Middle East. Large projects carried out by him cover Business, IT and HR 
transformations, Operational Improvements, Governance, Monitoring and 
Evaluation, Regulatory Compliance, Contract Management and Risk 
Management. Due to his being the only Senior Partner of EY Ford Rhodes 
and the founder and Country Leader of the Consulting Business, he is well 
placed to engage at a strategic level with C-suites and Boards to make a 
strong contribution to any organization in a leadership capacity.

Aqueel E. Merchant Independent Director

Fahim Kapadia is the CEO of the Company since January 2010. He has 
over 39 years of experience in the field of Finance, General Management 
and Business Development in Pakistan and abroad. He has been 
associated with the House of Habib for the last 26 years having served as 
Chief Financial Officer of Thal Limited and prior to this as General Manager 
Finance and Deputy Managing Director of Agriauto Industries Limited. He 
has been serving on the Board of Agriauto Industries Limited since 2002 
and is a member of the Board of Agriauto Stamping Company (Private) 
Limited and AuVitronics Limited.

Fahim Kapadia Chief Executive

Sohail P. Ahmed has been the Chief Executive of Naya Daur Motors and Mack Trucks, 
under Ministry of Production and of Allwin Engineering, Agriauto Industries Ltd and Thal 
Limited in the private sector. He is the Chairman of Pakistan Auto Sector Skill 
Development Company and Vocational Training Centre for Women, Korangi. He is a 
Director on many Boards in public & private sectors having served on Boards of PIDC, 
Pakistan Steel etc. He has been a member of the Senate of Dawood College of 
Engineering & Technology and Syndicate of NED University Karachi. He is the Founding 
Chairman of “Pakistan Association of Automotive Parts & Accessories Manufacturers” 
(PAAPAM). The Government of Japan has conferred the prestigious decoration, The 
Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon to Sohail P. Ahmed, in recognition 
of his dedicated contributions for strengthening economic relations and mutual 
understanding between Japan and Pakistan.

Sohail P. Ahmed Non Executive Director
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Agriauto Stamping (Private) Limited (ASC) is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Agriauto Industries Limited and is 
involved in stamping of sheet metal parts, jigs and 
accessories, primarily for the automotive sectors.

ASC is actively engaged in securing new product 
developments to fortify sustainability and enhance 
profitability in the future. ASC continued to concentrate 
and excel in its core capability of stamping of high tensile 
sheet metal parts and operations are growing with an 
increase in number of parts being produced. 

During the year, ASC has achieved a significant milestone 
by successfully delivering locally developed dies for Toyota 
South Africa. This strategic move underscores ASC's 
steadfast commitment to diversification and growth. 
Furthermore, in line with our commitment to keep ASC at 
the forefront of technical advancement, ASC also installed 
a Robotic welding facility as an R&D project and 
resultantly, received good results. Going forward, 
management is working on various initiatives related to 
utilizing Artificial Intelligence (AI), emphasizing innovation 
and enhancing productivity.

Agriauto Stamping
Company (Private) Limited (ASC)
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Our Products

Mcpherson
Assemblies

Power Window
Regulators

Catalytic
Converters

Steering
Box - Tractors
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Instrument Panels 
& Door Impact 

Beams
Shock Absorber 
Components -

Motorcycles

Door Hinges

Front Suspension -
 Motorcycles

Camshaft -
Tractors

Suspension
Strut Assemblies

Shock
Absorbers
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Shaping the
Future with
Precision

• Member Front Panel
• Instrument Panel Sub Assembly
• Cowl Assembly
• Member Sub Assembly
• Member Floor Side
• Panel Sub Assembly Body Lower
• Reinforcement Centre Body Sub Assembly
• Front Pillar Sub Assembly
• Cowl Side Panel
• Front Body Pillar
• Side Rail Roof
• Rocker Sub Assembly
• Recliner Panel Sub Assembly
• Back Seat Panel Sub Assembly
• Fuel Tank Panel

Sheet Metal Parts
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Awards & Highlights

Export Growth of Autoparts 
Award | PAAPAM

Best Safety Recognition Award | 
Honda Atlas Vendor Conference 

18th OSH Award | Employers’ 
Federation of Pakistan

Timely Development Award |
Indus Motor Company

Women Empowerment & 
Gender Equality Award| 

Employers’ Federation of 
Pakistan
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Financial 
Highlights

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Consolidated

Gross Turnover
2023-24
2024-25

 10.08
14.00

39%

Profit / (Loss)
Before Tax

2023-24
2024-25

(314.66)
353.92

212%

Rupees in billion

EBITDA
2023-24
2024-25

 496.19
 1,172.48

136%
Rupees in million

Capital Expenditures
2023-24
2024-25

 342
 233

-32%
Rupees in million

Rupees in million

Profit / (Loss) 
After Tax

2023-24
2024-25

 (347.50)
238.32

169%
Rupees in million

EPS / (LPS)
2023-24
2024-25

 (9.65)
 6.62

169%

Equity
2023-24
2024-25

5.81
6.05

4%

In PKR

Return on Fixed 
Assets

2023-24
2024-25

(3.40%)
14.74%

534%
In %

Rupees in billion

Return on Capital 
Employed

2023-24
2024-25

(1.7%)
8.8%

622%
In %
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE 
Consolidated

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Consolidated

Operating Results      
      
Net Sales (Rs. in '000')  11,863,435   8,534,184   8,314,517   15,397,684   10,485,027   5,244,651 
      
Gross Profit (Rs. in '000')  1,228,099   388,520   542,184   1,930,993   1,685,479   251,466 
      
Profit / (Loss) Before Levies and 
   Income Tax (Rs. in '000')  353,918   (314,660)  (126,308)  1,104,635   1,203,265   (24,969)
      
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (Rs. in '000')  238,324   (347,502)  (173,280)  736,821   829,664   (108,438)
      
Earning / (Loss) per share (Rs.)  6.62   (9.65)  (4.81)  20.47   23.05   (3.01)
      
Cash Dividend (%) 35%  -     -     -    220% 20%

Bonus Shares  -     -     -    25%  -     -   
      

Financial Position      
      
Current Ratio 1.79 : 1 1.98 : 1 2.06 : 1 2.18 : 1 3.89 : 1 3.91 : 1 
      
Paid-up Share Capital (Rs. in '000')  180,000   180,000   180,000   144,000   144,000   144,000 
      
Reserves & Unappropriated Profit 
   (Rs. in '000')  5,872,567   5,634,243   5,981,745   6,191,025   5,627,004   4,970,140 
      
Shareholders Equity (Rs. in '000')  6,052,567   5,814,243   6,161,745   6,335,025   5,771,004   5,114,140 
      
Breakup Value Per Share (Rs.)  168.13   161.51   171.16   219.97   200.38   177.57 
      
Return on Equity (Rs.) 3.94% -5.98% -2.81% 11.63% 14.38% -2.12%

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

5,245 

10,485 

15,398 

8,315 8,534 

11,863 

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Years

Revenue

1,545 
2,775 

4,258 

2,045 2,043 
3,067 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Years

Contribution to National Exchequer
Rs. In million

Rs. In million

(25)

1,203 1,105 

(126 ) (315 )

354

 (400)
 (200)

 -
 200
 400
 600
 800

 1,000
 1,200
 1,400

2020 2021 2022 2023
2024

2025

Years

Profit / (loss) before levies and income tax

Rs. in million

Rs. in million

5,114 

5,771 

6,335 
6,162 

5,814 
6,053 

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Years

Shareholders' Equity

 110.00

177.57
200.38

219.97

171.16 161.51 168.13

 50.00
 70.00
 90.00

 130.00
 150.00
 170.00
 190.00
 210.00

 230.00

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Years

Breakup value per share 
Amount In Rupees

-3.01

23.05
20.47

-4.81
-9.65

6.62

 (10.00)
 (5.00)

 -
 5.00
 10.00
 15.00

 20.00
 25.00

2020 2021 2022
2023

2024

2025

Years

Earnings / (loss) per share

Amount in Rupees
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
Consolidated

2025

Rs. In 000's %

2024

Rs. In 000's %

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Total Equity & Liabilities 
 
ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 

Total Assets 
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

Turnover - net 

Cost of Sales 

Gross Profit 

Distribution Costs 

Administrative Expenses 

Operating Profit / (Loss) 

Other Expenses 

Other Income 

Finance Costs 
 
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation 

Taxation 

Profit / (Loss) After Taxation 

 

6,052,567 

 354,320 

 3,247,689 

 9,654,576 

 
3,849,479 

 5,805,097 

 9,654,576 

 
11,863,435 

 (10,635,336)

 1,228,099 

 (218,293)

 (442,338)

 567,468 

 (91,179)

 87,847 

 (210,218)

 353,918 

 (115,594)

 238,324 

63%

4%

34%

100%

40%

60%

100%

100%

90%

10.4%

1.8%

3.7%

4.8%

0.8%

0.7%

1.8%

3.0%

1.0%

2.0%

 5,814,243 
 

530,183 
 

2,240,843 
 

8,585,269 

 
4,158,334 

 
4,426,935 

 
8,585,269 

 
8,534,184 

 
(8,145,664)

 
388,520 

 
(139,875)

 
(389,991)

 (141,346)

 (13,755)

 48,163 
 

(207,722)

 (314,660)
 

(32,842)
 

(347,502)

68%

6%

26%

100%

48%

52%

100%

100%

95%

4.6%

1.6%

4.6%

1.7%

0.2%

0.6%

2.4%

3.7%

0.4%

4.1%

2023

Rs. In 000's %

 6,161,745 
 

658,221 
 

2,309,539 

 9,129,505 

 4,362,168 

 4,767,337 

 9,129,505 

 8,314,517 
 

(7,772,333)

 542,184 
 

(106,078)
 

(345,031)

 91,075 
 

(168,604)

 69,082 
 

(117,861)

(126,308)

 (46,972)
 

(173,280)

67%

7%

25%

100%

48%

52%

100%

100%

93%

6.5%

1.3%

4.1%

1.1%

2.0%

0.8%

1.4%

1.5%

0.6%

2.1%

2022

Rs. In 000's %

 6,335,025 
 

167,441 

 3,023,639 
 

9,526,105 

 
2,936,929 

 
6,589,176 

 
9,526,105 

 
15,397,684 

 
(13,466,691)

 1,930,993 

 (147,689)
 

(324,892)

 1,458,412 
 

(306,320)

 54,032 
 

(101,489)

 1,104,635 
 

(367,814)

 736,821 

67%

2%

32%

100%

31%

69%

100%

100%

87%

12.5%

1.0%

2.1%

9.5%

2.0%

0.4%

0.7%

7.2%

2.4%

4.8%

2021

Rs. In 000's %

 5,771,004 
 

98,308 

 1,219,655 
 

7,088,967 

 
2,350,556 

 
4,738,411 

 
7,088,967 

10,485,027
 

(8,799,548)

 1,685,479 
 

(122,705)
 

(249,388)
 

1,313,386 
 

(173,508)

 67,512 
 

(4,125)

 1,203,265 
 

(373,601)
 

829,664 

81%

1%

17%

100%

33%

67%

100%

100%

84%

16.1%

1.2%

2.4%

12.5%

1.7%

0.6%

0.0%

11.5%

3.6%

7.9%

2020

Rs. In 000's %

 5,114,140 

 70,835 
 

1,008,799 
 

6,193,774 

 
2,247,843 

 
3,945,931 

 
6,193,774 

5,244,651
 

(4,993,185)
 

251,466 
 

(75,446)
 

(247,122)
 

(71,102)
 

(7,544)
 

56,886 
 

(3,209)

 (24,969)
 

(83,469)
 

(108,438)

83%

1%

16%

100%

36%

64%

100%

100%

95%

4.8%

1.4%

4.7%

1.4%

0.1%

1.1%

0.1%

0.5%

1.6%

2.1%
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
Consolidated

2025

Rs. In 000's 25 Vs 24 %

2024

Rs. In 000's 24 Vs 23 %

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Total Equity & Liabilities 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 

Total Assets 
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

Turnover - net 

Cost of Sales 

Gross Profit 

Distribution Costs 

Administrative Expenses 
 
Operating Profit / (Loss) 

Other Expenses 

Other Income 

Finance Costs 
 
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation 

Taxation 

Profit / (Loss) After Taxation 

 6,052,567 
 

354,320 
 

3,247,689 

 9,654,576 

 
3,849,479 

 
5,805,097 

 
9,654,576 

 
11,863,435 

 
(10,635,336)

 
1,228,099 

 (218,293)
 

(442,338)

 567,468 

 (91,179)

 87,847 
 

(210,218)

 353,918 
 

(115,594)

 238,324 

4%

-33%

45%

12%

-7%

31%

12%

39%

31%

216%

56%

13%

501%

563%

82%

1%

212%

252%

169%

 5,814,243 
 

530,183 
 

2,240,843 
 

8,585,269 

 4,158,334 
 

4,426,935 
 

8,585,269 

 8,534,184 
 

(8,145,664)

 388,520 
 

(139,875)
 

(389,991)

 (141,346)

 (13,755)

 48,163 
 

(207,722)

 (314,660)

 (32,842)
 

(347,502)

-6%

-19%

-3%

-6%

-5%

-7%

-6%

3%

5%

-28%

32%

13%

-255%

-92%

-30%

76%

149%

-30%

101%

2023

Rs. In 000's 23 Vs 22 %

 6,161,745 
 

658,221 
 

2,309,539 

 9,129,505 

 4,362,168 

 4,767,337 

 9,129,505 

 8,314,517 
 

(7,772,333)

 542,184 
 

(106,078)
 

(345,031)

 91,075 
 

(168,604)

 69,082 
 

(117,861)

 (126,308)

 (46,972)
 

(173,280)

-3%

293%

-24%

-4%

49%

-28%

-4%

-46%

-42%

-72%

-28%

6%

-94%

-45%

28%

16%

-111%

-87%

-124%

2022

Rs. In 000's 22 Vs 21 %

 6,335,025 
 

167,441 
 

3,023,639 

 9,526,105 

 
2,936,929 

 6,589,176 

 9,526,105 

 
15,397,684 

 
(13,466,691)

 1,930,993 

 (147,689)
 

(324,892)

 1,458,412 
 

(306,320)

 54,032 
 

(101,489)

 1,104,635 
 

(367,814)

 736,821 

10%

70%

148%

34%

25%

39%

34%

47%

53%

15%

20%

30%

11%

77%

-20%

2360%

-8%

-2%

-11%

2021

Rs. In 000's 21 Vs 20 %

 5,771,004 
 

98,308 
 

1,219,655 
 

7,088,967 

 
2,350,556 

 4,738,411 
 

7,088,967 

10,485,027
 

(8,799,548)

 1,685,479 

 (122,705)
 

(249,388)

 1,313,386 

 (173,508)

 67,512 

 (4,125)

 1,203,265 
 

(373,601)
 

829,664 

13%

39%

21%

14%

5%

20%

14%

100%

76%

570%

63%

1%

1947%

2200%

19%

29%

4919%

348%

865%

2020

Rs. In 000's 20 Vs 19 %

 5,114,140 
 

70,835 
  

1,008,799 
 

6,193,774 

 
2,247,843 

 3,945,931 

 6,193,774 

5,244,651
 

(4,993,185)

 251,466 
 

(75,446)
 

(247,122)

 (71,102)
 

(7,544)
 

56,886 

 (3,209)

 (24,969)
 

(83,469)
 

(108,438)

-6%

9%

55%

1%

7%

-2%

1%

-48%

-41%

-85%

-45%

1%

-105%

-93%

-21%

411%

-102%

-59%

-110%
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The login facility will be opened at 11:00 a.m. on October 20, 2025 enabling the participants to join the 
proceedings which will start at 11:30 a.m. sharp.

Members whose names appearing in the Register of Members as of October 13, 2025, are entitled to attend 
and vote at the Meeting. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend, speak and vote for him/her. A proxy must be a Member of the Company.

An instrument of proxy applicable for the Meeting is being provided with the Notice sent to Members. Further 
copies of the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the Registered Office of the Company during normal 
office hours. Proxy form may also be downloaded from the Company’s website: 
www.agriauto.com.pk/investor-info/.

An instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a 
notarially certified copy of such power or authority, must, to be valid, be deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

Members are requested to submit a copy of their Computerized National Identity Card/Smart National Identity 
Card (CNIC/SNIC), if not already provided and notify immediately changes, if any, in their registered address 
to our Share Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited.

3. Guidelines for Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (‘CDC’) Account Holders

 CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 
1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the SECP.

A. For Attending the Meeting

I. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities 
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall 
authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC/SNIC or original passport at the time 
of attending the Meeting.

II. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen 
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the 
Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

I. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, 
shall submit the proxy form as per the requirement.

II. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall 
be mentioned on the form.

III. Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished 
with the proxy form.

NOTICE is hereby given that the 44th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on 
Monday, October 20, 2025 at 11:30 AM at ICAP Auditorium, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025, 
together with the Chairman’s Review Report, Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

 In accordance with Section 223(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to SRO 389 (1)/2023 dated 
March 21, 2023, the financial statements of the Company have been uploaded on the Company’s 
website which can be downloaded from the following link and QR enabled code:

 
 https://www.agriauto.com.pk/pdf/jun-25/ail-annual-report-2025.pdf

2. To approve final cash dividend of 35% i.e. Rs. 1.75/- per share for the year 2024-25 as recommended by 
the Board of Directors.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2026. The 
present Auditors, M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retiring and being eligible, have 
offered themselves and consented for re-appointment, and the Board of Directors has recommended 
their appointment.

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

            By Order of the Board
 

 Karachi          Shaharyar Ashraf Khan
 Dated: August 28, 2025        Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. Closure of Share Transfer Books

 The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 14, 2025 to October 20, 2025 
(both days inclusive). Transfer request received in order at our Share Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share 
Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block-6, PECHS, Sharah e Faisal 
Karachi, Tel: +92-21-34380101-5, +92-21-34384621-3 (Ext-103) Fax: +92-21-34380106, at the close of 
business on October 13, 2025 will be treated in time for the purpose of attending and voting at the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

2. Participation in the AGM via physical presence or through video conferencing

 In order to protect wellbeing of the shareholders, the SECP has, vide its circulars issued from time to time, 
directed the listed companies to hold their general meetings virtually in addition to the requirements of 
holding physical meetings. In order to facilitate the shareholders, the Company in addition to 
convening a physical meeting has also arranged attendance of shareholder virtually via video link 
facility.

 The shareholders interested in attending the AGM virtually are requested to register their intent 
beforehand by submitting their particulars at the designated e-mail address agm@agriauto.com.pk 
as per the table below. Video conference link details and login credentials will be shared with ONLY 
those Shareholders, whose particulars are received on or before October 17, 2025, from their registered 
e-mail addresses.

Shareholder Name Folio/ CDC No. CNIC Number Cell Number Registered Email 
Address
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6. Submission of CNIC/SNIC/NTN (Mandatory)

 Pursuant to the directives of the SECP, the dividend of shareholders whose CNIC/SNIC or NTN (in case of 
corporate entities), are not available with the Share Registrar could be withheld. Shareholders are 
therefore, requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC/SNIC (if not already provided) to the 
Company’s Share Registrar, FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., 
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

7. Dividend Mandate (Mandatory)

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, and Regulation 4 of the 
Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations 2017, a listed company is required to pay cash 
dividend to the shareholders ONLY through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated 
by the entitled shareholders instead of issuing physical dividend warrants. 

 In compliance with the above law, in order to receive dividends directly in your bank account, you are 
requested to provide the information mentioned in the Form placed at the Company’s website 
http://www.agriauto.com.pk otherwise the Company would be constrained to withhold payment 
dividend (if any) in terms of Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations 2017. 
Shareholders shall submit the information directly to their brokers / Central Depository Company Ltd. If 
the shares are held in the electronic form or to the Company’s Share Registrar if the shares are held in 
physical form.

8. Deposit of Physical Shares in CDC account

 As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every listed company is required to replace its physical 
shares with book-entry form. Therefore, the shareholders having physical shares are requested to 
convert the shares into book entry. 

9. Withholding Tax on Dividend

 The rates of deduction of income tax from dividend payments under Section 150 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 shall be as follows:

 1.    Persons appearing in Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 15%
 2.   Persons not appearing in Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 30%

 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, 
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website 
of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered in ATL 
before the first day of book closure, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30% instead 
of 15%.

 Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income, shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax exemption 
certificate or stay order from a competent court of law is made available to FAMCO Share Registration 
Services (Pvt.) Limited, by the first day of Book Closure.

 Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be 
determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based 
on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

IV. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

V. In case of corporate entities, Board of directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen 
signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy form to 
Company.

VI. Form of proxy is enclosed.

C. Code of Conduct for Shareholders in General Meeting

I. Section 215 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 55 of the Companies Regulations, 2024, state 
the Code of Conduct of the Shareholders as follows:

a) Shareholders are not permitted to exert influence or approach the management directly for 
decisions which may lead to creation of hurdles in the smooth functioning of management. The law 
states that Shareholders shall not bring such material that may cause threat to participants or 
premises where meeting is being held, shall confine themselves to the agenda items covered in the 
notice of meeting, shall keep comments and discussion restricted to the affairs of the Company 
and shall not conduct in a manner to disclose any political affiliation or offend religious 
susceptibility of other members.

b) Any shareholder who fails to conduct in the manner provided in this section and as specified by the 
Commission shall be guilty of an offence under this section and shall be liable to a penalty not 
exceeding of level 1 on the standard scale.

II. Additionally, in compliance with Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2017; the Company is not 
permitted to distribute gifts in any form to its members in its meeting.

4. Postal Ballot / E-Voting

 Pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation 2018 read with Sections 143 and 144 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 members will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that 
is voting by post or through any electronic mode, in accordance with the requirements and procedure 
contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

5. Electronic Transmission of Annual Report 

 In compliance with Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company has electronically 
transmitted the Annual Report 2025 through e-mail to shareholders whose e-mail addresses are 
available with the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited. 

 Notwithstanding the above, the Company will provide hard copies of the Annual Report 2025, to any 
Member on their request, at their registered address, free of cost, within one (1) week of receiving such 
request. Further, Members are requested to kindly provide their valid e-mail address (along with a copy 
of valid CNIC) to the Company's Share Registrar, FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited if the 
Member holds shares in physical form or, to the Member’s respective Participant/Investor Account 
Services, if shares are held in book entry form.

 Pursuant to Notification vide SRO.787(I)/2014 of September 08, 2014, the SECP has directed to facilitate 
the members of the Company receiving Annual Financial Statements and Notices through electronic 
mail system (e-mail). We are pleased to offer this facility to our members who desire to receive Annual 
Financial Statements and Notices of the Company through e-mail in future. In this respect, members 
are hereby requested to convey their consent via e-mail on a standard request form which is available 
at the Company website i.e. www.agriauto.com.pk/investor-info/. Please ensure that your e-mail has 
sufficient rights and space available to receive such e-mail. Further, it is responsibility of the member to 
timely update the Share Registrar of any change in the registered e-mail address

32 Agriauto Industries Limited Annual Report 2025 33



 In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding 
Proportions of Principal shareholders and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them (only if not 
already provided) to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

 The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice; otherwise it will be 
assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s).

 Corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN)
 updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send copy 

of their NTN certificate to the Company or FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt.) Limited. 
Shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote the Company 
name and their respective folio numbers. Without the NTN, the Company would not be in a position to 
check filer status on the ATL and hence higher tax of 30% may be applied in such cases.

10. Availability of Annual Audited Financial Statements on the Company's website

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 223(7) of the Companies Act 2017, the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025, are available on the Company's website 
(www.agriauto.com.pk).

11. Restriction on Distribution of Gifts

 In accordance with the directive issued by the SECP Vide SRO 452(I)/2025 dated March 17, 2025, the 
Company would like to inform all the shareholders that no gifts will be distributed at the AGM.

Company
Name

Total
Shares Name and

CNIC #
Name and

CNIC #

Shareholding
Proportion 

(No.
of Shares)

Shareholding
Proportion

(No. of
 Shares)

Folio / 
CDS

Account #

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

Economy & The Auto Market
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Chairman’s
Review
I feel honored to present the Annual Financial Report of Agriauto Industries 
Limited and its subsidiary, Agriauto Stamping Company (Private) Limited, 
for the year ended June 30, 2025. Despite all challenges, your company has 
been able to deliver on its promises, strengthen its foundations, and create 
value for all stakeholders.

After last year’s slowdown, Pakistan’s economy has started to show signs of 
positive growth. The country is now reaping the rewards of challenging yet 
necessary steps taken over the past year, including fiscal discipline, higher 
policy rates, and steep rupee devaluation as a result of adopting a 
market-based foreign currency ecosystem. Inflation has now fallen to single 
digits, enabling the State Bank of Pakistan to reduce policy rates, which has 
kick-started economic activity and significantly lowered the cost of doing 
business.

With auto lending beginning to pick up, we are seeing a promising revival in 
the auto industry, with demand returning and overall sentiment on the 
upswing. The Government of Pakistan has initiated an overhaul of the trade 
regime aimed at tax rationalization, which, while focused on fostering 
export-led growth, has raised some concerns within the local auto industry. 
Many stakeholders hope that these new policy measures will strike a 
balance, ensuring that the local market remains vibrant while still 
welcoming competitive products. By working collaboratively, there is 
potential to enhance localization efforts, support employment opportunities, 
and encourage domestic investment, ultimately contributing to a more 
resilient economy.

Looking ahead, as the impacts of current changes in the trade ecosystem 
continue to manifest, we foresee significant headwinds for the local auto 
industry, particularly the auto vendor community. I assure you that Agriauto 
is fully aware of the challenges that lie ahead. Our resolve and commitment 
to excellence remain our strength, and we are confident that we will 
continue to deliver on our promise of creating value for all stakeholders. We 
are actively pursuing opportunities not only to improve our top and 
bottom line but also to diversify our customer and product portfolio.

We greatly value the dedication of our employees and have 
invested in their professional development through training and 
skill-building initiatives. Our corporate social responsibility 
efforts continue to focus on healthcare, education, and 
community development, reflecting our strong commitment 
to positive societal impact. During the year, the Company 
contributed Rs. 3.8 million to support various important 
causes.

This year has reinforced the importance of adaptability and 
long-term vision. As we look ahead, we remain committed to 
innovation, sustainable growth, and operational excellence. Moving 
forward, we will continue to build on the successes achieved this year 
and will forge our path with humility, compassion, and a strong sense of 
responsibility toward our stakeholders and our country

Yutaka Arae
Chairman

 

38 Agriauto Industries Limited Annual Report 2025 39

August 28, 2025



Directors’ Report to
the Shareholders

40 Agriauto Industries Limited Annual Report 2025 41



DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The Directors of Agriauto Industries Limited take pleasure in presenting the Directors’ Report, along with the 
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Pakistan’s economy has demonstrated continued improvement in 2024-25. The adoption of corrective 
policies under an IMF financial support program has brought Pakistan back from the brink of a potential 
meltdown at the end of 2022-23, when the GDP growth rate collapsed to -0.2%. The positive momentum is 
driven by sound macroeconomic management, effective inflation control measures, and enhanced fiscal 
and external accounts stability under the tutelage of the IMF.
 
During the fiscal year 2024–25, Pakistan’s real GDP grew by 2.68%, and the size of the economy crossed the 
$400 billion mark for the first time, reaching $411 billion. A significant milestone was the achievement of a 
current account surplus of $2.1 billion, the first annual surplus in 14 years and the largest in 22 years, reversing 
a $2.07 billion deficit from FY24.
 
The key driver of this surplus was a 27% surge in remittances, which reached a record $38.3 billion during FY25. 
This increase was supported by incentives for formal remittance channels, improved exchange rate stability, 
and higher manpower exports.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

After the sluggish performance of the last two years, the Automotive industry has finally turned a corner for 
the better. With reduced interest rates, consumer credit is edging higher, with the Automotive sector starting 
to reap the benefits as auto financing in Pakistan increased to Rs. 277 billion at the end of June, up from Rs. 
231 billion in the same period last year. This is reflected in the annual performance of the 4-wheeler and 
2-wheeler segments, which saw increases of 49% and 37%, respectively. However, the tractor segment 
experienced a decline of 38%. This information is illustrated in the graph below:

Tariff initiatives by the Government of Pakistan (GoP)

The GoP’s plan to promote New Energy Vehicle (NEV) has prompted all major OEMs to introduce a range of 
EV/HEV models. Going forward, we foresee the EV & HEV ecosystem evolving alongside ICE vehicles. Battery 
cost, infrastructure availability, and range anxiety are significant challenges to widespread EV adoption. For 
now, a number of NEV options are flooding the market, mainly in the form of CBUs, are competing amongst 
each other with a limited customer base.

One of the major initiatives of the current Government is the sweeping change in tariff structures, aiming to 
rationalize the same under the National Tariff Policy 2025-30. The aim of this comprehensive framework is to 
boost industrial competitiveness, support export-led growth, and simplify trade procedures. 

The first phase of this reduction plan is already being implemented through the budget 2025-26 and will be 
fully implemented in 5 years.

Pakistan has until now used tariffs as a major source of tax revenue collection rather than for industrialization 
and export growth; it is expected that the current plan to reduce import duty could lead to higher imports and, 
ultimately, to another balance-of-payments crisis.
 
Another major policy shift is the GoP’s decision to liberalize the import of used cars. Starting September 2025, 
the government is considering allowing the commercial import of used vehicles initially by paying 40% 
additional duty on top of the standard import taxes, applicable in the first year 2025-26. This 40% regulatory 
duty will progressively be eliminated by the year 2029-30. This reform is part of a broader IMF-backed 
roadmap, integrated within the National Tariff Policy (2025–30), aiming to simplify tariff structures and reduce 
trade barriers.

Industry Outlook

During the following year, the industry will have to grapple with numerous changes under the National Tariff 
Policy 2025-26, the New Energy Vehicle (NEV) Policy, and changes in the Used Car Import framework. These 
tariffs and the structural plan need to be drafted considering the employment being generated by auto parts 
manufacturers, as the import of used cars and the import of completely built NEV would directly hurt the auto 
parts manufacturers.  

The impact of the policy changes facing the industry remains uncertain even though the macroeconomic 
environment appears to be stable.
 
FINANCIAL & BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
 
Consolidated Results
 
On a consolidated basis, the Company’s sales reported an increase of 39%, Rs. 11.86 billion in FY 2025, 
compared to the previous year. Consequently, the Company reported a profit after taxation of Rs. 238.32 
million as compared to a loss after taxation of Rs. 347.50 million last year. The increase for the year is mainly 
attributable to the rise in the production and sale of passenger cars, as well as export sales.
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• Export Orders

 On a consolidated basis, the Company has crossed USD 200,000 in exports during the financial year FY 
2024-25, including the first-time export of dies to Toyota South Africa from ASC worth USD 47,230.

Future Outlook

While the automotive sector has improved due to macroeconomic stability, we anticipate significant 
headwinds, primarily due to the GoP’s inclination to liberalize the import of used vehicles. Consequently, the 
Company will continue to work to diversify from the automotive space while tapping into exports and the 
aftermarket segment. 

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT (HSE)

At Agriauto Industries Limited, we prioritize health, safety, and environmental responsibility, adhering to 
relevant laws and best practices. We ensure employee safety, environmental protection, and community 
well-being are central to our operations. 

Our commitment includes providing resources and training to promote a strong culture of quality, health, and 
safety. Management encourages open dialogue with all stakeholders on HSE matters. Recently, we 
established a 2 MW solar power facility to reduce reliance on non-renewable energy, supplemented by an 
additional 0.5 MW facility. These initiatives are projected to cut greenhouse gas emissions by about 2,224 
kilotons of CO2 annually, and the projects were completed without any incidents, showcasing our effective 
safety management systems. 

Key achievements for FY 2024-25 include:

• LPG System Installation: A centralized 1,600 kg LPG system was installed, minimizing risks associated with 
manual handling and resulting in annual savings of PKR 5.5 million. 

• Emergency Drills and Training: Regular fire drills and comprehensive safety training sessions resulted in 
1,000 training hours, reinforcing our preparedness and response capabilities. 

• World Environment Day Celebrations: Celebrated on June 30, 2025, with activities such as a drawing 
competition and a tree plantation drive, promoting environmental awareness among employees. Through 
these initiatives, Agriauto demonstrates its ongoing commitment to a sustainable and safe operational 
framework.

HUMAN RESOURCES (HR)

At Agriauto, we are committed to excellence in manufacturing high-quality automotive parts. Guided by our 
core values, we prioritize employee effectiveness, development, and well-being, while ensuring a safe, healthy, 
equitable, and socially responsible workplace. 
 
We foster teamwork and employee engagement by promoting collaboration and active participation, while 
continuously pursuing opportunities for improvement and innovation.

The Company ensures strict compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, safeguarding the well-being 
of its workforce and the communities in which we operate.

Training & Development

A variety of learning and development programs were conducted during the year, with a focus on enhancing 
our employees’ technical, leadership, and soft skill abilities, and to support their professional growth.

Standalone Results
 
During FY 2025, sales for the year closed at Rs. 7.76 billion, representing an increase of 31% as compared to last 
year. Consequently, the Company achieved a profit after tax of Rs. 95.41 million as compared to a loss of Rs. 
275.72 million in the preceding year. The profit for the year is mainly attributable to the improved automotive 
demand, due to declining interest rates, improved consumer outlook, and the rollout of innovative new 
vehicle offerings.

Includes dividend income from wholly owned subsidiary Agriauto Stamping Company (Private) Limited (ASC) 
amounting to Rs. 343.2 million (FY 2024: Nil).

Key Highlights of the Year

•    Penetration into the Power Distribution Sector

 The Company’s sustained effort in penetrating the power distribution sector is beginning to materialize 
with the approval of ED-coated clamps. It is now ready for participation in commercial tender bidding. 
Management is actively pursuing registration of the Company as an approved vendor with power 
distribution companies.

• Installation of Robotic Welding Arm

 In line with our commitment to keep our company at the forefront of technological advancement, ASC 
installed a Robotic welding facility as an R&D project. We have achieved good results, marked by 
improvements in productivity and quality. Moving forward, we will be replicating the success on other 
welding lines in both AIL and ASC.

Turnover

Gross profit

Profit / (loss) before levies and income tax

Levies and income tax

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Earning / (loss) per share (Rs.)  

11,863,126 
 

1,228,099

 353,918

(115,594)

238,324

6.62

8,534,184

388,520

(314,660)

(32,842)

(347,502)

(9.65)

2025 2024
---------Rs in 000’s---------

Turnover

Gross profit

Profit / (loss) before levies and income tax*

Levies and taxation

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Earning / (loss) per share (Rs.)  

 7,762,170 
 

357,394 

97,371

1,604

98,975

 2.75

 5,927,227

 207,825
 

(267,158)

 (8,560)
 

(275,718)

 (7.66)

2025 2024
---------Rs in 000’s---------
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Various activities were conducted across all our business segments. The primary focus of these measures is 
on healthcare, education, environment, employees’ welfare, and community development.

Distribution of Ration to workers
 
The Company distributes ration hampers among all its workers each year, to support the well-being of workers 
and their families.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER 
 
During the year under review, the Company contributed Rs. 3.07 billion (2024: Rs. 2.04 billion) to the National 
Exchequer.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 
All transactions with related parties have been carried out in the normal course of business at agreed terms 
and have been disclosed in the financial statements under relevant notes.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company and its subsidiary have deployed an effective system of internal financial controls to safeguard 
its assets and ensure the accuracy and reliability of its records. Senior management reviews the financial 
performance of the Company and its subsidiary through detailed monthly financial reports and analysis, while 
the Board also carries out its own review at each quarter. Detailed examinations are regularly carried out by 
the internal audit function in adherence to internal procedures, and the internal audit function reports its 
findings to the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee as per best practice.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Having a robust and efficient risk management system is essential for any company in its daily operations. 
Agriauto is cognizant of the risks faced by the company and is constantly seeking opportunities to improve 
and stay ahead in the market while achieving our goals. The Board of Directors recognizes the significance of 
risk management and actively participates in developing and overseeing the Company's risk management 
framework, as well as creating and monitoring its risk management policies. 

A committee consisting of senior management, known as the Risk Management and Strategic Plan 
Committee, has also been established to address and determine all issues related to the Company's risk 
management and strategic plan at regular intervals. This committee provides precise, comprehensive, and 
timely information that reaches all levels and departments to assist in making strategic decisions. It manages 
the Risk Register, which includes, but is not limited to, exchange risk, operational risk,  and concentration risks. 
Furthermore, it takes proactive measures to manage risks within the predetermined risk appetite and 
tolerance levels.

AUDITORS
 
The existing auditors, M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, are retiring at the conclusion of the 
forthcoming annual general meeting and have offered themselves for re-appointment. The reappointment 
has also been recommended by the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee to the Board.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
 
The pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2025 is annexed.

Training sessions on technical and functional competencies included Quality Control, SAP systems, Excel, and 
Power BI training, while programs on Communication, Negotiation, Teamwork, and Corporate Management 
strengthened both employee leadership and soft skills.

In addition, numerous Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE) sessions were organized, which included 
interactive training on the importance of Fire Safety, Defensive Driving, and Near-Miss Reporting.

Agriauto remains dedicated to advancing employee skills, recognizing their vital role in building a productive, 
collaborative, and safe work environment. Upskilling our employees is essential and enables Agriauto to 
remain competitive, resilient, and successful in the local and global landscape. 

Employee Engagement and Well-being

Employee happiness remains a top priority, as we believe that engaged employees are more productive and 
committed to the Company’s success. Regular engagement surveys help us gauge employee sentiment, 
providing valuable insights that are translated into actionable plans to further strengthen engagement and 
foster a positive workplace culture. Employee engagement and well-being are promoted through various 
initiatives, including sports days and health camps.

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

The Company is committed to promoting a diverse and inclusive environment. The workforce includes 42 
women across the organisation, reflecting the company’s ongoing efforts to promote gender inclusion. The 
Company has various DE&I policies, including maternity and paternity leave policies, and it continues to 
implement processes to encourage gender mainstreaming and enhance women’s participation. 

DE&I initiatives are closely monitored to ensure we foster a more inclusive and equitable work environment.

The Board continues to monitor the company’s efforts, ensuring that our strategies and targets are 
periodically reviewed and aligned with our long-term vision of creating corporate value through responsible 
and sustainable business practices.

Gender Pay Gap

Agriauto is committed to fostering an inclusive and equitable workplace where all employees have equal 
opportunities to grow and succeed. Consequently, our compensation is benchmarked with the market, 
irrespective of gender. 

The following is the gender pay gap calculated for the year:

Any variation in pay is due to professional experience, education, employee performance, and market 
dynamics. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

Agriauto believes in giving back to society and is committed to improving the quality of life of our 
stakeholders, communities, and the underprivileged members of society. The Company made a total 
contribution of Rs. 3.8 million in FY 2024-25 in CSR activities.

Mean gender pay gap
Median gender pay gap

4%
0%
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• The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs, 
the results of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity.

• Proper books of account have been maintained.
• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements 

and accounting estimates based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
• International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 

(IASB), as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), and provisions of and directives under the Act, 
have been followed in the preparation of financial statements.

• The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. Noble Computer Services (Pvt) Ltd., who are 
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose, and are conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the Company.

• The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
• All members of the Audit Committee are independent/ non-executive Directors.
• There are no significant doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
• There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the 

listing regulations.
• The key operating & finance data for the last 6 years are annexed to the report.
• The statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed herewith.

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
 
The Board of Directors are recommending final dividend of 1.75 per share amounting to Rs. 63 million for the 
approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 20, 2025.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
We would like to express our sincere appreciation to all our employees for their untiring efforts and for a cordial 
and positive relationship during the year, which helped us in meeting and overcoming our challenges, due to 
which the company continued its year-on-year growth, and we expect the same level of support from our 
employees in the year ahead.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we would like to place on record our appreciation to all our Patrons, 
Dealers, Suppliers, and Employees for their valuable help, continuous support, and contribution to the 
Company. We are also thankful to all our overseas technical collaborators, M/s Ride Control, LLC. USA, M/s KYB 
Corporation, Japan, M/s Aisin Seiki Co. Ltd, Japan, M/s. Shiroki Corporation, Japan, M/s. Sannou Riken Co Ltd, 
Japan, M/s KMS (KYB Motorcycle Suspension, Japan), and M/s. Ogihara (Thailand) Co. Ltd for their technical 
assistance and advice.  

On behalf of the Board of Directors.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 
The Board has seven (7) Directors comprising of six (6) male Directors and one (1) female Director.

Composition of the Board is as follows:

During the year, five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors (BOD), four (4) meetings of the Board Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (BARMC), and one (1) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee (HR&RC) were held. The attendance by each Director was as follows:

REMUNERATION POLICY OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
 
The fee of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors for attending the Board and Committee meetings of 
the Company is determined by the Board from time to time.

The remuneration paid to Directors during the year is disclosed in note 42 to the unconsolidated financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAM

The Directors are in compliance with the training program as they have the requisite qualifications and 
experience of serving on the board.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Directors confirm compliance with the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework as per the Listing 
Regulations of the PSX as follows:

Categories Names

Ms. Ayesha Tammy Haq 
Mr. Aqueel E. Merchant

Mr. Yutaka Arae – Chairman
Mr. Hamza Habib
Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed
Mr. Salman Burney

Mr. Fahim Kapadia – Chief Executive

Independent Director

Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

S. No. Name of Director
Meetings Attended

BOD BARMC HR&RC

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Mr. Yutaka Arae
Mr. Fahim Kapadia
Mr. Hamza Habib
Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed
Mr. Salman Burney
Ms. Ayesha Tammy Haq
Mr. Aqueel E. Merchant

5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5

-
-
-

4/4
-

4/4
4/4

1/1
1/1
-
1/1
1/1
-
1/1

Fahim Kapadia
Chief Executive

Salman Burney
Director

KARACHI
DATED: August 28, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES  
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 

 
 
AGRIAUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 
 
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 
 

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following: 
 
a. Male:       -   06 
b. Female:       -   01 
 

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: 
 
Category Name 
Independent Directors* Ms. Ayesha T. Haq (Female Director) 

Mr. Aqueel E. Merchant 
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Yutaka Arae (Chairman) 

Mr. Hamza Habib 
Mr. Salman Burney 
Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed 

Executive Director Mr. Fahim Kapadia (Chief Executive) 
 
*In a Board comprising 7 members, one-third works out to be 2.33, which is below half (i.e. 0.5). 
The fraction contained in such one-third is not rounded up to one as the Company has experienced 
and well-rounded independent directors on the Board who perform and carry out their 
responsibilities diligently. 
 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this Company;  
 

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures; 
 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company.  The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant 
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company; 
 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations; 
 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating 
minutes of meeting of the Board; 
 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations; 
 

9. All of the directors have either completed Directors’ Training program or are exempt from doing so 
under these regulations.  
 

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of 
internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied 
with relevant requirements of the Regulations; 
 

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board; 
 

 
 

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 
 
a) Board Audit and Risk Management Committee  
 
- Mr. Aqueel E. Merchant    Chairman 
- Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed     Member 
- Ms. Ayesha T. Haq      Member 

 
b) Board HR and Remuneration Committee 
 
- Mr. Aqueel E. Merchant    Chairman 
- Mr. Yutaka Arae     Member 
- Mr. Fahim Kapadia     Member  
- Mr. Salman Burney     Member 
-     Mr. Sohail P. Ahmed    Member 
 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised 
to the committee for compliance; 
 

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following: 
 
a) Board Audit and Risk Management Committee        -   Four quarterly meetings  
b) Board HR and Remuneration Committee          -   One meeting 
 

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. Noble Computer Services (Private) 
Limited who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant 
with the policies and procedures of the Company; 
 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are 
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of 
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, 
company secretary or director of the Company; 
 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard; 
 

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations 
have been complied with; and 
 

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 
and 36 are below: 
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S. 
No. 

Requirement Explanation Regulation 
No. 

1 The Board may constitute a separate 
committee, designed as the 
nomination committee, of such 
number and class of directors, as it 
may deem appropriate in its 
circumstances. 

The responsibilities as prescribed for 
the nomination committee are being 
taken care at the Board level, as and 
when needed, therefore a separate 
committee is not considered to be 
necessary by the Board. 

29 

2 The Board may constitute the risk 
management committee, of such 
number and class of directors, as it 
may deem appropriate in its 
circumstances, to carry out a review of 
effectiveness of risk management 
procedures and present a report to the 
Board. 

The Board has formed Audit and Risk 
Management Committee to address risk 
management framework at the 
Company’s level. 
 

30 

3 The Company may post on its website 
key elements of its significant policies 
including but not limited to the 
following: 
i. Communication and disclosure 

policy; 
ii. Code of conduct for members of 

board of directors, senior 
management and other 
employees; 

iii. Risk management policy; 
iv. Internal control policy; 
v. Whistle blowing policy; 
vi. Corporate social responsibility / 

sustainability / environmental, 
social and governance related 
policy; and 

vii. policies for promoting DE&I and 
protection against harassment at 
the workplace. 

As the regulation provides option for the 
disclosure of key elements of significant 
policies on the Company’s website, only 
those policies which were considered 
necessary by management, have been 
posted on the website. 

35 (1) 

4 Role of the Board and its members to 
address sustainability risks and 
opportunities, whereby the Board is 
also encouraged to adopt SECP's ESG 
Disclosure Guidelines, in addition to 
certain other requirements as laid 
down in SRO 920 (I)/2024 dated June 
12, 2024. 

Currently, management is assessing 
these amendments / requirements and 
compliance thereof, as applicable, will 
be ensured in due course.  
 
The Sustainability disclosure standards 
issued by the International 
Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) 
will become applicable in a phased 
manner and the Company will be liable 
to comply with these disclosure 
requirements from FY 2027 based on 
criteria prescribed by the SECP. 

10A 

 
 
 
 

                     

YUTAKA ARAE              FAHIM KAPADIA 
Chairman / Director               Chief Executive 
 
Dated: August 28 , 2025 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Agriauto Industries Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Agriauto Industries 
Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 
36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any 
non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control 
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the 
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Karachi.
Dated:
UDIN:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Agriauto Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Agriauto Industries Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy 
information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the 
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity 
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the 
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

S.No.

(i)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue from contracts with customers

As disclosed in note 25 to the accompanying 
unconsolidated financial statements, the 
Company recognized revenue aggregating 
to Rs. 7,762.17 million, net of taxes, for 
the year ended June 30, 2025.

The Company is engaged in the 
manufacturing and sale of components for 
automotive vehicles, motor cycles and 
agricultural tractors. Revenue is recognised 
when the performance obligation is satisfied 
by transferring control of a promised goods 
to a customer.

We considered revenue recognition as a key 
audit matter as it is one of the key 
performance indicators of the Company. In 
addition, revenue was also considered as an 
area of significant audit risk as part of the 
audit process.

We performed, amongst others, the following 
audit procedures:

• Assessed the design, implementation and oper-
ating effectiveness of the key internal controls 
involved in revenue recognition.

• Understood and evaluated the accounting 
policy with respect to revenue recognition.

• Tested revenue transactions, on a sample basis, 
with underlying documentation including goods 
delivery notes and sales invoices.

• Tested, on a sample basis, specific revenue 
transactions recorded before and after the 
reporting date with underlying documentation 
to assess whether revenue was recognised in 
the correct period.

• Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in 
the unconsolidated financial statements relat-
ed to revenue.

• Tested, on a sample basis, specific revenue 
transactions recorded before and after the 
reporting date with underlying documentation 
to assess whether revenue was recognised in 
the correct period.

• Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in 
the unconsolidated financial statements relat-
ed to revenue.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Following is the Key audit matter:
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require-
ments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the 
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity 
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and 
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 
of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).
 
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Khattab Muhammad Akhi Baig.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Date: September 19, 2025
UDIN: 



Financial
Statements
Unconsolidated
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS    
   
Non-Current Assets    
Property, plant and equipment 4  1,695,011  1,789,153 
Right-of-use assets 5  7,570  2,376 
Intangible assets 6  19,728  33,615 
Long-term investment 7  1,144,006  1,144,006 
Long-term deposits 8  11,265  11,022 
Deferred taxation - net 9  187,390  149,398 
  3,064,970  3,129,570 
Current Assets    
Stores, spares and loose tools 10  127,056  119,939 
Stock-in-trade 11  2,158,766  1,518,452 
Trade debts - unsecured 12  894,907  803,121 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 13  365,808  294,652 
Short-term investments 14  38,282  39,526 
Sales tax receivable  7,906  -   
Taxation - net  398,654  344,690 
Cash and bank balances 15  39,785   131,038 
  4,031,164  3,251,418 
TOTAL ASSETS  7,096,134  6,380,988 
    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Share Capital and Reserves    
Authorised capital    
   40,000,000 (2024: 40,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each  200,000  200,000 
    
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 16  180,000  180,000 
Reserves  4,120,181  4,021,206 
  4,300,181  4,201,206 
Non-Current Liabilities    
Lease liabilities 17  4,936  1,906 
Long-term financings - secured 18  219,445  294,418 
Deferred income  19  12,948  15,199 
  237,329  311,523 
Current Liabilities    
Trade and other payables 20  1,499,252  1,234,528 
Current maturity of lease liabilities 17  3,476  574 
Current maturity of long-term financing 18  87,000  83,615 
Current maturity of deferred income 19  2,251  2,259 
Sales tax payable  -    45,186 
Warranty obligations 21  130,730   126,762 
Unpaid dividend 22  -     3,819 
Unclaimed dividend 22  33,701   30,113 
Short-term finances - secured 23  802,214   341,403 
   2,558,624   1,868,259 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24   

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   7,096,134   6,380,988 
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Turnover - net 25  7,762,170   5,927,227 
Cost of sales 26  (7,404,776)  (5,719,402)
Gross profit   357,394   207,825 
    
Distribution and marketing expenses 27  (172,584)  (129,330)
Administrative expenses 28  (318,367)  (261,250)
   (490,951)  (390,580)
Operating loss   (133,557)  (182,755) 
    
Other expenses 29  (35,655)  (3,356)
Other income 30  420,398   32,543 
Finance costs 31  (153,815)  (113,590)
   230,928   (84,403)
Profit / (loss) before levies and income tax   97,371   (267,158)
    
Levies (minimum tax and final tax) 32  (96,416)  (74,050)
   
Profit / (loss) before income tax   955   (341,208)
    
Taxation 33  98,020   65,490 
    
Profit / (loss) after taxation for the year   98,975   (275,718)
    
   
Earning / (loss) per share – basic and diluted 34  2.75   (7.66)
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

-------- (Rupees) --------

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Profit / (loss) after taxation for the year  98,975   (275,718)
    
Other comprehensive income / (loss)   -     -   
    
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year   98,975   (275,718)
    

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Balance as at July 1, 2023 180,000  12,598  4,265,000  19,326  4,296,924  4,476,924 
        
Total comprehensive loss for the year        
   ended June 30, 2024        
   
Loss after taxation for the year  -     -     -    (275,718) (275,718) (275,718)
        
Other comprehensive income / (loss)        
   for the year  -     -     -    -     -     -     
 -    -    -    (275,718) (275,718) (275,718)
        
   
Balance as at June 30, 2024 180,000  12,598  4,265,000  (256,392) 4,021,206  4,201,206 
        
Total comprehensive income for the year        
   ended June 30, 2025        
  
Profit after taxation for the year  -     -     -    98,975  98,975  98,975 
        
Other comprehensive income / (loss)        
   for the year  -     -     -     -     -     -   
  -     -     -    98,975  98,975  98,975 
        
Balance as at June 30, 2025 180,000  12,598  4,265,000  (157,417) 4,120,181  4,300,181 
        
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.     
      

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

----------------------(Rupees in ‘000)----------------------

Issued,
 subscribed 

and paid-up 
capital

Capital 
reserve

Revenue reserves

Reserves

General
(note 16.3)

Unappropriated 
profit / (loss)

Total
 reserves

Total equity
Share

 premium
(note 16.2)

DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
   
Cash (used in) / generated from operations 35  (342,245)  205,451 
Long-term deposits paid   (243)  (2,000)
Finance costs paid   (160,988)  (116,883)
Levies and income tax paid   (153,575)  (101,243)
Warranty claims paid 21.1  (8,074)  (10,305)
Royalty paid 20.4  (28,089)  (38,205)
Short-term finance obtained during the year   119,962   113,361 
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities   (573,252)  50,176 
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
   
Fixed capital expenditure   (161,699)  (174,882)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 4.4  17,678   24,700 
Purchase of intangible asset   (450)  -   
Profit received on short-term investments - term deposit receipts   5,128   6,625 
Profit received on deposit accounts   945   3,663 
Dividend received from subsidiary company 30  343,202   -   
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities   204,804   (139,894)
    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 36   
Unclaimed dividends paid   (231)  (482)
Lease payments   (4,564)  (3,447)
Long-term financing repaid during the year   (59,201)  (88,414)
Net cash used in financing activities   (63,996)  (92,343)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (432,444)  (182,061)  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    (94,684)  87,377 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  37  (527,128)   (94,684)
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Agriauto Industries Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on June 25, 1981 as a public 
limited company and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is engaged in the 
manufacture and sale of components for automotive vehicles, motor cycles and agricultural tractors. 
The registered office of the Company is situated at 5th Floor, House of Habib, 3 Jinnah Cooperative 
Housing Society (J.C.H.S), Block 7/ 8, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

1.2 Geographical location and addresses of all the business units are as under: 
   
                          Location  Business unit 

 Karachi   
5th Floor, House of Habib, 3 Jinnah Cooperative 

    Housing Society, Block 7/ 8, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal. Registered office 

 Hub   
Mouza Baroot, Hub Chowki Distt. Lasbella, Balochistan. Manufacturing facility

1.3 These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in 
which investments in subsidiary is accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any 
and is not consolidated.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.2.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
except otherwise specified in respective notes to the unconsolidated financial statements.

2.2.2 These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

2.3 Standards, interpretations, improvements and amendments applicable to unconsolidated 
financial statements

2.3.1 Amendments to approved accounting and reporting standards that became effective during the 
year

 There were certain amendments to approved accounting and reporting standards that became 
applicable for the Company during the year but are not considered to be relevant or did not have any 
significant effect on the Company's operations and have therefore not been disclosed in these 
unconsolidated financial statements except for the following:DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:   

- expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

2.4.2 Property, plant and equipment  
   
Operating fixed assets   
   
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except for 
freehold land which is stated at cost, less impairment, if any. All expenditure connected with specific 
assets, including the cost of replacing parts and the cost of borrowings for long-term construction 
projects are carried under capital work-in-progress, if the recognition criteria is met. These are 
transferred to specific categories of property, plant and equipment as and when these are available 
for use.   
   
Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss 
applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 4.1 to these unconsolidated 
financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month of addition and in case of 
disposal, prior to the month of disposal. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred, while major renewals and 
improvements are capitalised.  
   
Disposal of an item of operating fixed assets is recognised when the asset is sold or otherwise 
disposed of or no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on 
disposals are determined by comparing the carrying amount of that asset with the sales proceeds 
and are recognised within ‘other income / other expenses’ in the unconsolidated statement of profit or 
loss.   
   
The carrying values of assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the 
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or related cash-generating 
units are written down to their recoverable amount.  

 The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each reporting 
date, and adjusted if material.  
   
Capital work-in-progress   
   
These are stated at cost less impairment in value, if any. Capital work-in-progress consist of 
expenditure incurred and advance made in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of their 
construction and installation.

 (i)    Amendment to IAS 1 "Non current liabilities with covenants”  
   
These amendments aim to improve the information an entity provides when its right to defer 
settlement of liability is subject to compliance with covenants within twelve months after the reporting 
period affect the classification of a liability. These amendments introduce additional disclosure 
requirements that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk that the liability could 
become repayable within twelve months of the reporting period. These amendments only have an 
impact on the Company's disclosure of long-term financings, but not on the measurement, 
recognition or presentation of any item in these unconsolidated financial statements.

 (ii)   Disclosure detailing shariah and conventional elements  
   
During the year, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has made amendments 
to the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 whereby certain disclosure requirements have 
been introduced with respect to distinguishing of Company's assets, liabilities, income and 
expenditure related to financing, investments and other income/expenses etc. between shariah and 
conventional elements, which have been presented in note 41 to these unconsolidated financial 
statements.

2.3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published  accounting and reporting standards 
that are not yet effective   
   
There are certain new standards and amendments to the published accounting and reporting 
standards that will be applicable to the Company's accounting period beginning on or after July 1, 
2025. However, these are not considered to be relevant or did not have any material effect on the 
Company's unconsolidated financial statements except for:

- the new standard - IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements  (IFRS 18) (published 
in April 2024) with applicability date of January 1, 2027 by IASB. IFRS 18 is yet to be adopted in 
Pakistan. IFRS 18 when adopted and applicable shall impact the presentation of 'Statement of Profit 
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income' with certain additional disclosures in the 
unconsolidated financial statements.

- amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' which clarify the date of recognition and 
derecognition of a financial asset or financial liability including settlement of liabilities through 
banking instruments and channels including electronic transfers applicable for the periods 
begining on or after January 1, 2026. The amendment when applied may impact the timing of 
recognition and derecognition of financial liabilities and financial assets.

2.4 Material accounting policy information  
   
The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial 
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented 
unless specified otherwise.

2.4.1 Current versus non-current classification  
   
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated statement of financial position 
based on current / non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
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2.4.5 Stores, spares and loose tools  
   
Stores, spares and consumables are stated at weighted average cost less provision for obsolete items 
(if any) except items in-transit, if any, are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges 
incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion 
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
   
Provision, if required, is made in the unconsolidated financial statements for slow moving, obsolete 
and unusable items. Spares and consumables are assessed and provision is applied according to the 
degree of ageing based on a specific criteria.

2.4.6 Stock-in-trade   
   
Stock-in-trade, except goods-in-transit, is stated at the lower of net realisable value (NRV) and cost 
determined as follows:

Raw and packing materials       Moving average basis, cost of raw materials comprises of                  
purchase price plus import duties and taxes (other than those 
that are subsequently recoverable).

Work-in-process                                    Cost of direct materials plus conversion cost valued on the basis 
of equivalent production units.

Finished goods                                       Cost of finished goods comprises cost of direct materials plus 
conversion cost valued on the basis of equivalent production 
units.

 Goods-in-transit are valued at purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon upto 
the reporting date.   
   
Stock-in-trade is regularly reviewed by management and obsolete items, if any, are brought down to 
their NRV. NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.4.7 Trade debts and other receivables  
   
Trade debts and other receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. 
   
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount (unless 
there is a significant financing component) less an estimated allowance made for doubtful debts and 
receivables based on the ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model. Balances considered bad and 
irrecoverable are written off when identified. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 
are credited in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.4.8 Investment in subsidiary company  
   
Subsidiary is a entity over which the Company has control, typically through ownership of more than 
50% of the voting rights. Control exists when the Company:

- has the ability to direct the investee's financial and operating policies, enabling it to influence the 
investee's strategic decisions;

- has exposure to, or rights to, fluctuating returns resulting from its involvement with the investee; and

- can utilise its power over the investee to impact the amount of returns it receives from its 
investment.

2.4.3 Right-of-use assets and related liabilities  
   
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, i.e. if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.

2.4.3.1 Right-of-use-assets   
   
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date 
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial 
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives received as applicable.  
   
Right-of-use-assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lower of the lease term and the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in note 5 to these unconsolidated financial 
statements. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and 
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

2.4.3.2 Lease liabilities   
   
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for 
short-term leases, if any. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and 
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 
   
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.  The extension and termination 
options are incorporated in the determination of the lease term only when the Company is reasonably 
certain to exercise these options.  
   
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing 
rate at the commencement date of the lease, if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the 
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of 
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the 
in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

2.4.4 Intangible assets   
   
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. 
   
Costs in relation to intangible assets are only capitalised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits attributable to that asset will flow to the Company and the same is amortised applying the 
straight line method at the rate disclosed in note 6 to these unconsolidated financial statements. 
   
Research and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria mentioned in IAS 38 'Intangible 
Assets' are recognised as an expense as incurred.  
   
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed at each reporting 
date, and adjusted if material.
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 Derecognition

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss.

 
 Impairment of financial assets - allowance for expected credit losses

 ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its 
financial assets carried at amortised cost and contract assets. The Company applies the simplified 
approach to recognise life time expected credit losses for trade debts while general 3 - stage 
approach for other financial assets i.e. to measure ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal to 
12-month ECL if credit risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition.

 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the respective asset. The Company considers a financial asset in default when 
contractual payments are 90 days past due and it is subsequently written off when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. This definition is based on the 
Company's internal credit risk management policy.

 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position if there is currently an enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.4.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than stock-in-trade, stores, spares and loose tools 
and deferred tax assets are assessed at date of unconsolidated statement of financial position to 
ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment 
loss is recognised, as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value in use is 
ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

2.4.12 Levies

 The Company considers unrecoupable minimum taxes in excess of normal tax liability and tax 
deducted at source under final tax regime are out of scope of IAS 12 'Income Taxes' and fall in the ambit 
of IFRIC 21 'Levies' and IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'. 
   

 Investments in subsidiary company is stated at cost less impairment, if any. An assessment is made 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication that an investment may be 
impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of the investment is determined 
and any impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the 
carrying value.

2.4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

 For the purpose of unconsolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of 
cash in hand, bank balances, readily encashable investments and short-term running finance that is 
repayable on demand and forms an integral part of the Company's cash management. The cash and 
cash equivalents are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are therefore subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.4.10 Financial instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

 Financial assets

 The financial assets of the Company mainly include trade debts, deposits, short-term investments, 
other receivables and cash and bank balances. On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised 
at fair value.   
   
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised 
cost; Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – debt investment; FVOCI – equity 
investment; or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 
9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics. Based on the business model of the Company, the financial assets of the 
Company are measured and classified under IFRS 9 as follows;  
   
Trade debts, short-term investments and other financial assets are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method less an allowance for expected credit losses, if any.

 Derecognition

 A financial asset, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets is primarily 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has 
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement 
and either the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or the 
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset. On derecognition of a financial asset, in its entirety, the difference 
between the asset's carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is 
recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

 Financial liabilities

 The financial liabilities of the Company mainly include long-term financing, short-term finance and 
trade creditors. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial 
liabilities are either classified at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss. The Company does 
not have any financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.
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- there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of 
the obligation cannot be measure with sufficient reliability.

 The assessment of contingent liabilities inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the 
outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the 
availability of latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities which may 
differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events.

2.4.16 Deferred income

 The benefit of a long-term financing at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a deferred 
income, measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based 
on prevailing market interest rates. The deferred income is held on the unconsolidated statement of 
financial position as a deferred credit and realised to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss 
over the periods necessary to match the related finance cost.

2.4.17 Revenue from contract with customers

 The Company manufactures and sells components for automotive vehicles, motor cycles and 
agriculture tractors to Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) and certain after market suppliers. 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods is transferred to 
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods according to the negotiated contractual terms. The Company 
has generally concluded that it acts as a principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically 
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

 The Company's performance obligations, comprising of the sale of components of automotive 
vehicles, motor cycles and agricultural tractors, are not separable, and are not partially satisfied, since 
they are satisfied at a point in time, when the customer accepts the products. Moreover, the payment 
terms identified in most sources of revenue are short term usually 30 to 60 days upon delivery, without 
any variable considerations, financing components and guarantees.

 The Company recognises a trade receivable when the performance obligations have been met, 
recognising the corresponding revenue.

 Advance from customers is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration from the customer. Advance from customers is recognised as 
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.4.18 Other income

 Return on bank deposits / saving accounts and short-term investments is recognised using effective 
interest rate method.

 Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

 Scrap sales are recognised at sales proceeds less book value on the day of transaction.

 Other income, if any, is recognised on accrual basis.  
   
   
 

2.4.13 Taxation

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking 
into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or minimum tax on turnover or Alternate 
Corporate Tax whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 ('the Ordinance'). The minimum tax under section 113 which is not recoupable is classified under 
levies. The Company has opted for Group Taxation under section 59AA of the Ordinance. The Group 
consists of Agriauto Industries Limited (the Holding Company) and Agriauto Stamping Company 
(Private) Limited - wholly owned subsidiary.

 The Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company records provision for current tax on the basis of 
the taxable income determined as per the separate financial statements of each entity without 
regarding any group taxation availed under section 59AA of the Ordinance. The Group has tax funding 
arrangement in place by virtue of which the difference in tax charge recognised on the basis of 
taxable income in the separate financial statements of each entity and the Group's tax liability under 
section 59AA is settled in cash between the Group companies.

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts appearing in the financial 
statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the 
temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable income will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted 
or substantially enacted by the unconsolidated statement of financial position date.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax authority.

2.4.14 Warranty obligations

 A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold, based on past experience of 
the level of repairs and returns and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss when the sale is recognised. Assumptions used to calculate 
the provision for warranties are based on current sales levels and current information available about 
returns based on the warranty period for all products sold.

2.4.15 Contingent liabilities

 Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Company; or
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2.4.26 Share capital and reserves

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from 
the proceeds.

 Reserves comprise of capital and revenue reserves. Capital reserves represent share premium while 
revenue reserves comprise of general reserves and unappropriated profit.

2.4.27 Dividends and appropriation to reserve

 Dividend and appropriation to reserve are recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements in 
the period in which these are approved. Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the 
statement of financial position date is considered as a non-adjusting event and is recognised in the 
unconsolidated financial statements in the period in which such transfers are made.

2.4.28 Foreign currency transactions and translation

 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupees at the foreign exchange rates 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
re-translated into rupees at the foreign exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position date. Exchange differences if any are taken to the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.4.29 Earnings per share

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic 
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is 
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

 The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting 
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to 
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and 
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in 
any future periods affected.

 In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments 
and estimates which are significant to these unconsolidated financial statements:

 (i)    Residual value, rate of depreciation and useful life of property, plant and equipment

 The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used 
in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of 
assets is made for possible impairment as and when required. In making these estimates, Company 
uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in the estimates in the future 
might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with 
corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

2.4.19 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised 
as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they 
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds.

2.4.20 Sales tax

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised, net off amount of sales tax except:

- where sales tax incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation 
authorities, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset 
or as part of the expense item as applicable;

- trade receivables or trade payables are stated with the amount of sales tax; and

- the net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authorities is included as 
part of sales tax receivables or payables in the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

2.4.21 Unclaimed dividend

 This is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and unclaimed by shareholders from the date 
it became due and payable.

2.4.22 Unpaid dividend

 This is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and claimed by shareholders but remained 
unpaid for the period of 3 years from the date it became due and payable.

2.4.23 Trade and other payables

 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

2.4.24 Provisions

 Provision is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company has 
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each date of 
unconsolidated statement of financial position and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

2.4.25 Operating segments

 For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one reportable 
operating segment. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the 
nature of the products, risks and returns, organisational and management structure, and internal 
financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these unconsolidated financial 
statements are related to the Company’s only reportable segment.
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 (ii)    Net realisable value of stock-in-trade

 The Company reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the 
respective carrying values and also review the inventories for obsolescence.

 (iii)    Levies, provision for income tax, sales tax and deferred tax

 The Company takes into account current income and sales tax laws and decisions taken by the 
appellate authorities. Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the 
authorities at the assessment stage and where the Company, in consultation with its external counsel, 
considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown 
as contingent liabilities (unless there is a remote possibility of transfer of benefits).

 Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax 
planning strategies. The management consider tax consequences that would follow from the manner 
in which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities.

 (iv)    Contingent liabilities

 The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent 
liabilities, which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s).

 (v)    Warranty obligations

 The Company, based on the tenure of warranty under the agreements with its customers and rate 
determined based on the availability of latest information, estimates the provision for warranty 
obligations. The actual warranty claims may differ from the estimated warranty provision held as 
above.

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 
 Operating fixed assets 4.1  1,661,271    1,787,613 
  Capital work-in-progress 4.5   33,740     1,540 
      1,695,011     1,789,153 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

4.1 Operating fixed assets

Owned

Freehold land 1,652   -    1,652   -   -     -     -     -    1,652 
Building on freehold land  713,809  712  714,521  10  204,114  50,975   -    255,089  459,432   
Plant and machinery  2,019,013  43,332  2,073,049   10 – 20  933,553  131,600   -    1,053,175  1,019,874   
      25,202*      -      
   (14,498)     (11,978)   
Furniture and fittings 31,807  1,329  32,528  15  20,179  1,926   -    21,586  10,942 
   (608)     (519)   
Vehicles  162,374  46,548  189,413  20  75,859  20,772   -    87,467  101,946 
   (19,509)     (9,164)   
Office equipment 10,863   -    11,444  20  5,952  991   -    6,943  4,501 
   581*       -      
Computer equipment 34,631  7,260  40,736  33  28,488  3,401   -    31,023  9,713 
   (1,155)     (866)   
Dies and tools 190,069  4,535  194,604  40  108,460  32,933   -    141,393  53,211 
  3,164,218  103,716  3,257,947   1,376,605  242,598   -    1,596,676  1,661,271 
   25,783*      -      
   (35,770)     (22,527)   
            
* represents transfers from capital work-in-progress to operating fixed assets.

As at
July 1,
 2024

Additions / 
transfer* / 
(disposals)

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
WRITTEN

DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2025

Depreciat-
ion rate As at 

July 1,
 2024

Charge
for the

year
(Note 4.2)

(On 
disposals)

As at 
June 30,

2025

As at
June 30,

2025

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 

Owned            
 
Freehold land 1,652   -    1,652  -  -     -     -     -    1,652 
Building on freehold land  303,836   -    713,809  10 162,439  41,675   -    204,114  509,695 
   409,973*        -      
Plant and machinery  1,638,702  15,286  2,019,013  10 – 20 808,490  135,157   -    933,553  1,085,460 
   384,052*        -      
   (19,027)     (10,094)   
Furniture and fittings 31,807   -    31,807  15 18,127  2,052   -    20,179  11,628 
Vehicles  136,597  39,098  162,374  20 63,073  19,712   -    75,859  86,515 
   632*         -      
   (13,953)     (6,926)   
Office equipment 6,664  4,199  10,863  20 5,162  790   -    5,952  4,911 
Computer equipment 37,315  1,392  34,631  33  29,617  2,806   -    28,488  6,143 
   (4,076)     (3,935)   
Dies and tools 102,628   -    190,069  40  81,433  27,401   -    108,460  81,609 
    87,815*        -      
    (374)      (374)   
  2,259,201  59,975  3,164,218   1,168,341  229,593   -    1,376,605  1,787,613 
   882,472*      -      
   (37,430)     (21,329)   

* represents transfers from capital work-in-progress to operating fixed assets.

As at
July 1,
 2023

Additions / 
transfer* / 
(disposals)

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
WRITTEN

DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2024

Depreciat-
ion rate As at 

July 1,
 2023

Charge
for the

year
(Note 4.2)

(On 
disposals)

As at 
June 30,

2024

As at
June 30,

2024

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 
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4.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:   
  
 Cost of sales 26  229,303   215,975 
 Distribution and marketing expenses 27  1,348   1,561 
 Administrative expenses 28  11,947   12,057 
    242,598   229,593

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note -----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

4.5 Capital work-in-progress    
     
 Plant and machinery   25,951   1,540 
 Vehicle   7,789   -   
  4.5.1  33,740   1,540 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

4.3 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. freehold land and building on freehold land) in the name of the 
Company are as follows:

4.5.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress during the year is as follows:   
     
 As at July 1   1,540   769,105 
 Capital expenditure incurred / advance paid during the year 4.5.2  57,983   114,907  
 Transferred to operating fixed assets during the year 4.1  (25,783)  (882,472)
 As at June 30   33,740   1,540 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
5 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS    
     
 As at July 1   2,376   2,227 
 Additions during the year 5.1  8,980   2,442 
 Depreciation charge for the year 5.2  (3,786)  (2,293)
 As at June 30   7,570   2,376 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
5.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:    
     
 Distribution and marketing expenses 27  793   793 
 Administrative expenses 28  2,993   1,500 
    3,786   2,293 

4.5.2 During the year, borrowing costs amounting to Nil (2024: Rs. 34.30 million) were capitalized using 
capitalisation rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.3% per annum on account of long-term financing obtained 
specifically for this purpose as fully mentioned in note 18.2 to these unconsolidated financial 
statements.

5.1 This represents renewal of lease contract for registered office located in Karachi. The Company has 
two lease arrangements for its offices (in Karachi and Lahore) in which rentals are payable in 
advance. The lease tenure of all rental premises ranges between 3 years to 3 years and 1 month.

4.4 Particulars of operating fixed asset having net book value of five hundred thousand rupees or more 
disposed off during the year are as follows:

                Location                                                                       Use of immoveable property    Total area
              Mouza Baroot, Hub Chowki, Distt. Lasbella, Balochistan.         Manufacturing facility            18.2 acres
              

Plant and machinery
Tube Cutting Machine 5,338 974 552 (422) Negotiation M/s. Noorani Trading 

Co.
Independent 
purchaser

Vehicles
Suzuki Cultus AGS 3,234 2,057 3,450 1,393 Insurance 

claim
Habib Insurance 
Company Limited

Insurer

Toyota Corolla Grande 4,005 1,784 1,784  –    Company Saeed Ahmed Employee
Policy

Toyota Yaris 1.3 CVT 3,781 2,672 4,100 1,428 Negotiation M/s. Clipsal Pakistan
(Private) Limited

Independent 
Purchaser

Toyota Yaris 1.3 CVT 2,695 1,289 1,289  –   Company Aqueel Ahmed Employee
Policy

Toyota Yaris 1.3 CVT 2,695 1,180 4,150  2,970 
    

Insurance 
claim

Habib Insurance 
Company Limited

Insurer

Toyota Yaris 1.5 CVT 3,005 1,315 1,490 175 
    

Company Akhter Jami Employee
Policy

 24,753  11,271  16,815  5,544 

Operating fixed assets  11,017  1,972  863  (1,109) Various Various
having WDV less than
Rs. 0.5 million

2025  35,770  13,243  17,678  4,435 

2024  37,430  16,101  24,700  8,599 

Sales
proceeds (loss)Cost Book

Value
Gain / Mode of

disposal Particulars of buyer Relationship

(Rupees in ‘000)

Particulars

 Licenses *  87,972   -     87,972  20  70,037   8,949   -     78,986   8,986 
 
 Software  26,880   450   27,330  20 - 33  11,200   5,388   -     16,588   10,742 
 
  114,852   450   115,302    81,237   14,337   -     95,574   19,728 

As at
July 1,
 2024

Additions/ 
(retirements)

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
WRITTEN

DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2025

Amortisation 
rate As at 

July 1,
 2024

Charge
for the

year
(Note 6.1)

(On 
retirements)

As at 
June 30,

2025
As at

June 30,
2025

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 

6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

94 Agriauto Industries Limited Annual Report 2025 95



Balance as at July 1, 2023 180,000  12,598  4,265,000  19,326  4,296,924  4,476,924 
        
Total comprehensive loss for the year        
   ended June 30, 2024        
   
Loss after taxation for the year  -     -     -    (275,718) (275,718) (275,718)
        
Other comprehensive income / (loss)        
   for the year  -     -     -    -     -     -     
 -    -    -    (275,718) (275,718) (275,718)
        
   
Balance as at June 30, 2024 180,000  12,598  4,265,000  (256,392) 4,021,206  4,201,206 
        
Total comprehensive income for the year        
   ended June 30, 2025        
  
Profit after taxation for the year  -     -     -    98,975  98,975  98,975 
        
Other comprehensive income / (loss)        
   for the year  -     -     -     -     -     -   
  -     -     -    98,975  98,975  98,975 
        
Balance as at June 30, 2025 180,000  12,598  4,265,000  (157,417) 4,120,181  4,300,181 
        
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.     
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-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

6.1 Amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:   
     
 Cost of sales 26  12,650   19,159 
 Distribution and marketing expenses 27  241   241 
 Administrative expenses 28  1,446   1,444 
    14,337   20,844 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

8 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS    
     
 Security deposits - considered good 8.1 & 8.2  11,265   11,022 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

7 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT    
     
 Investment in subsidiary company - at cost    
 Agriauto Stamping Company (Private) Limited    
          114,400,634 (2024: 114,400,634) ordinary    
          shares of Rs. 10/- each 7.1  1,144,006   1,144,006 

9 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET    
     
 Deductible temporary differences arising due to:     
 -   provisions   157,642   130,872 
 -   lease liabilities and right-of-use assets  244   30 
 -   unused business losses  164,617  165,004 
      
 Taxable temporary difference arising due to:     
 -   accelerated tax depreciation  (135,113)  (146,508)
    187,390   149,398 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
10 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS    
     
 Stores  100,840   90,629 
 Spares   73,403   72,353 
 Loose tools  6,624   6,854 
   180,867   169,836 
 Less: provision for obsolescence 10.1  (53,811)  (49,897)
   127,056  119,939 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
11 STOCK-IN-TRADE    
     
 Raw material 11.1 & 11.2  1,387,075   1,108,671 
 Less: provision for obsolescence 11.1  (95,347)  (207,090)
   1,291,728   901,581 
     
 Packing material   9,524   7,595 
 Less: provision for obsolescence 11.1  (813)  (570)
   8,711   7,025 
     
 Work-in-process  49,295   36,977 
     
 Finished goods  116,167   64,738 
 Less: provision for obsolescence 11.1  (7,600)  (4,198)
   108,567  60,540 
     
 Goods-in-transit  700,465   512,329 
   2,158,766  ` 1,518,452 

9.1 As of the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position, deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 
147.89 million (2024: Rs. 140.40 million) and Rs. 16.19 million (2024: Rs. 16.19 million) in respect of minimum 
tax credits and unused business losses have not been recognised in these unconsolidated financial 
statements based on the forecast of future taxable profits.

10.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 3.91 million (2024: Rs. 6.64 million) charged during the year in respect of 
provision for obsolescence.

 * This represents amount paid against licenses and technical fee for certain products / components 
that are being manufactured by the Company under technical service agreements with technical 
advisors.

7.1 This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiary incorporated on January 20, 2012 as a private 
limited company. The subsidiary company is engaged in the business of stamping of sheet metal 
parts, dies and fixtures primarily for the automotive industry. The registered office of the subsidiary 
company is situated at 5th Floor, House of Habib, 3 Jinnah Cooperative Housing Society, Block 7/8, 
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

8.1 This represent interest free deposits with suppliers having no fixed maturity. Fair value of these 
deposits is not considered to be materially different from the amortised cost.

8.2 This includes long-term deposit held with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company, 
amounting to Rs. 0.03 million (2024: Rs. 0.03 million).

 Licenses *  88,389   (417)  87,972  20  54,986   15,468   (417)  70,037   17,935 
 
 Software  26,880   -     26,880  20  5,824   5,376   -     11,200   15,680 
 
  115,269   (417)  114,852    60,810   20,844   (417)  81,237   33,615 

As at
July 1,
 2023

Additions/ 
(retirements)

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
WRITTEN

DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2024

Amortisation 
rate As at 

July 1,
 2023

Charge
for the

year
(Note 6.1)

(On 
retirements)

As at 
June 30,

2024

As at
June 30,

2024

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 
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12 TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED    
     
 Considered good 12.2 & 12.3  894,907   803,121 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

 Not yet due*  868,259   772,970 
 Upto 1 month  16,634   25,839 
 1 to 2 months  8,929   669 
 3 to 6 months  760   3,580 
 More than 6 months  325   63 
   894,907   803,121 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

13 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES   
   

 Advances - unsecured, considered good    
 Contractors  2,155   4,380 
 Employees  5,722   1,008 
 Suppliers  3,576   5,278 
   11,453   10,666 
     
 Deposits 13.1  17,382   27,409 
 Prepayments    
 Insurance  6,339   9,717 
 Software maintenance  12,079   5,528 
   18,418  15,245 
 Other receivables - secured, considered good 13.2, 13.3 & 13.4  318,555   241,332 
   365,808   294,652 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS    
 
 At amortised cost    
 Term deposit receipts 14.1  38,000   38,000 
 Accrued profit thereon  282   1,526 
   38,282   39,526 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES    
     
 In hand  8  8 
     
 With banks in    
 -   current accounts  6,067  55,060 
 -   deposit accounts 15.1  33,710   75,970 
   39,777   131,030 
   39,785   131,038 

13.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 14.07 million (2024: Rs. 24.58  million) given against letter of credit and 
letter of guarantee margin deposits, out of which Rs. 0.78 million (2024: Rs. 14 million) are held with 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company.

13.2 This includes Rs. 226.77 million (2024: Rs. 226.77 million) in respect of claim against Additional Custom 
Duty (ACD) (as disclosed in note 20.6) from a customer.

13.3 This includes an amount of Rs. 2.09 million (2024: Rs. 5.01 million) accrued profit on deposit accounts 
held with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company.

13.4 This includes receivable from the Subsidiary Company amounting to Rs. 63.22 in respect of group tax 
adjustment made during the year.

14.1 These represent three months term deposit receipts, marked as lien with a commercial bank against 
long-term financing and bank guarantees, carrying markup rate of 5.75% (2024: 18.25% to 18.85%) per 
annum and having maturity latest by September 11, 2025.

15.1 This represent balances in deposit accounts maintained with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - 
associated company under interest / mark-up arrangements. These carry interest at the rate of 9.50% 
(2024: 20.50%) per annum.

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

11.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 108.09 million (2024: charge of Rs. 30.16 million) in respect of reversal of  
provision for obsolescence and also includes an amount of Rs. 3.34 million (2024: Rs. 2.71 million) 
charged in respect of write down of inventory to its NRV during the year.

11.2 As at the reporting date, raw materials amounting to Rs. 30.85 million (2024: Rs. 61.76 million) were held 
with the sub-contractors.

12.1 These include balance due from various customers for whom there is no recent history of write off. The 
ageing analysis of these trade debtors is as follows:

 * Balances upto 30 - 60 days from the invoice date are shown under not yet due.

12.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 0.04 million (2024: Rs. 0.002 million) and Rs. 3.94 million (2024: Rs. 0.26 
million) receivable from Agriauto Stamping Company (Private) Limited – a wholly owned subsidiary 
and Thal Boshoku Pakistan (Private) Limited - associated company respectively, against sales made 
by the Company.

12.3 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from the related parties at the end of any month during 
the year was Rs. 11.73 million (2024: Rs. 6.55 million).

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 20242025 2024

(Number of shares in '000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each

Issued as bonus shares
Fully paid in cash

36,000
13,200
22,800

180,000
66,000
114,000

36,000
13,200
22,800

180,000
66,000
114,000
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 Lease liabilities  8,412   2,480 
 Current maturity of lease liabilities   (3,476)  (574)
  17.1  4,936   1,906 
    
17.1 Movement of lease liabilities    
 As at July 1  2,480  3,387 
 Addition during the year  8,980  2,363 
 Finance cost charged during the year  1,516  177 
 Payments made during the year  (4,564) (3,447)
 As at June 30 17.2  8,412  2,480 
 
 Current maturity of lease liabilities  (3,476) (574)
   4,936  1,906 
     
17.2 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at the reporting 
 date is as follows:    
     
 Up to 1 year  3,476  574 
 1 to 3 years  4,936  1,906 
 Total lease liabilities  8,412  2,480 

18 LONG-TERM FINANCINGS - SECURED    
     
 SBP refinance scheme for renewable energy 18.1  38,567   44,628 
 Current maturity of long-term financing  (4,538)  (6,148)
   34,029  38,480 
     
 Long-term financing 18.2  267,878   333,405 
 Current maturity of long-term financing   (82,462) (77,467)
   185,416  255,938 
  18.3  219,445   294,418

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note -----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

18.3 Movement of long-term financings during the year is as follows:   
     
 As at July 1  378,033  469,134 
 Repayments made during the year (including interest)  (119,897)  (177,863)
 Accretion of interest during the year  48,309  86,762 
 As at June 30  306,445  378,033 
     
 Current maturity of long-term financing  (87,000) (83,615)
   219,445  294,418 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
19 DEFERRED INCOME     
     
 Deferred income 19.1  15,199   17,458 
 Current maturity of deferred income  (2,251) (2,259)
   12,948  15,199 

18.1 This represents long-term financing facility obtained from a conventional bank under State Bank of 
Pakistan (SBP) refinance scheme for renewable energy, recognised initially at fair value. The total 
facility amounts to Rs. 90 million and carries contractual mark-up at the rate of 2% plus 0.75% (2024: 
2% plus 0.75%) per annum payable quarterly. The effective mark-up rate as calculated with reference 
to fair value of the loan ranges from 10.02% to 16.30% (2024: 10.02% to 16.30%) per annum. The tenure of 
this facility is ten years and is due to mature latest by September 29, 2032. The facility is secured 
against first specific hypothecation charge over plant and machinery related to the solar power 
project for the disbursed amount in addition to margin of 15% to be secured against liquid collateral 
(Term Deposit Receipts as fully mentioned in note 14.1) held under lien. As at June 30, 2025, the 
unutilised portion of the facility amounts to Nil (2024: Nil).

18.2 This represents long-term financing facility obtained from a conventional bank to refinance capital 
expenditure incurred by the Company, with a total limit of Rs. 500 million (2024: Rs 500 million) at a 
markup rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.3% (2024: 3 months KIBOR + 0.3%) payable on quarterly basis. The 
tenure of this facility is six years, including grace period of one year and is due to mature latest by July 
3, 2028. This facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation / first charge over present and future 
fixed assets (excluding land and building) of the Company with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, the 
unutilised portion of the facility amounts to Nil (2024: Nil).

18.4 In accordance with the long term financing agreement between the Company and a commercial 
bank, the Company is required to comply with the following financial thresholds over the tenure of the 
loan agreement.

 Financial covenants  Thresholds 
  

 Debt Service Cover Ratio  At least 1.25:1  
Interest Coverage Ratio  At least 1.25:1  
Current Ratio  At least 1:1  
 

 The Company has complied with the above financial covenants as at the reporting date.

16.1 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares 
are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at 
general meetings of the Company.

16.2 Share premium reserve can be utilised by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 
of the Companies Act, 2017.

16.3 The purpose of general reserves includes, but not limited to, fulfilling various business needs like 
meeting contingencies, enhancing the working capital, etc.

16.4 As at the reporting date, 2,644,500 shares (2024: 2,644,500 shares) are held by Thal Limited - 
associated company.

17 LEASE LIABILITIES   
   
The Company has two lease arrangements for its offices (in Karachi and Lahore) in which rentals are 
payable in advance. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of the Company is 20.50% 
(2024: 21.39%) per annum.
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19.1 Movement of deferred income during the year is as follows:    
     
 As at July 1   17,458   20,384 
 Amortisation during the year 31  (2,259) (2,926)
 As at June 30  15,199  17,458 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES    
     
 Trade creditors 20.1  534,446   419,971 
 Accrued liabilities 20.2 & 20.3  625,226   463,730 
 Royalty payable 20.4  31,615   23,430 
 Advance from customers (contract liabilities) 25.1  1,190   1,539 
 Additional Custom Duty payable 20.6  291,103   291,103 
 Payable to provident fund 20.7  5,289   4,705 
 Withholding tax payable  1,990  11,956 
 Others  8,393  18,094 
   1,499,252   1,234,528 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
20.4 Movement of royalty payable during the year is as follows:    
     
 As at July 1  23,430  32,124 
 Charge for the year 20.5  36,274   29,511 
 Payments made during the year  (28,089) (38,205)
 As at June 30  31,615  23,430 
     
    
20.5 Royalties paid during the year comprise of the following:

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
21 WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS    
     
 Warranty obligations 21.1 & 21.2  130,730  126,762 
     
   
21.1 Movement in warranty obligations during the year is as follows:   
     
 As at July 1  126,762  127,504 
 Charge for the year - net 27  12,042  9,563 
 Claims paid during the year  (8,074) (10,305)
 As at June 30  130,730  126,762 

20.6 This represents Additional Custom Duty (ACD) payable to the Customs Authorities (Federal Board of 
Revenue) on import of certain raw materials. The provision has been maintained in respect of ACD 
levied under SRO 670 (I)/2019 dated June 28, 2019 at enhanced rates upto June 30, 2021. The Company 
is contesting levy of ACD under SRO 670 (I)/2019 dated June 28, 2019 and has filed a petition in the 
Honorable High Court of Sindh (the Court) against the aforesaid additional levy. The Court has 
granted a stay order after the submission of Corporate Guarantees by the Company amounting to Rs. 
288 million (2024: Rs. 288 million) with the Court.  
   
The Company has recorded a receivable from a customer, on the basis of comfort letter, amounting 
to Rs. 226.77 million (2024: Rs. 226.77 million) in respect of the ACD payable as disclosed in note 13.2. 
 

20.7 Investments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out of provident 
funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the rules 
formulated for this purpose.

19.2 This represents deferred income recognised in respect of the benefit of below-market interest rate on 
long-term financing as disclosed in note 18.1. The benefit has been measured as the difference 
between the fair value of the loan and the proceeds received. The Company has used the prevailing 
market rate of mark-up for similar instruments to calculate fair value of the respective loan.

20.1 This includes payable to Agriauto Stamping Company (Private) Limited - a wholly owned subsidiary 
amounting to Rs. 0.36 million (2024: Rs. 22.95 million).

20.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 55.54 million (2024: Rs. 42.27 million) in respect of sales incentive 
payable to distributors.

20.3 This also includes an amount of Rs. 381.25 million (2024: Rs. 301.09 million) in respect of Sindh 
Infrastructure Development Cess, for which guarantees amounting to Rs. 352.15 million (2024: Rs. 266.15 
million) have been provided with commercial banks.  
   
In 2021, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) through its order dated September 1, 2021 has 
directed to the parties involved in the case that till further orders of the SCP, the operation of the 
impugned judgement of the High Court of Sindh (SHC) dated June 4, 2021 which validated Sindh 
Infrastructure Development Cess (SIDC) and its recovery shall remain suspended. The SCP's order 
further stated that the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already submitted with the 
Government of Sindh and shall furnish fresh bank guarantees of SIDC against release of all future 
consignments of imported goods (as disclosed in note 24.2.1). The Company continues to accrue the 
SIDC.

Name

KYB Corporation World Trade Center Building 4-1,
Hamamatsu-Cho 2 Chome,
Minato-Ku, Tokyo 105 Japan Technical Partner  27,585 

Aisin Seiki Co., Ltd 2-1, Asahi-Machi, Kariya, Aichi,
448-8650, Japan Technical Partner  504 

2025
(Rupees in ‘000)

Beneficiary    
   

Address Relationship with
the Company

2024

 36,854 

 1,351 
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23 SHORT-TERM FINANCES - SECURED    
     
 Conventional     
    Running finance facility  547,155   202,592 
    Accrued interest thereon  19,758   23,130 
  23.1  566,913   225,722 
 Islamic     
    Musawamah  143,237  59,361 
    Accrued profit thereon  1,507  300 
  23.2  144,744  59,661 
 
    Import Murabaha  90,086  -   
    Accrued profit thereon  471   -   
  23.3  90,557   -   
 
    Tijarah  -    54,000 
    Accrued profit thereon  -    2,020 
   -    56,020 
   802,214   341,403 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
24.2 Commitments    
     
 Outstanding bank guarantees 24.2.2 & 24.2.3 359,424  273,424 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
25 TURNOVER – net    
     
 Gross sales    
 Local sales  9,107,490   6,964,821 
 Export sales 25.2  43,958   28,196 
    9,151,448   6,993,017 
 Less: sales tax   (1,389,278)  (1,065,790)
 Revenue from contracts with customers   7,762,170   5,927,227 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

25.2 Region wise export sales are as under:    
     
 United Arab Emirates   43,958   28,196 

23.3 This represents short-term financing facility (Murabaha) obtained from an Islamic bank for financing 
the working capital requirements of the Company. The facility has a total limit of Rs. 250 million (2024: 
Nil). These carry mark-up at the rate of matching tenure KIBOR + 0.17% per annum. The facility can be 
drawn and settled in tranches with maximum tenure of 180 days. The current drawn amount is 
payable by December 10, 2025. The facility is secured by way of first joint pari passu hypothecation 
charge over present and future stock-in-trade and trade debts of the Company with 25% margin. As 
at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is Rs. 159.91 million (2024: Nil).

24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 Contingencies

24.1.1 Income tax related contingencies are disclosed in note 33.4.

24.2.2 This includes bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 200 million (2024: Rs. 114 million) obtained from Habib 
Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company.

24.2.3 This also includes bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 6.89 million (2024: Rs. 6.89 million) issued to the 
Collector of Customs in respect of custom duty.

24.2.4 Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit for raw material amounts to Rs. 317.35 million 
(2024: Rs. 1,000.83 million), out of which Rs. 41.70 million (2024: Rs. 417 million) is outstanding with Habib 
Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company as at June 30, 2025.

24.2.5 Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit for capital expenditure amounts to Rs. 33.65 
million (2024: Rs. 2.74 million), out of which Rs. 3.28 million (2024: Rs. 2.08 million) is outstanding with 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company as at June 30, 2025.

25.1 Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers (contract liabilities) at the 
beginning of the year amounted to Rs. 0.64 million (2024: Rs. 150.0 million).

21.2 This represents Company's best estimate of the amount required to be paid / settled to cover the 
potential warranty claims based on the historical experience.  

22 UNPAID DIVIDEND AND UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND  
   
The Company has opened separate bank accounts for unclaimed / unpaid dividends as required 
under the provision of section 244 of the Act and the required amounts have been transferred in such 
accounts accordingly.

23.1 This represents short-term running finance obtained from various commercial banks including short 
term running finance amounting to Rs. 112.99 million (2024: Rs. 3.38 million) availed from Habib 
Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company. The total facility limit amounts to Rs. 1,190 million 
(2024: Rs. 1,240 million). The rate of mark-up on these finances ranges from 1 month to 3 months KIBOR 
plus spreads varying from 0.2% to 0.75% (2024: 1 month to 3 months KIBOR plus spreads varying from 
0.10% to 0.75%) per annum. The facilities are secured by way of first pari passu and ranking 
hypothecation charge on the Company’s stock-in-trade, stores, spares, loose tools and trade debts 
and will mature latest by March 31, 2026.

23.2 This represents short-term financing facility (Musawamah) obtained from an Islamic bank for 
financing the working capital requirements of the Company. The facility has a total limit of Rs. 250 
million (2024: Rs. 250 million). These carry mark-up at the rate of matching tenure KIBOR + 0.5% per 
annum. The facility can be drawn and settled in tranches with maximum tenure of 180 days. The 
current drawn amount is payable by November 30, 2025. The facility is secured by way of first joint pari 
passu hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-trade and trade debts of the Company 
with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is Rs. 106.76 million (2024: 
Rs.190.64 million).
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26 COST OF SALES    
     
 Raw material consumed    
    Opening stock  901,581   1,458,560 
     Purchases   5,900,895   3,430,991 
     Raw materials available for consumption   6,802,476   4,889,551 
     Closing stock 11  (1,291,728)  (901,581)
    5,510,748   3,987,970 
 Manufacturing expenses    
     Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1  789,517   637,900 
     Stores, spares and loose tools consumed   350,562   284,052 
     Utilities  201,996   178,407 
     Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1  12,650   19,159 
     Royalty 20.4  36,274   29,511 
     Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4.2  229,303   215,975  
     Transportation and travelling   158,660   139,828 
     Repairs and maintenance   101,078   67,398 
     Packing material consumed   50,427   47,128 
     Rates and taxes   875   275 
     Research costs   8,164   2,045 
     Insurance   4,398   4,343 
     Communications and professional fee   4,486   2,178 
     Printing and stationery   1,679   1,504 
     Legal and professional charges   1,384   2,875 
     Others   2,920  269 
    1,954,373   1,632,847 
 
 Work-in-process    
     Opening stock   36,977   72,252 
     Closing stock 11  (49,295)  (36,977)
    (12,318)  35,275 
 
 Cost of goods manufactured   7,452,803   5,656,092 
 
 Finished goods    
     Opening stock   60,540   123,850 
     Closing stock 11  (108,567)  (60,540)
    (48,027)  63,310 
    7,404,776   5,719,402 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note -----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
27 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES    
     
 Salaries, wages and benefits 27.1  24,101   16,106 
 Advertisement and sales promotion   58,628   42,932 
 Carriage and forwarding   68,564   50,326 
 Travelling and conveyance   2,484   2,799 
 Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4.2  1,348   1,561 
 Depreciation on right-of-use assets 5.2  793  793 
 Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1  241   241 
 Charge / (reversal) for warranty claims 21.1  12,042   9,563 
 Communications   461   139 
 Insurance   2,893   2,611 
 Repairs and maintenance   201   290 
 Others   828   1,969 
    172,584   129,330 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
28 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    
     
 Salaries, wages and benefits 28.1  153,283   110,655 
 Legal and professional charges   60,403   49,592 
 Travelling and conveyance   25,251   23,793 
 Repairs and maintenance   32,080   34,165 
 Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4.2  11,947   12,057 
 Depreciation on right-of-use assets 5.2  2,993   1,500 
 Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1  1,446   1,444 
 Security services   11,387   12,153 
 Communications and professional fee   2,204   1,057 
 Printing and stationery   3,061   1,903 
 Rates and taxes   134   202 
 Utilities   2,142   1,671 
 Auditors' remuneration 28.2  4,440   3,474 
 Insurance   1,813   1,845 
 Others   5,783   5,739 
    318,367   261,250 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

28.2 Auditors' remuneration    
     
 Audit fee for unconsolidated financial statements   1,820   1,400 
 Audit fee for consolidated financial statements   520   400 
 Fee for review of half yearly financial statements   325   250 
 Fee for other certifications   1,072   875 
 Out of pocket expenses   374   292 
 Sindh Sales Tax   329   257 
    4,440   3,474 

28.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 3.69 million (2024: Rs. 2.96 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
26.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 13.71 million (2024: Rs. 12.98 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

27.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 0.84 million (2024: Rs. 0.7 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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29 OTHER EXPENSES    
     
 Exchange loss on foreign currency transactions - net   32,596   -   
 Donations 29.1 & 29.2  2,219   2,928 
 Trade debts written off   840   -   
 Sales tax receivable written off  -     428 
    35,655   3,356 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

30 OTHER INCOME    
     
 Income from financial assets    
     
 Profit / interest on:    
        - short-term investments - term deposit receipts   3,884   7,223 
        - deposit accounts 30.1  22,826   1,783 
    26,710   9,006 
 
 Exchange gain on foreign currency transactions - net   -     2,518 
 Dividend income from subsidiary company   343,202   -   
    369,912   11,524 
 
 Income from non-financial assets    
 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 4.4  4,435   8,599 
 Liabilities no longer payable - written back   33,062   -   
 Scrap sales   8,247   9,420 
 Rebate on export sales   676   -   
 Miscellaneous income  4,066   3,000 
    50,486   21,019 
    420,398   32,543 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

 Indus Hospital & Health Network   1,000   1,000 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
31 FINANCE COSTS    
     
 Interest / profit on:    
 - long-term financings   48,309   55,148 
 - short-term running finance   99,950   59,365 
 - lease liabilities   1,516   177 
 Bank charges and commission   6,299   1,826 
 Amortisation of deferred income 19.1  (2,259)  (2,926)
    153,815   113,590 
    
32 LEVIES (MINIMUM TAX AND FINAL TAX)    
     
 Minimum tax u/s 113   96,416   73,738 
 Final tax u/s 154   -     282 
 Prior   -     30 
    96,416   74,050 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
33 TAXATION

 Current tax - expense    
 For the year  -     -   
 For prior   3,195  -   
    3,195   -   
 Deferred tax - income 9 & 13.4  (101,215)  (65,490) 
    (98,020)  (65,490)

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

 Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws  99,611  74,050 
 Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing     
     income tax under IAS 12   3,195   -   
 Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws, representing     
    levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 32 96,416  74,050 
 Difference    -     -   

33.1 Reconciliation of current tax charge as per tax laws for the year, with total tax expense recognised in 
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, is as follows:

29.1 Donation to the following party exceeds 10% of the Company’s total donations or Rs. 1 million, 
whichever is higher:

29.2 None of the donations were made to any donee in which a director or their spouse had any interest at 
any time during the year.

30.1 Represents interest earned from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company, under 
conventional banking relationship.

32.1 This represents minimum and final tax paid under section 113 and 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, recorded as levy in terms of the requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37.

33.2 During the year, provision for current taxation is based on minimum tax regime (2024: minimum and 
final tax regime). Accordingly, the reconciliation between accounting profit / (loss) and tax expense 
has not been presented in these unconsolidated financial statements.

33.3 Income tax returns of the Company have been submitted up to tax year 2024 on self-assessment 
basis under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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 Profit / (loss) after taxation for the year (Rs. in '000)   98,975   (275,718)    
     Weighted average number of ordinary shares      
 outstanding during the year (shares in '000)   36,000   36,000 
         Earning / (loss) per share (Rs.)   2.75   (7.66)

2025 2024

Owned

Freehold land 1,652   -    1,652   -   -     -     -     -    1,652 
Building on freehold land  713,809  712  714,521  10  204,114  50,975   -    255,089  459,432   
Plant and machinery  2,019,013  43,332  2,073,049   10 – 20  933,553  131,600   -    1,053,175  1,019,874   
      25,202*      -      
   (14,498)     (11,978)   
Furniture and fittings 31,807  1,329  32,528  15  20,179  1,926   -    21,586  10,942 
   (608)     (519)   
Vehicles  162,374  46,548  189,413  20  75,859  20,772   -    87,467  101,946 
   (19,509)     (9,164)   
Office equipment 10,863   -    11,444  20  5,952  991   -    6,943  4,501 
   581*       -      
Computer equipment 34,631  7,260  40,736  33  28,488  3,401   -    31,023  9,713 
   (1,155)     (866)   
Dies and tools 190,069  4,535  194,604  40  108,460  32,933   -    141,393  53,211 
  3,164,218  103,716  3,257,947   1,376,605  242,598   -    1,596,676  1,661,271 
   25,783*      -      
   (35,770)     (22,527)   
            
* represents transfers from capital work-in-progress to operating fixed assets.

Owned            
 
Freehold land 1,652   -    1,652  -  -     -     -     -    1,652 
Building on freehold land  303,836   -    713,809  10 162,439  41,675   -    204,114  509,695 
   409,973*        -      
Plant and machinery  1,638,702  15,286  2,019,013  10 – 20 808,490  135,157   -    933,553  1,085,460 
   384,052*        -      
   (19,027)     (10,094)   
Furniture and fittings 31,807   -    31,807  15 18,127  2,052   -    20,179  11,628 
Vehicles  136,597  39,098  162,374  20 63,073  19,712   -    75,859  86,515 
   632*         -      
   (13,953)     (6,926)   
Office equipment 6,664  4,199  10,863  20 5,162  790   -    5,952  4,911 
Computer equipment 37,315  1,392  34,631  33  29,617  2,806   -    28,488  6,143 
   (4,076)     (3,935)   
Dies and tools 102,628   -    190,069  40  81,433  27,401   -    108,460  81,609 
    87,815*        -      
    (374)      (374)   
  2,259,201  59,975  3,164,218   1,168,341  229,593   -    1,376,605  1,787,613 
   882,472*      -      
   (37,430)     (21,329)   

* represents transfers from capital work-in-progress to operating fixed assets.

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
35 CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS    
     
 Profit / (loss) before income tax   955   (341,208)
     
 Adjustments for:    
     Depreciation and amortisation 4, 5 & 6  260,721   252,730 
     Levies (minimum tax and final tax) 32  96,416   74,050 
     Finance costs 31  147,516   113,590 
     Sales tax receivable written off 29  -     428 
     Trade debts written off 29  840   -   
     Liabilities no longer payable - written back 30  (33,062)  -   
     Profit / interest on deposit accounts 30  (22,826)  (1,783)
     Profit / interest on short-term investments 
         - term deposit receipts 30  (3,884)  (7,223)
     Charge for warranty claims 21.1  12,042   9,563 
     Provision for royalty 20.4  36,274   29,511 
     Dividend income 30  (343,202)  -   
     (Reversal) / provision for obsolescence   (104,184)  33,643 
     Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 30  (4,435)  (8,599)
    42,216   495,910 
 
    43,171   154,702 
 (Increase) / decrease in current assets    
     Stores, spares and loose tools   (11,031)  9,364 
     Stock-in-trade   (532,216)  236,599 
     Trade debts - unsecured   (92,626)  (297,629)
     Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables   (7,869)  48,755 
    (643,742)  (2,911)
 
 Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities    
     Trade and other payables   311,418   33,950 
     Sales tax payable   (53,092)  19,710 
    258,326   53,660 
   (342,245)  205,451 

33.4 Description of income tax proceedings:

(a) During FY 2024, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), Large Taxpayers’ Office, amended 
the deemed assessment order of the Company for the tax year 2021. An order was passed, resulting in 
a demand of Rs. 2.23 million, as against refundable balance of Rs. 86.86 million claimed in the tax 
return, on account of incorrect adjustment of minimum tax brought forward u/s 113(2)(c) amounting 
to Rs. 78.67 million (including Rs. 22.37 million minimum tax brought forward u/s 113(2)(c) of the 
Subsidiary Company) and certain other inadmissible expenses claimed in the said tax year's return. 

 The Company preferred an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] 
against the said order of ACIR. The CIR(A) passed an order dated January 4, 2024 and confirmed the 
order of ACIR. The Company has challenged the decision of CIR(A) before the Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is yet to be fixed for hearing. 

 During the current year, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated May 2, 2025, in 
a similar case to that of the Holding Company, has decided the matter of minimum tax carried 
forward adjustment prior to TY 2022 in favour of the tax department. The management has 
maintained a provision for the above minimum tax adjustment amounting to Rs. 78.67 million in these 
unconsolidated financial statements.

(b) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an order under section 4B of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 (‘the Ordinance’) for the tax year 2017 raising a demand of Rs. 34.45 million taking into 
consideration the group income without appreciating that the subsidiary of the Company was 
allowed a tax credit under section 65D of the Ordinance. The Company preferred an appeal before 
the CIR(A) against the order of DCIR who partially confirmed the action of DCIR and gave relief on 
certain grounds. The Company, has challenged the order of CIR(A) before ATIR which is yet to be fixed 
for hearing. The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has not recorded any provision 
in respect of this matter in these unconsolidated financial statements as they believe that the matter 
will be decided in their favour.

34 EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE – basic and diluted  
   
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning / (loss) per share of the Company, which is based on:
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-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
37 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    
     
 Cash and bank balances 15  39,785   131,038 
 Short-term running finances 23  (566,913)  (225,722)
   (527,128)  (94,684)
38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT    
     
38.1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY    
     
 Financial assets at amortised cost    
     
 Long-term deposits 8  11,265   11,022 
 Trade debts - unsecured 12  894,907   803,121 
 Deposits and other receivables 13  335,937   268,741 
 Short-term investments 14  38,282   39,526 
 Cash and bank balances 15  39,785   131,038 
   1,320,176   1,253,448 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost    
     
 Lease liabilities 17  8,412   2,480 
 Long-term financing - secured 18  306,445   378,033 
 Trade and other payables 20  574,454   461,495 
 Unpaid dividend 22  -     3,819 
 Unclaimed dividend 22  33,701   30,113 
 Short-term finance - secured 23  802,214   341,403 
   1,725,226   1,217,343 

38.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  
   
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risks, credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which 
are summarised below:

38.2.1 Market risk   
   
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due 
to changes in market variables. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate 
risk and other price risk. The Company manages its market risk by monitoring exposure on financial 
instruments and by following internal risk management policies.

(i) Interest rate risk   
   
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of change in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of change in market 
interest rate relates primarily to the Company's liability against long-term financing and short-term 
finance with floating interest rates. The Company manages its risk by ensuring minimal utilisation of 
interest bearing financing.   
 

 Interest rate profile of financial instruments
 
 At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments 

were as follows:

 As at July 1   395,491   33,932   2,480 
      

Changes from financing cash flows     
Dividend paid during the year   -     (231)  -   

 Payments made during the year 17.1  -     -     (4,564)
 Long-term financings repaid during      

the year (including interest thereon) 18.3  (119,897)  -     -   
    (119,897)  (231)  (4,564)      

Other changes     
Addition of lease during the year 17.1  -     -     8,980 

 Amortisation of deferred income 
    during the year 19.1  (2,259)  -     -   
 Accretion of interest during the year 18.3 & 17.1  48,309   -     1,516 
   46,050   -     10,496 
      

As at June 30   321,644   33,701   8,412 

------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------

2025
Long-term 
financing - 

secured 
(including 

deferred income)

Unclaimed 
and unpaid 

dividend
Lease

liabilities

2024

 As at July 1    489,518     34,414    3,387 
` 
 Changes from financing cash flows     

Dividend paid during the year   -      (482)  -   
 Payments made during the year 17.1  -     -      (3,447)
 Long-term financings repaid during      

the year (including interest thereon) 18.3   (177,863)  -     -   
     (177,863)  (482)   (3,447)
 Other changes     

Addition of lease during the year 17.1  -     -      2,363 
  Amortisation of deferred income 
    during the year 19.1   (2,926)  -     -   
 Accretion of interest during the year 18.3 & 17.1  86,762    -     177 
    83,836    -      2,540 

  As at June 30    395,491   33,932   2,480 
 

------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------

Long-term 
financing - 

secured 
(including 

deferred income)

Unclaimed 
and unpaid 

dividend
Lease

liabilities

Note

36 CHANGES IN LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
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-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
 Financial assets at amortised cost    
     
 Short-term investments 14  38,282   39,526 
 Bank balances 15  33,710   75,970 
   71,992   115,496 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost    
     
 Lease liabilities 17  8,412   2,480 
 Long-term financing 18  306,445   378,033 
 Short-term finance - secured 23  802,214   341,403 
   1,117,071   721,916 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

 Effect of 1% increase in interest rate on profit / (loss) before tax   (10,451) (6,064)
 Effect of 1% decrease in interest rate on profit / (loss) before tax   10,451   6,064 `

----- (FCY in '000) -----
2025 2024

 USD    
 Trade and other payables  981   808 
     
 JPY    
 Trade and other payables  41,716   4,084 
     
 CNY    
 Trade and other payables  956  1,643 
     

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting 
    date is as follows:    
     
 Long-term deposits 8  11,265   11,022 
 Trade debts - unsecured 12  894,907   803,121 
 Deposits and other receivables 13  335,937   268,741 
 Short-term investments 14  38,282   39,526 
 Bank balances 15  39,777   131,030 
   1,320,168   1,253,440 

 Sensitivity analysis   
   
A ten percent strengthening / weakening of the Pakistani Rupee against the above foreign currencies 
at the reporting date would increase / (decrease) profit before tax for the year by Rs. 39.83 million 
(2024: Rs. 29.49 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, 
remain constant.   

(iii) Other price risk   
   
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from foreign currency risk 
and interest risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instruments, or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As 
at June 30, 2025, the Company is not exposed to the price risk.  
 

38.2.2 Credit risk   
   
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  
   
The Company is exposed to credit risk mainly on trade debts, short-term investments, long-term 
deposits, short-term deposits, other receivables and bank balances.

 The credit quality of financial assets other than bank balances and short-term investments can be 
assessed with reference to their historical performance with no write off in recent history. The ageing 
analysis of trade debts is given in note 12.1.  
   
The credit quality of the Company’s bank balances and short-term investments can be assessed with 
reference to external credit ratings as follows:

 Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments  
   
A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rate at the reporting date would have changed the 
Company's profit / (loss) before tax for the year by the amounts shown below, with all other variables 
held constant.

(ii) Foreign currency risk   
   
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to a change 
in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in 
foreign currencies. The Company manages its foreign currency risk through taking cover, if any, in 
accordance with its approved risk management policy. The Company's exposure to foreign currency 
risk at the reporting date is as follows:

(Decrease) / Increase

USD  283.76   278.34   279.36   283.17 
JPY  1.97   1.73   1.87   1.89 
EUR  332.66   297.69   304.01   306.00 
CNY  39.60  38.31   38.72   39.23 
AED  77.27   75.78   76.06   77.10 

2025 202420242025

Statement of financial
position date rate Average rate

 The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
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-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

 Debt  1,117,071   721,916 
     
 Equity  4,300,181   4,201,206 
     
 Gearing ratio  25.98% 17.18%

39 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT   
   
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, 
strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for 
its existing and potential investment projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of 
capital. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes 
in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust 
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. As 
of the unconsolidated statement of financial position date, the debt to equity ratio is as follows:

40 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT      

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current 
market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique.     

 The different levels of fair valuation method have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
   

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for                   
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

 For trade debts, long-term deposits, short-term deposits and other receivables, the internal risk 
assessment process determines the credit quality of each counter party, taking into account their 
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or 
external ratings in accordance with limits set by management. The utilisation of credit limits is 
regularly monitored. Accordingly, the management believes that the credit risk is minimal and in the 
opinion of the management, the Company is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 

38.2.3 Liquidity risk   
   
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet 
commitments associated with financial instruments. Management of the Company believes that it is 
not exposed to any significant level of liquidity risk.  
   
Management forecasts the liquidity of the Company on the basis of expected cashflow considering 
the level of liquid assets necessary to mitigate the liquidity risk. The table below summarises the 
maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date:

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Faysal Bank Limited 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 
Habib Bank Limited 
National Bank of Pakistan 
Meezan Bank Limited 
Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan 
United Bank Limited 
Bank Al-Habib Limited 
The Bank of Punjab Limited 

PACRA
PACRA

VIS
PACRA

VIS
PACRA

VIS
PACRA
PACRA

 -   
 75,970 
 40,226 

 899 
 1,877 

 50,578 
 20 

 -   
 986 

 1,427 
 33,701 

 38,282 
 591 
 376 
 932 
 525 

 1,376 
 848 

Bank Rating Agency

A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+

Rating 

 Non-interest bearing
 financial liabilities
 Trade and other payables 574,454   -     574,454   -     574,454 
 Unclaimed dividend 33,701   33,701   -     -     33,701 
        

Interest bearing        
financial liabilities       
Lease liabilities 8,412   -     4,374   5,017   9,391 

 Long-term financings 306,445   -     117,360   259,739   377,099 
 Short-term finances - secured 802,214   566,913   244,162   -     811,075 
   1,725,226  600,614   940,350   264,756   1,805,720 

-------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------

 Total 2025
Contractual cashflows

Carrying 
amount  On 

demand 
 Not later than

 one year 
 Later than
 one year 

 Non-interest bearing        
financial liabilities       
Trade and other payables 461,495   -     461,495   -     461,495 

 Unpaid dividend  3,819   3,819   -     -     3,819 
 Unclaimed dividend 30,113   30,113   -     -     30,113 
        

Interest bearing        
financial liabilities       
Lease liabilities 2,480   -     977   2,256   3,233 

 Long-term financings 378,033   -      119,897    377,099   496,996 
 Short-term finances - secured 341,403   225,722   119,180   -     344,902 
   1,217,343   259,654   701,549   379,355   1,340,558 

-------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------

 Total 2024
Contractual cashflows

Carrying 
amount  On 

demand 
 Not later than

 one year 
 Later than
 one year 
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42.2 The chief executive and certain executives have been provided with Company maintained vehicles in 
accordance with the Company's policy.  

42.3 Three (2024: four) non-executive directors have been paid fees of Rs. 2.7 million (2024: Rs. 3.2 million) 
for attending board and other meetings.  
 

43 TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES

43.1 The associated undertakings and related parties of the Company comprises of the subsidiary 
company, companies with common directorship, retirement funds, directors and key management 
personnel. The Company considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company 
Secretary and directors as key management personnels. All the transactions with associated 
undertakings and related parties are entered into at agreed terms in the normal course of business 
as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

43.2 Detail of transactions with associated undertakings and related parties during the year, other than 
disclosed elsewhere in the unconsolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

As of the reporting date, the Company does not have any financial assets carried at fair value that
required categorisation in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy. 

41 SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE  
   
In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 
vide SRO 1278(I) / 2024 dated August 15, 2024. The Company has disclosed its assets, liabilities, income 
and expenditure related to financing, investments and other income/expenses etc. between shariah 
and conventional elements as follows:

42 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

42.1 The aggregate amount charged in the unconsolidated financial statements for remuneration 
including other benefits paid to the chief executive, directors and executives of the Company are as 
follows: 

41.1 Other disclosure requirements

41.1.1 The Company has facilities with islamic banks for short term finances (i..e: Istisna / Musawamah / 
Tijarah / Murabaha / Musharika), letter of guarantee, letter of credit amounting to Rs. 1,750 million, Rs. 
325 million and Rs. 450 million respectively.  

41.1.2 The Company has no insurance relationships with takaful operators.

Note

Conventional
Shariah 

Compliant Total Conventional
Shariah 

Compliant Total

Statement of Financial Position - Asset
Long-term investment 7 -            1,144,006 1,144,006 -            1,144,006 1,144,006
Short-term investments 14 38,282 -          38,282 39,526 -          39,526
Bank balances 15 37,974 1,811 39,785 129,153 1,877 131,030
Accrued profit / interest on bank balances 13 2,098 -          2,098 5,010 -          5,010

Statement of Financial Position - Liability
Lease liability 17 -            8,412 8,412 -            2,480 2,480
Long-term financings - secured 18 306,445 -          306,445 378,033 -          378,033
Short-term finances - secured 23 566,913 235,301 802,214 225,722 115,681 341,403

Statement of Profit or Loss 
Turnover - net 25 -            7,762,170 7,762,170 -            5,927,227 5,927,227
Profit / interest on:
  - short-term investments - term deposit receipts 30 3,884 -          3,884 7,223 -          7,223
  - deposit accounts 30 22,826 -          22,826 1,783 -          1,783
Dividend income from subsidiary company 30 -            343,202 343,202 -            -          -          
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 30 -            4,435 4,435 -            8,599 8,599
Scrap sales 30 -            8,247 8,247 -            9,420 9,420
Liabilities no longer payable - w ritten back 30 -            33,062 33,062 -            -          -          
Rebate on export sales 30 -            676 676 -            -          -          
Miscellaneous income 30 4,053 13 4,066 -            3,000 3,000
Exchange (loss) / gain on foreign currency 

transactions - net 29 -            (32,596) (32,596) -            2,518 2,518
Finance costs 31 133,839 19,976 153,815 108,920 4,670 113,590

------------2025------------- ------------2024-------------

---------- Rupees in '000 -------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------

 Managerial remuneration 41,380   186,550   35,983   123,393 
 Bonus 10,086   28,291   7,096   18,713 
 Retirement benefits 3,026   9,667   2,631   6,398 
 Utilities  654   1,255   654   359 
 Medical expenses 16   1,589   9   645 
  55,162   227,352   46,373   149,508 
       

Number of persons 1   42   1   22 

Chief 
Executive Executives

2025
Chief 

Executive Executives

2024

--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------
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46 OPERATING SEGMENTS   
   
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable 
segment.   
   
The sales of the Company comprise of sale of components / parts for automotive vehicles, motor 
cycles and agricultural tractors.  
   
All non-current assets of the Company at the end of the current and preceding year were located in 
Pakistan.   
   
Three (2024: three) of the Company’s customers contributed Rs. 5,873.54 million (2024: Rs. 4,532.74 
million) in total revenue and revenue earned from each customer individually exceeded 10% of the 
total revenue of the Company for the current and prior year.  
 

47 UNUTILISED CREDIT FACILITIES  
   
As of reporting date, the Company has unutilised facilities for letter of credit, bonds and guarantees 
and terms of loan available from various banks amounted to Rs. 3,225.30 million (2024: Rs. 3,658.10 
million). The facilities are secured by way of lien on import documents and pari passu ranking 
hypothecation charge on the Company’s specific fixed assets, stock-in-trade, stores, spares, loose 
tools and trade debts.   
 

48 NON ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE  
   
The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on August 28, 2025 proposed annual 
cash dividend of Rs. 1.75 per share (2024: Nil) for the year ended June 30, 2025 amounting to Rs. 63 
million (2024: Nil) for the approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to 
be held on October 20, 2025.  

49 GENERAL   

49.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees, unless otherwise stated. 
 

49.2 Corresponding figures (including the following) have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, to 
reflect more appropriate presentation of events and transactions for the purposes of comparison.

43.3 The outstanding balances with related parties as at reporting date have been disclosed in the 
respective notes to the unconsolidated financial statements.  
 

43.4 Details of the compensation of the key management personnel have been disclosed in the note 42 to 
the unconsolidated financial statements.

44 PRODUCTION CAPACITY   
   
The production capacity of the Company cannot be determined as this depends on the relative 
proportions of various types of vehicles and agricultural tractors produced by Original Equipment 
Manufacturers (OEMs).

2025 2024
45 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES    
     
 Total number of employees as at June 30  667   666 
     
 Average number of employees during the year   667   682 

 

 

Subsidiary Company
  (wholly owned)

Agriauto Stamping Company Sales 100  45,390  28,921 
(Private) Limited Purchase of dies and tools 3,500  4,008 

Dividend received   310  -   
 -   Tax refund payable to the Subsidiary

Company under group taxation
 343,202 

 4,917  22,955 

Associated companies
  (Common directorship)

Auvitronics Limited Sale of goods Nil  -   375

Habib Metropolitan Interest expense  
Profit / interest earned   
on deposit accounts  
Bank charges  
Guarantees issued  

Nil  14,295  17,978 
Bank Limited  1,010  1,783 

 4,683  2,908 
 86,000  18,000 

Shabbir Tiles and
Purchase of goods  Nil  -    6,189    Ceramics Limited

Thal Boshoku Pakistan Sale of goods Nil  35,195  6,260 
(Private) Limited

Post employment benefit plan

Agriauto Industries Limited –      
Employees’ Provident Fund     

Contributions made   
during the year  

Nil   21,274  19,269 

Key management personnel

 –    67 
Travelling and boarding charges
   reimbursed to a director Nil

Percentage of
share holding

in the
Company

2025 2024

Name of associated
undertaking / related

party and relationship
with the Company

Nature of
transactions

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----%

50 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE  
    
 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on August 28, 2025 by the Board 
of Directors of the Company.   
 

Description of item Nature  Rupees in '000 From To

Raw material Asset           31,440 Raw material Work-in process

DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Agriauto Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Agriauto Industries Limited and its 
subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, 
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information 
and other  explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at June 30, 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,   and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

S.No.

(i)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue from contracts with customers

As disclosed in note 24 to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, the 
Group recognized revenue aggregating to 
Rs. 11,863.44 million, net of taxes, for the year 
ended June 30, 2025.

The Group is engaged in the manufacture 
and sale of components for automotive 
vehicles, motor cycles, agricultural tractors 
and stamping of sheet metal parts, dies and 
fixtures primarily for the automotive industry. 
Revenue is recognised when the perfor-
mance obligation is satisfied by transferring 
control of a promised goods to a customer. 

We considered revenue recognition as key 
audit matter as it is one of the key perfor-
mance indicators of the Group. In addition, 
revenue was also considered as an area of 
significant audit risk as part of the audit 
process.

We performed, amongst others, the following 
audit procedures:

• Assessed the design, implementation and oper-
ating effectiveness of the key internal controls 
involved in revenue recognition.

• Understood and evaluated the accounting 
policy with respect to revenue recognition.

• Tested revenue transactions, on a sample basis, 
with underlying documentation including goods 
delivery notes and sales invoices.

• Tested, on a sample basis, specific revenue 
transactions recorded before and after the 
reporting date with underlying documentation 
to assess whether revenue was recognised in 
the correct period.

• Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in 
the consolidated financial statements related 
to revenue.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Following are the Key audit matter(s):

122 Agriauto Industries Limited Annual Report 2025 123



Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 
Companies Act, 2017  and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease  
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from  error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to  the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease  to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, includ-
ing the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transac-
tions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  We are respon-
sible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for 
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that  may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Khattab Muhammad Akhi Baig.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Date: September 19, 2025
UDIN: AR202510081j051uykQ9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION   
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS    
   
Non-Current Assets    
Property, plant and equipment 4  3,643,907  4,018,436 
Right-of-use assets 5  7,570  2,376 
Intangible assets 6  19,728  33,615 
Long-term deposits 7  19,918  19,675 
Deferred taxation - net 8  158,356  84,232 
  3,849,479  4,158,334 
Current Assets    
Stores, spares and loose tools 9  156,881  159,237 
Stock-in-trade 10  3,264,505   2,157,304 
Trade debts - unsecured 11  1,289,047   1,148,235 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 12  424,122   385,433 
Short-term investments 13  75,347   77,056 
Taxation - net   407,903   328,572 
Sales tax receivable   9,221   -   
Cash and bank balances 14  178,071   171,098 
   5,805,097   4,426,935 
TOTAL ASSETS   9,654,576   8,585,269 
    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
   
Share Capital and Reserves    
Authorised capital    
   40,000,000 (2024: 40,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each   200,000   200,000 
    
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 15  180,000   180,000 
Reserves   5,872,567   5,634,243 
   6,052,567   5,814,243 
Non-Current Liabilities    
Lease liabilities 16  4,936   1,906 
Long-term financings - secured 17  329,351   503,350 
Deferred income  18  20,033   24,927 
   354,320   530,183 
Current Liabilities    
Trade and other payables 19  2,124,416   1,520,611 
Current maturity of lease liabilities 16  3,476   574 
Current maturity of long-term financings 17  143,540   89,314 
Current maturity of deferred income 18  4,894   4,902 
Sales tax payable - net   -     684 
Warranty obligations 20  130,730   126,762 
Unpaid dividend 21  -     3,819 
Unclaimed dividend 21  33,701   30,113 
Short-term finances - secured 22  806,932   464,064 
   3,247,689   2,240,843 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23   

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   9,654,576   8,585,269 
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Turnover – net 24  11,863,435   8,534,184 
Cost of sales 25  (10,635,336)  (8,145,664)
Gross profit   1,228,099   388,520 
    
Distribution and marketing expenses 26  (218,293)  (139,875)
Administrative expenses 27  (442,338)  (389,991) 
   (660,631)  (529,866)
Operating profit / (loss)   567,468   (141,346)
    
Other expenses 28  (91,179)  (13,755)
Other income 29  87,847   48,163 
Finance costs 30  (210,218)  (207,722)
   (213,550)  (173,314)
Profit / (loss) before levies and income tax   353,918  (314,660)
    
Levies (minimum tax and final tax) 31  (147,682)  (106,551)
    
Profit / (loss) before income tax   206,236   (421,211)
    
Taxation 32  32,088   73,709 
    
Profit / (loss) after taxation   238,324   (347,502)
    
    
Earning  / (loss) per share – basic and diluted 33  6.62   (9.65)
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-------- (Rupees) --------

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Profit / (loss) after taxation for the year   238,324   (347,502)
    
Other comprehensive income / (loss)   -     -   
   
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year   238,324   (347,502)
    
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as at July 1, 2023 180,000  12,598  3,165,000  2,804,147   5,981,745  6,161,745 
      
Total comprehensive loss for the year        
   ended June 30, 2024        
   
Loss after taxation for the year  -     -     -    (347,502) (347,502) (347,502)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)       
   for the year  -     -     -     -     -     -   
  -     -     -    (347,502) (347,502) (347,502)
       
Balance as at June 30, 2024 180,000   12,598  3,165,000  2,456,645  5,634,243  5,814,243 
       
Total comprehensive income for the year       
   ended June 30, 2025        
   
Profit after taxation for the year  -     -     -    238,324  238,324  238,324 
Other comprehensive income / (loss)       
   for the year  -     -     -     -     -     -   
  -     -     -    238,324  238,324  238,324 
       
Balance as at June 30, 2025 180,000  12,598  3,165,000  2,694,969  5,872,567  6,052,567 
        
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.     
      

----------------------(Rupees in ‘000)----------------------

Issued,
 subscribed 

and paid-up 
capital

Capital 
reserve

Revenue reserves

Reserves

General
(note 15.3)

Unappropriated 
profit

Total
 reserves Total equityShare

 premium
(note 15.2)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 THE COMPANY, GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS  
  

1.1 Agriauto Industries Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on June 25, 1981 as a 
public limited company and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is engaged in 
the manufacture and sale of components for automotive vehicles, motor cycles and agricultural 
tractors. The registered office of the Company is situated at 5th Floor, House of Habib, 3 Jinnah 
Cooperative Housing Society (J.C.H.S), Block 7/8, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. 
 

1.2 The Group comprises of Agriauto Industries Limited (the Holding Company) and Agriauto Stamping 
Company (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company). The Subsidiary Company was incorporated in 
Pakistan on January 20, 2012 as a private limited company. The Subsidiary Company is engaged in 
stamping of sheet metal parts, dies, fixtures primarily for the automotive industry and has commenced 
its commercial operations on July 2, 2014. The registered office of the Subsidiary Company is situated 
at 5th Floor, House of Habib, 3 Jinnah Cooperative Housing Society (J.C.H.S), Block 7/8, Main 
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.   

1.3 As of the reporting date, the Group's shareholding in its Subsidiary Company is 100% (2024: 100%). 
  

1.4 Geographical location and addresses of all the business units of the Group are as under: 
   
                    Location                                                                                                       Business unit 

 5th Floor, House of Habib, 3 Jinnah Cooperative Housing Society (J.C.H.S),        Registered office 
     Block 7/ 8, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Sindh.  
   
DSU-12B, Downstream Industrial Estate, Pakistan Steel Mills,                                  Manufacturing facility 
     Bin Qasim Town, Karachi, Sindh.  
   
Mouza Baroot, Hub Chowki Distt. Lasbella, Balochistan.                                          Manufacturing facility

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION   
 

2.1 Statement of compliance   
   
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of:   

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting    
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and 
 

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.  

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Act have been followed.  
 

2.2 Basis of measurement   
 

2.2.1 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
except otherwise specified in respective notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

2.2.2 These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Group’s 
functional and presentation currency.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
   
Cash generated from operations 34  515,110   652,926 
    
Long-term deposits paid   (243)  (2,200)
Finance costs paid   (224,566)  (194,445)
Levies and income tax paid   (269,049)  (176,341)
Warranty claims paid   (8,074)  (10,305)
Royalties paid   (44,554)  (67,239)
Short-term finance obtained during the year   23,272  210,051 
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities   (8,104)  412,447 
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
   
Fixed capital expenditure   (233,448)  (341,757)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets   21,726   31,434 
Purchase of intangible asset   (450)  -   
Profit received on short-term investments - term deposit receipts   9,479   12,487 
Profit received on deposit accounts   2,607   5,760 
Net cash used in investing activities   (200,086)  (292,076)
    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
   
Unclaimed dividends paid   (231)  (482)
Lease rentals paid   (4,564)  (3,447)
Long-term financings repaid during the year   (103,867)  (154,165)
Net cash used in financing activities   (108,662)  (158,094)
    
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (316,852)  (37,723)
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    (76,708)  (38,985)
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  35  (393,560)  (76,708)
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  
    
 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

2.3 Standards, interpretations, improvements and amendments applicable to consolidated financial 
statements   

2.3.1 Amendments to approved accounting and reporting standards that became effective during the 
year   
   
There were certain amendments to approved accounting and reporting standards that became 
applicable for the Group during the year but are not considered to be relevant or did not have any 
significant effect on the Group's operations and have therefore not been disclosed in these 
consolidated financial statements except for the following:  

      (i)  Amendment to IAS 1 "Non current liabilities with covenants"  

 These amendments aim to improve the information an entity provides when its right to defer 
settlement of liability is subject to compliance with covenants within twelve months after the 
reporting period affect the classification of a liability. These amendments introduce additional 
disclosure requirements that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk that the 
liability could become repayable within twelve months of the reporting period. These amendments 
only have an impact on the Group's disclosure of long-term financings, but not on the 
measurement, recognition or presentation of any item in these consolidated financial statements. 
   

      (ii)   Disclosure detailing shariah and conventional elements  
   
During the year, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has made 
amendments to the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 whereby certain disclosure 
requirements have been introduced with respect to distinguishing of Company's assets, liabilities, 
income and expenditure related to financing, investments and other income/expenses etc. 
between shariah and conventional elements, which have been presented in note 40 to these 
consolidated financial statements.  
  

2.3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published  accounting and reporting standards 
that are not yet effective   
   
There are certain new standards and amendments to the published accounting and reporting 
standards that will be applicable to the Group's accounting period beginning on or after July 1, 2025. 
However, these are not considered to be relevant or will not have any material effect on the Group's 
consolidated financial statements except for:   
 
- the new standard - IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements  (IFRS 18) (published 

in April 2024) with applicability date of January 1, 2027 by IASB. IFRS 18 is yet to be adopted in 
Pakistan. IFRS 18 when adopted and applicable shall impact the presentation of 'Statement of Profit 
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income' with certain additional disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements.    

- amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' which clarify the date of recognition and 
derecognition of a financial asset or financial liability including settlement of liabilities through 
banking instruments and electronic transfers applicable for the periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2026. The amendment when applied may impact the timing of recognition and 
derecognition of financial liabilities and financial assets

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Material accounting policy information

 The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented 
unless specified otherwise.   

2.4.1 Basis of consolidation   
   
These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company 
and its Subsidiary Company as at June 30, 2025, here-in-after referred to as “the Group”. 
   
The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the same reporting year as the 
Holding Company, using consistent accounting policies.   
   
The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of Subsidiary Company are consolidated on a line by line 
basis and carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the 
Subsidiary Company’s shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements. All intra-group 
balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and 
dividends are eliminated in full. 

2.4.1.1 Subsidiaries   

 Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group 
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability 
to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee 
if, and only if, the Group has:    

- power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the investee);   
  

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

- the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

2.4.2 Current versus non-current classification  

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on current / non-current classification. An asset is current when it is: 

  
- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;    
- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or   
- cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period.  

 All other assets are classified as non-current.  
   
A liability is current when it is:   

- expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;    
- held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

- due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

2.4.3 Property, plant and equipment  
   
Operating fixed assets   
   
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except for 
freehold land which is stated at cost, less impairment, if any. All expenditure connected with specific 
assets, including the cost of replacing parts and the cost of borrowings for long-term construction 
projects are carried under capital work-in-progress, if the recognition criteria is met. These are 
transferred to specific categories of property, plant and equipment as and when these are available 
for use.   
   
Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss 
applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 4.1 to these financial statements. 
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month of addition and in case of disposal, prior to the 
month of disposal. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and 
when incurred, while major renewals and improvements are capitalised. 
   
Disposal of an item of operating fixed assets is recognised when the asset is sold or otherwise 
disposed of or no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on 
disposals are determined by comparing the carrying amount of that asset with the sales proceeds 
and are recognised within ‘other income/other expenses’ in the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss.   
   
The carrying values of assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the 
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or related cash-generating 
units are written down to their recoverable amount.  
  

 The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each reporting 
date, and adjusted if material.  
   
Capital work-in-progress   
   
These are stated at cost less impairment in value, if any. Capital work-in-progress consist of 
expenditure incurred and advance made in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of their 
construction and installation.   
 

2.4.4 Right-of-use assets and related liabilities  
   
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, i.e. if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.   
 

2.4.4.1 Right-of-use-assets   
   
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost 
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, 
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received 
as applicable.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lower of the lease term and the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in note 5 to these consolidated financial statements. 
In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.  

2.4.4.2 Lease liabilities   
   
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for 
short-term leases, if any. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and 
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 
   
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.  The extension and termination 
options are incorporated in the determination of the lease term only when the Group is reasonably 
certain to exercise these options.  
   
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at 
the commencement date of the lease, if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the 
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of 
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the 
in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset. 
   
 

2.4.5 Intangible assets   
   
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. 
   
Costs in relation to intangible assets are only capitalised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits attributable to that asset will flow to the Group and the same is amortised applying the 
straight line method at the rate disclosed in note 6 to these consolidated financial statements. 
   
Research and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria mentioned in IAS 38 'Intangible 
Assets' are recognised as an expense as incurred.  
   
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed at each reporting 
date, and adjusted if material.  
 

2.4.6 Stores, spares and loose tools  
   
Stores, spares and loose tools/consumables are stated at weighted average cost less provision for 
obsolete items (if any) except items in-transit, if any, are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs 
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition.   
   
Provision, if required, is made in the consolidated financial statements for slow moving, obsolete and 
unusable items. Spares and consumables are assessed and provision is applied according to the 
degree of ageing based on a specific criteria.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

2.4.7 Stock-in-trade   
   
Stock-in-trade, except goods-in-transit, is stated at the lower of net realisable value (NRV) and cost 
determined as follows:   

Raw and packing materials Moving average basis, cost of raw materials comprises of 
purchase price plus import duties and taxes (other than those 
that are subsequently recoverable).

Work-in-process Cost of direct materials plus conversion cost valued on the basis 
of equivalent production units.

Finished goods Cost of finished goods comprises cost of direct materials plus 
conversion cost valued on the basis of equivalent production 
units.

 Goods-in-transit are valued at purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon upto 
the reporting date.   
   
Stock-in-trade is regularly reviewed by management and obsolete items, if any, are brought down to 
their NRV. NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 

2.4.8 Trade debts and other receivables  
   
Trade debts and other receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost. 
   
Trade debts and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount (unless 
there is a significant financing component) less an estimated allowance made for doubtful debts and 
receivables based on the ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model. Balances considered bad and 
irrecoverable are written off when identified. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 
are credited in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.4.9 Cash and cash equivalents   
   
For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash 
in hand, bank balances, readily encashable investments and short-term running finance that is 
repayable on demand and forms an integral part of the Group's cash management. The cash and 
cash equivalents are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are therefore subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.  

2.4.10 Financial instruments   
   
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.  
   
Financial assets   
   
The financial assets of the Group mainly include trade debts, deposits, short-term investments, other 
receivables and cash and bank balances. On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair 
value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised 
cost; Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – debt investment; FVOCI – equity 
investment; or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 
9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual 
cash flow characteristics. Based on the business model of the Group, the financial assets of the Group 
are measured and classified under IFRS 9 as follows;  
    
 Trade debts, short-term investments and other financial assets are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method less an allowance for expected credit losses, if any. 
 

 Derecognition   

 A financial asset, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets is primarily 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Group has 
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement 
and either the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or the Group 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. On derecognition of a financial asset, in its entirety, the difference 
between the asset's carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is 
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.  
  

 Financial liabilities   
   
The financial liabilities of the Group mainly include long-term financing, short-term finance and trade 
creditors. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of 
directly attributable transaction costs. For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial 
liabilities are either classified at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss. The Group does not 
have any financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.  
  

 Derecognition   
   
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss.   
  

 Impairment of financial assets - allowance for expected credit losses 
   
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.  
   
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its 
financial assets carried at amortised cost and contract assets. The Group applies the simplified 
approach to recognise life time expected credit losses for trade debts while general 3 - stage 
approach for other financial assets i.e. to measure ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal to 
12 - month ECL if credit risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition. 
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 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the respective asset. The Group considers a financial asset in default when 
contractual payments are 90 days past due and it is subsequently written off when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. This definition is based on the 
Group's internal credit risk management policy.  
   
Offsetting of financial instruments  
   
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position if there is currently an enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

 
2.4.11 Impairment of non-financial assets  

   
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than stock-in-trade, stores, spares and loose tools 
and deferred tax assets are assessed at date of the consolidated statement of financial position to 
ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment 
loss is recognised, as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value in use is 
ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

2.4.12 Levies   
   
The Group considers unrecoupable minimum taxes in excess of normal tax liability and tax deducted 
at source under final tax regime are out of scope of IAS 12 'Income Taxes' and fall in the ambit of IFRIC 
21 'Levies' and IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'. 

2.4.13 Taxation   
   
Current   
   
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking 
into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or minimum tax on turnover or Alternate 
Corporate Tax whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 ('the Ordinance'). The minimum tax under section 113 which is not recoupable is classified under 
levies. The Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company have opted for Group Taxation under 
section 59AA of the Ordinance.  
   
The Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company records provision for current tax on the basis of 
the taxable income determined as per the separate financial statements of each entity without 
regarding any group taxation availed under section 59AA of the Ordinance. The Group has tax funding 
arrangement in place by virtue of which the difference in tax charge recognised on the basis of 
taxable income in the separate financial statements of each entity and the Group's tax liability under 
section 59AA is settled in cash between the Group companies.  
  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Deferred

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts appearing in the 
consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable income will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.  
  

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax assets to be utilised.  
   
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted 
or substantially enacted by the consolidated statement of financial position date. 
   
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax authority. 
 

2.4.14 Trade and other payables   
   
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group. 
   

2.4.15 Provisions   
   
Provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each date of 
consolidated statement of financial position and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
 

2.4.16 Warranty obligations   
   
A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold, based on past experience of 
the level of repairs and returns and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the sale is recognised. Assumptions used to calculate 
the provision for warranties are based on current sales levels and current information available about 
returns based on the warranty period for all products sold.

2.4.17 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Group; or

- there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of 
the obligation cannot be measure with sufficient reliability.
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 The assessment of contingent liabilities inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the 
outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the availability 
of latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the 
occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events. 

2.4.18 Deferred income   
   
The benefit of long-term financing at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a deferred income, 
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on 
prevailing market interest rates. The deferred income is held on the consolidated statement of 
financial position as a deferred credit and realised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over 
the periods necessary to match the related finance cost.  

2.4.19 Revenue from contract with customers  
   
The Group manufactures and sells components for automotive vehicles, motor cycles and agriculture 
tractors to Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) and certain after market suppliers. Revenue from 
contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods is transferred to the customer 
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods according to the negotiated contractual terms. The Group has generally concluded that 
it acts as a principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services 
before transferring them to the customer.  
  

 The Group's performance obligations, comprising of the sale of components of automotive vehicles, 
motor cycles and agricultural tractors, are not separable, and are not partially satisfied, since they are 
satisfied at a point in time, when the customer accepts the products. Moreover, the payment terms 
identified in most sources of revenue are short term usually 30 to 60 days upon delivery, without any 
variable considerations, financing components and guarantees.  
  

 The Group recognises a trade receivable when the performance obligations have been met, 
recognising the corresponding revenue.   
   
Advance from customers is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Group has received consideration from the customer. Advance from customers is recognised as 
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.  
 

2.4.20 Other income   
   
Profit / interest on deposits accounts and short-term investments is recognised using effective interest 
rate method.   
   
Scrap sales are recognised at sales proceeds less book value on the day of transaction. 
   
Other income, if any, is recognised on accrual basis.  
 

2.4.21 Borrowing costs   
   
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised 
as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they 
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2.4.22 Sales tax   
 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised, net off amount of sales tax except:

- where sales tax incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation 
authorities, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset 
or as part of the expense item as applicable;

- trade receivables or trade payables are stated with the amount of sales tax; and

- the net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authorities is included as 
part of sales tax receivables or payables in the consolidated statement of financial position. 
  

2.4.23 Unclaimed dividend   
   
This is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and unclaimed by shareholders from the date 
it became due and payable.   
 

2.4.24 Unpaid dividend   
   
This is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and claimed by shareholders but remained 
unpaid for the period of 3 years from the date it became due and payable. 

2.4.25 Operating segments   
   
For management purposes, the activities of the Group are organised into one reportable operating 
segment. The Group operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the nature of the 
products, risks and returns, organisational and management structure, and internal financial reporting 
systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these consolidated financial statements are related to 
the Group’s only reportable segment.  
 

2.4.26 Share capital and reserves   
   
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from 
the proceeds.   
   
Reserves comprise of capital and revenue reserves. Capital reserves represent share premium while 
revenue reserves comprise of general reserves and unappropriated profit. 
 

2.4.27 Dividends and appropriation to reserve  
   
Dividend and appropriation to reserve are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the 
period in which these are approved. Transfer between reserves made subsequent to the statement of 
financial position date is considered as a non-adjusting event and is recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements in the period in which such transfers are made. 
 

2.4.28 Foreign currency transactions and translation  
   
Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupees at the foreign exchange rates 
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
re-translated into rupees at the foreign exchange rates approximating those prevailing at the 
consolidated statement of financial position date. Exchange differences, if any, are taken to the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4.29 Earnings per share   
   
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined 
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
  

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
   
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting 
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to 
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and 
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in 
any future periods affected.    
  

 In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments 
and estimates which are significant to these consolidated financial statements: 
   
(i)   Residual value, rate of depreciation and useful life of property, plant and equipment 
   
The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in 
the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of 
assets is made for possible impairment as and when required. In making these estimates, Group uses 
the technical resources available with the Group. Any change in the estimates in the future might 
affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with corresponding 
effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.  
  

 (ii)   Net realisable value of stock-in-trade  
   
The Group reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective 
carrying values and also review the inventories for obsolescence.  
  

 (iii)   Levies, provision for income tax, sales tax and deferred tax  
   
The Group takes into account current income and sales tax laws and decisions taken by the appellate 
authorities. Instances where the Group's view differs from the view taken by the authorities at the 
assessment stage and where the Group, in consultation with its external counsel, considers that its 
view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent 
liabilities (unless there is a remote possibility of transfer of benefits). 
   
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax 
planning strategies. The management consider tax consequences that would follow from the manner 
in which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 (iv)   Warranty obligations   
   
The Group, based on the tenure of warranty under the agreements with its customers and rate 
determined based on the availability of latest information, estimates the provision for warranty 
obligations. The actual warranty claims may differ from the estimated warranty provision held as 
above.   
 

 (v)   Contingent liabilities   
   
The Group, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent 
liabilities, which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s). 
   
   
 

    
   
   

4.1 Operating fixed assets
 

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 
 Operating fixed assets 4.1 3,587,080   4,016,896 
 Capital work-in-progress 4.5  56,827    1,540 
    3,643,907    4,018,436

 Owned          
            
 Freehold land 1,652   -    1,652   -   -     -     -     -    1,652  
 Leasehold land 29,418   -    29,418  1.79 6,303  525   -    6,828  22,590  
 Building on freehold land  713,809  712  714,521  10 204,114  50,975   -    255,089  459,432    
 Building on leasehold land  658,201  10,000  668,201  10 271,871  39,050   -    310,921  357,280  
 Plant and machinery  4,390,819  56,270  4,455,211  10 – 20 1,720,280  357,057   -    2,063,748  2,391,463 
   25,202*      -       
   (17,080)     (13,589)    
 Furniture and fittings 45,920  4,692  49,737  15 27,184  3,068   -    29,566  20,171   
   (875)     (686)    
 Vehicles 244,599  67,096  286,177  20 111,680  31,469   -    131,299  154,878 
    (25,518)    (11,850)    
 Office equipment 16,035   -    16,616  10 – 20 8,835  1,319   -    10,154  6,462 
   581*         
 Computer equipment 87,018  9,074  93,863  33 60,718  10,306  -    69,202  24,661 
   (2,229)     (1,822)    
 Dies and tools 751,165  4,535  755,700  40 510,755  96,454   -    607,209  148,491 
 2025 6,938,636  152,379  7,071,096   2,921,740  590,223   -    3,484,016  3,587,080 
   25,783*      -       
   (45,702)     (27,947)    

  * represents transfer from capital work-in-progress to operating fixed assets.       
           

As at
July 1,
 2024

Additions / 
transfer* / 
(disposals)

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
WRITTEN

DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2025

Depreciat-
ion rate As at 

July 1,
 2024

Charge
for the

year
(Note 4.2)

(On 
disposals)

As at 
June 30,

2025

As at
June 30,

2025

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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4.3 Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. freehold land, leasehold land, building on freehold land and 
building on leasehold land) in the name of the Group, are as follows:

4.4 Particulars of operating fixed asset having net book value of five hundred thousand rupees or more 
disposed off during the year are as follows:

                Location                                                                           Use of immoveable property    Total area
              Mouza Baroot, Hub Chowki, Distt. Lasbella, Balochistan.             Manufacturing facility             18.2 acres
              DSU-12B, Downstream Industrial Estate, Pakistan Steel
              Mills, Bin Qasim Town, Karachi.                Manufacturing facility            6.08 acres

4.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been
    allocated as follows:     

             Cost of sales 25  564,078  549,379 
             Distribution and marketing expenses 26  3,383   3,664 
             Administrative expenses 27  22,762   26,943 
    590,223   579,986 

4.5 Capital work-in-progress
 
 Plant and machinery  41,249   1,540 
 Vehicles   15,578   -   
  4.5.1  56,827   1,540 
 
4.5.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress is as follows:

 As at July 1  1,540  1,812,980 
 Capital expenditure incurred /
    advances made during the year 4.5.2  81,070   255,798 
 Transfer to operating fixed assets during the year 4.1 (25,783)  (2,067,238)
 As at June 30  56,827   1,540 

 Owned            
 Freehold land 1,652   -    1,652   -   -     -     -     -    1,652  
 Leasehold land 29,418   -     29,418  1.79 5,778  525   -    6,303  23,115  
 Building on freehold land  303,836   -    713,809  10 162,439  41,675   -    204,114  509,695   
   409,973*      -       
 Building on leasehold land  480,877   -    658,201  10 240,439   31,432   -    271,871  386,330 
   177,324*         
 Plant and machinery  3,142,983  17,814  4,390,819  10 - 20 1,389,155  341,219   -    1,720,280  2,670,539   
   1,249,049*     -       
   (19,027)     (10,094)    
 Furniture and fittings 46,218  171  45,920  15 24,169  3,301   -    27,184  18,736 
   (469)     (286)    
 Vehicles 204,175  61,265  244,599  20 90,810  30,780   -    111,680  132,919 
   632*      -       
   (21,473)     (9,910)    
 Office equipment 11,836  4,199  16,035  10 - 20 7,665  1,170   -    8,835  7,200 
 Computer equipment 88,584  2,510  87,018  33 52,211  12,442   -    60,718  26,300 
    (4,076)    (3,935)    
 Dies and tools 521,279   -    751,165  40 393,687  117,442   -    510,755  240,410 
   230,260*      -       
   (974)     (374)    
 2024 4,830,858  85,959  6,938,636   2,366,353  579,986   -    2,921,740  4,016,896   
   2,067,238*      -       
   (45,419)     (24,599)    

  * represents transfer from capital work-in-progress to operating fixed assets.       
           

As at
July 1,
 2023

Additions / 
transfer* / 
(disposals)

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
WRITTEN

DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2024

Depreciat-
ion rate As at 

July 1,
 2023

Charge
for the

year
(Note 4.2)

(On 
disposals)

As at 
June 30,

2024

As at
June 30,

2024

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 

Plant and machinery
Tube Cutting Machine 5,338 974 552 (422) Negotiation M/s. Noorani Trading 

Co.
Independent 
purchaser

Vehicles
Suzuki Cultus AGS 3,234 2,057 3,450 1,393 Insurance 

claim
Habib Insurance 
Company Limited

Insurer

Toyota Corolla Grande 4,005 1,784 1,784  –    Company Saeed Ahmed Employee
Policy

Toyota Yaris 1.3 CVT 3,781 2,672 4,100 1,428 Negotiation M/s. Clipsal Pakistan
(Private) Limited

Independent 
Purchaser

Toyota Yaris 1.3 CVT 2,695 1,289 1,289  –   Company Aqueel Ahmed Employee
Policy

Toyota Yaris 1.3 CVT 2,695 1,180 4,150  2,970 
    

Insurance 
claim

Habib Insurance 
Company Limited

Insurer

Toyota Yaris 1.5 CVT 3,005 1,315 1,490 175 
    

Company Akhter Jami Employee
Policy

Yaris ATIV CVT 2,775 1,304 1,289  (15) Company M. Rizwan Employee
Policy 

Suzuki Cultus 3,234 2,019 2,098 79 Company 
policy

Saad Sohail Employee

30,762 14,594 20,202 5,608 

Operating fixed assets 14,940 3,161 1,524 (1,637) Various Various
having WDV less than
Rs. 0.5 million

2025 45,702 17,755 21,726 3,971 

2024 45,419 20,819 31,434 10,615 

Sales
proceeds (loss)Cost Book

value
Gain / Mode of

disposal Particulars of buyer Relationship

(Rupees in ‘000)

Particulars

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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4.5.2 During the year, borrowing costs amounting to Nil (2024: Rs. 67.14 million) were capitalized using 
capitalisation rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.3% per annum on account of long-term financing obtained 
specifically for this purpose as fully mentioned in notes 17.3 and 17.4 to these consolidated financial 
statements.

7.1 This represent interest free deposits with suppliers having no fixed maturity. Fair value of these deposits 
is not considered to be materially different from the amortized cost. 
  

7.2 This includes long-term deposit held with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company, 
amounting to Rs. 0.03 million (2024: Rs. 0.03 million).

8.1 The Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company have opted for Group taxation for Tax Year 2025 
under section 59AA of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. As of the date of consolidated statement of 
financial position, deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 183.45 million (2024: Rs. 175.95 million) and Rs. 
16.19 million (2024: Rs. 16.19 million) in respect of minimum tax credits and unused business losses 
respectively, have not been recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

 * This represents amount paid against licenses and technical fee for certain products / components 
that are being manufactured by the Group under the technical service agreements with technical 
advisors.

5.1 This represents renewal of lease contract for registered office located in Karachi. The Holding 
Company has two lease arrangements for its offices (in Karachi and Lahore) in which rentals are 
payable in advance. The lease tenure of all rental premises ranges between 3 years to 3 years and 1 
month.

5 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

 As at July 1  2,376   2,227 
 Additions during the year   8,980   2,442 
 Depreciation charge for the year 5.2  (3,786) (2,293)
 As at June 30  7,570   2,376 

5.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

 Distribution and marketing expenses 26  793   793 
 Administrative expenses 27  2,993   1,500 
    3,786   2,293 

6.1 Amortisation charge for the yearhas been allocated as follows:

 Cost of sales 25  12,650   19,159 
 Distribution and marketing expenses 26  241   241 
 Administrative expenses 27  1,446   1,444 
   14,337   20,844 
7 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

 Security deposits - considered good 7.1 & 7.2  19,918   19,675 

8 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET     

 Deductible temporary differences arising due to:    
 - provisions  248,285  183,031 
 - lease liabilities and right-of-use assets   244   30 
 - unused business losses   237,250   220,682 
    
 Taxable temporary differences arising due to:   
 - accelerated tax depreciation  (327,423) (319,511)
   158,356  84,232 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

9 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS     

 Stores   120,464  126,681 
 Spares   84,570  88,469 
 Loose tools  23,783  14,927 
    228,817  230,077 
 Less: provision for obsolescence 9.1  (71,936) (70,840)
   156,881  159,237 

 Licenses *  87,972   -     87,972  20  70,037   8,949   -    78,986   8,986 
 Software  26,880   450   27,330  20 - 33  11,200   5,388   -      16,588   10,742 
  114,852   450   115,302    81,237   14,337   -     95,574   19,728 

As at
July 1,
 2024

Additions / 
(retirements)

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2025

Amortisation 
rate As at 

July 1,
 2024

Charge
for the

year
(Note 6.1)

(On 
retirements)

As at 
June 30,

2025
As at

June 30,
2025

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 

 Licenses *  88,389   (417)  87,972  20 54,986   15,468   (417)  70,037   17,935 
 Software  26,880   -     26,880  20  5,824   5,376   -     11,200   15,680 
  115,269   (417)   114,852     60,810   20,844  (417)  81,237    33,615 

As at
July 1,
 2023

Additions /
(retirements)

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

As at
 June 30,

 2024

Amortisation
 rate As at 

July 1,
 2023

Charge
for the

year
(Note 6.1)

(On 
retirements)

As at 
June 30,

2024
As at

June 30,
2024

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------                %                 ------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------ 

6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS   

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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9.1 This includes Rs. 6.73 million (2024: Rs. 11.40 million) charged during the year in respect of provision for 
obsolescence.

11.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 9.95 million (2024: Rs. 2.00 million) receivable from Thal Boshoku Pakistan 
(Private) Limited - associated company, against sales made by the Group. 
 

11.3 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from the related parties at the end of any month during 
the year was Rs. 19.50 million (2024: Rs. 9.52 million).

12.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 25.60 million (2024: Rs. 24.87  million) against letter of credit (LC) and 
letter of guarantee  (LG) margin deposits, out of which Rs. 12.31 million (2024: Rs. 14.29 million) are held 
with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company.  

12.2 This includes Rs. 301.19 million (2024: Rs. 301.19 million) with respect to claim against Additional Custom 
Duty (ACD) (as disclosed in note 19.5) from a customer.  
 

12.3 This includes an amount of Rs. 2.66 million (2024: Rs. 5.29 million) pertaining to accrued profit on 
deposit accounts held with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company. 
  

12.4 This includes an amount of Nil (2024: Rs. 1.14 million) receivable from AuVitronics Limited - associated 
company in respect of reimbursement of salary expense paid by the Group on behalf of the 
associated company.

 * Balances upto 30 - 60 days from the invoice date are shown under not yet due.

10.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 166.71 million (2024: charge of Rs. 54.65 million) in respect of reversal of  
provision for obsolescence and also includes an amount of Rs. 5.30 million (2024: Rs. 4.22 million) 
charged in respect of write down of inventory to its NRV during the year. 
 

10.2 As at the reporting date, raw materials amounting to Rs. 55.45 million (2024: Rs. 89.11 million) are held 
with the sub-contractors (other than the Group companies).

11.1 These include balance due from various customers for whom there is no recent history of write-off. 
The ageing analysis of these trade debtors is as follows:

10 STOCK-IN-TRADE

 Raw material 10.2  2,121,940   1,708,591 
 Less: provision for obsolescence  (165,332) (335,698)
   1,956,608  1,372,893 
  
 Packing material  9,524   7,595 
 Less: provision for obsolescence  (813)  (570)
   8,711   7,025 
   
 Work-in-process  126,027  109,009 
   
 Finished goods  191,738  113,643 
 Less: provision for obsolescence  (11,559) (6,195)
   180,179  107,448 
   
 Goods-in-transit   992,980  560,929 
   3,264,505  2,157,304 

11 TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED    

 Considered good 11.2 & 11.3  1,289,047  1,148,235 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

 Not yet due*  1,249,161  1,072,034 
 Upto 1 month  28,905  70,596 
 1 to 2 months   9,397  1,685 
 3 to 6 months  1,220   3,614 
 More than 6 months  364   306 
   1,289,047  1,148,235 

12 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND      
OTHER RECEIVABLES     
   

 Advances - unsecured, considered good   
 Contractors  6,260   11,696 
 Employees  6,229   1,706 
 Suppliers  3,576   5,278 
   16,065  18,680 
   
 Deposits 12.1  41,549  27,765 
   
 Prepayments  
 Insurance  11,459  15,095 
 Software maintenance  12,079  5,528 
 Others  3,374   945 
   26,912  21,568 
 Other receivables - secured, considered good 12.2, 12.3 & 12.4      339,596  317,420 
   424,122  385,433 

13 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS   

 At amortised cost   
 Term deposit receipts 13.1  74,605  74,605 
 Accrued profit thereon  742   2,451 
   75,347  77,056 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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13.1 These represent three months term deposit receipts, marked as lien with a commercial bank against 
long-term financing (as mentioned in note 17.1 and 17.2) and bank guarantees, carrying markup rates 
of 5.75% (2024: 18.45% to 18.85%) per annum and having maturity latest by September 30, 2025.

17.1 This includes Rs. 38.57 million (2024: Rs. 44.63 million) long-term financing facility obtained by the 
Holding Company from a conventional bank under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) refinance scheme for 
renewable energy, recognised initially at fair value. The total facility amounts to Rs. 90 million (2024: Rs. 
90 million) and carries contractual mark-up at the rate of 2% plus 0.75% (2024: 2% plus 0.75%) per 
annum payable quarterly. The effective mark-up rate as calculated with reference to fair value of the 
loan ranges from 10.02% to 16.30% (2024: 10.02% to 16.30%) per annum. The tenure of this facility is ten 
years and is due to mature latest by September 29, 2032. The facility is secured against first specific 
hypothecation charge over plant and machinery related to the solar power project for the disbursed 
amount in addition to margin of 15% to be secured against liquid collateral (Term Deposit Receipts as 
fully mentioned in note 13.1) held under lien. As at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is Nil 
(2024: Nil).

14.1 This represent balances in deposit accounts maintained with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - 
associated company under interest / mark-up arrangements. These carry interest at the rate of 9.50% 
(2024: 20.50%) per annum.   
 

15 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

15.1 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Holding Company's residual assets. Holders of these 
shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share 
at general meetings of the Holding Company.  
 

15.2 Share premium reserve can be utilised by the Holding Company only for the purposes specified in 
section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.  
  

15.3 The purpose of general reserves includes, but not limited to, fulfilling various business needs like 
meeting contingencies, enhancing the working capital, etc.  
  

15.4 As at the reporting date, 2,644,500 shares (2024: 2,644,500 shares) are held by Thal Limited - 
associated company.    
 

16 LEASE LIABILITIES   
    
The Holding Company has two lease arrangements for its offices (in Karachi and Lahore) in which 
rentals are payable in advance. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of the Group is 
20.50% (2024: 21.39%) per annum.

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES     

 In hand  92   108 
 
 With banks in    
 - current accounts  29,684  57,868 
 - deposit accounts 14.1  148,295  113,122 
   177,979  170,990 
      

  178,071  171,098 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

 Lease liabilities  8,412   2,480 
 Current maturity of lease liabilities  (3,476)  (574)
  16.1  4,936   1,906 
    
16.1 Movement of lease liabilities:    

   
 As at July 1  2,480   3,387 
 Addition during the year  8,980   2,363 
 Finance cost during the year  1,516   177 
 Payments during the year  (4,564) (3,447)
 As at June 30 16.2  8,412   2,480 
    
 Current maturity of lease liabilities  (3,476)  (574)
   4,936   1,906 

16.2 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities 
  as at the reporting date is as follows:    

 Up to 1 year  3,476  574 
 1 to 3 years  4,936  1,906 
 Total lease liabilities  8,412  2,480 
 
17 LONG-TERM FINANCINGS - SECURED    

  
 SBP refinance scheme for renewable energy 17.1 & 17.2  76,818  87,418 
 Current maturity of long-term financing  (9,334) (10,687)
   67,484  76,731 
   
 Long-term financing 17.3 & 17.4  396,073  505,246 
 Current maturity of long-term financing  (134,206) (78,627)
   261,867  426,619 
  17.5  329,351  503,350 

2025 2024
(Number of shares in '000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each

Issued as bonus shares
Fully paid in cash

36,000
13,200

22,800

180,000
66,000
114,000

36,000
13,200

22,800

180,000
66,000
114,000

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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17.2 This includes Rs. 38.25 million (2024: Rs. 42.79 million) long-term financing facility obtained by the 
Subsidiary Company from a conventional bank under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) refinance scheme 
for renewable energy, recognised initially at fair value. The total facility amounts to Rs. 85 million (2024: 
Rs. 85 million) and carries contractual mark-up at the rate of 2% plus 0.75% (2024: 2% plus 0.75%) per 
annum payable quarterly. The effective mark-up rate as calculated with reference to fair value of the 
loan ranges from 8.72% to 16.30% (2024: 8.72% to 16.30%) per annum. The tenure of this facility is ten 
years and is due to mature latest by September 30, 2032. The facility is secured against first specific 
hypothecation charge over plant and machinery related to the solar power project for the disbursed 
amount in addition to margin of 15% to be secured against liquid collateral (Term Deposit Receipts as 
fully mentioned in note 13.1) held under lien. As at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is 
Nil (2024: Nil).  

17.3 This includes Rs. 267.88 million (2024: Rs. 333.41 million) long-term financing facility obtained by the 
Holding Company from a conventional bank to refinance capital expenditure incurred by the 
Company, with a total limit of Rs. 500 million (2024: Rs. 500 million) at a markup rate of 3 months KIBOR 
+ 0.3% (2024: 3 months KIBOR + 0.3%) payable on quarterly basis. The tenure of this facility is six years, 
including grace period of one year and is due to mature by July 3, 2028. This facility is secured by first 
pari passu hypothecation / first charge over present and future fixed assets (excluding land and 
building) of the Company with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is 
Nil (2024: Nil).  

17.4 This includes Rs. 128.19 million (2024: Rs. 171.84 million) long-term financing facility obtained by the 
Subsidiary Company from a conventional bank to refinance capital expenditure incurred by the 
Company, with a total limit of Rs. 900 million (2024: Rs. 900 million) at a markup rate of 3 months KIBOR 
+ 0.3% (2024: 3 months KIBOR + 0.3%) payable on quarterly basis. The tenure of this facility is six years, 
including grace period of one year and is due to mature latest by August 3, 2028. This facility is secured 
by first pari passu hypothecation / first charge over present and future fixed assets (excluding land 
and building) of the Company with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility 
is Nil (2024: Nil).

19.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 55.54 million (2024: Rs. 42.27 million) in respect of sales incentive payable 
to distributors.   
 

19.2 Additionally includes an amount of Rs. 595.57 million (2024: Rs. 473.28 million) in respect of Sindh 
Infrastructure Development Cess, for which guarantees amounting to Rs. 545.15 million (2024: Rs. 417 
million) have been provided with commercial banks.  
 

 In 2021, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) through its order dated September 1, 2021 has 
directed to the parties involved in the case that till further orders of the SCP, the operation of the 
impugned judgement of the High Court of Sindh (SHC) dated June 4, 2021 which validated Sindh 
Infrastructure Development Cess (SIDC) and its recovery shall remain suspended. The SCP's order 
further stated that the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already submitted with the 
Government of Sindh and shall furnish fresh bank guarantees of SIDC against release of all future 
consignments of imported goods (as disclosed in note 23.2.1). The Group continues to accrue the SIDC.

18.2 This represents deferred income recognised in respect of the benefit of below-market interest rate on 
long-term financing (as disclosed in note 17.1 and 17.2). The benefit has been measured as the 
difference between the fair value of the loan and the proceeds received. The Group has used the 
prevailing market rate of mark-up for similar instruments to calculate fair values of respective loan.

17.6 In accordance with the long term financing agreement between the Group companies and a 
commercial bank, the Group companies are required to comply with the following financial 
thresholds in their standalone financial statements over the tenure of the loan agreement.

 Financial covenants                           Thresholds 
Debt Service Cover Ratio                       At least 1.25:1  
Interest Coverage Ratio                       At least 1.25:1  
Current Ratio                       At least 1:1

 The Group companies have complied with the above financial covenants as at the reporting date.

17.5 Movement of long-term financings during the year is as follows:

 As at July 1  592,664  769,141 
 Repayment made during the year  (195,101) (319,270)
 Accretion of interest during the year  75,328  142,793 
 As at June 30  472,891  592,664 
 Current maturity of long-term financing   (143,540) (89,314)
   329,351  503,350

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

18 DEFERRED INCOME     

 Deferred income 18.2  24,927   29,829 
 Current maturity of deferred income  (4,894) (4,902)
   20,033   24,927 
18.1 Movement of deferred income during the year is as follows:    

 
 As at July 1  29,829  37,985 
 Amortisation during the year 30  (4,902) (8,156)
 As at June 30  24,927  29,829 

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES    
 

 Trade creditors  746,365  414,363 
 Accrued liabilities 19.1 & 19.2  884,525  652,582 
 Royalty payable 19.3  49,715  31,095 
 Advance from customers (contract liabilities)  12,123  8,600 
 Additional Custom Duty payable 19.5  365,519  365,519 
 Payable to provident fund 19.6  5,856  5,148 
 Withholding tax payable  3,644  17,046 
 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund  19.7  32,356  7,263 
 Workers’ Welfare Fund 19.8  15,920  902 
 Others  8,393  18,093 
   2,124,416  1,520,611 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

154 Agriauto Industries Limited Annual Report 2025 155



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

20.2 This represents Group's best estimate of the amount required to be paid / settled to cover the potential 
warranty claims based on the historical experience.  

21 UNPAID DIVIDEND AND UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND  
   
The Holding Company has opened separate bank accounts as required under the provision of section 
244 of the Act and the required amounts have been transferred accordingly.

19.5 This represents Additional Custom Duty (ACD) payable to the Customs Authorities (Federal Board of 
Revenue) on import of certain raw materials. The provision has been maintained in respect of ACD 
levied under SRO 670 (I)/2019 dated June 28, 2019 at enhanced rates upto June 30, 2021. The Group is 
contesting levy of ACD under SRO 670 (I)/2019 dated June 28, 2019 and has filed a petition in the 
Honorable High Court of Sindh (the Court) against the aforesaid additional levy. The Court has 
granted a stay order after the submission of Corporate Guarantees by the Group amounting to Rs. 
362.42 million (2024: Rs. 362.42 million) with the Court.  
   
The Group has recorded a receivable from customer, on the basis of comfort letter, amounting to Rs. 
301.19 million (2024: Rs. 301.19 million) in respect of the ACD payable as disclosed in note 12.2. 
 

19.6 Investments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out of provident 
funds of the respective companies have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 
of the Act and the rules formulated for this purpose.

19.3 Movement of royalty payable during the year is as follows:     
   

 As at July 1  31,095  54,353 
 Charge for the year  63,174  43,981 
 Payment during the year 19.4  (44,554) (67,239)
 As at June 30  49,715  31,095 
    
19.4 Royalties paid during the year comprise of the following:

19.8 Workers’ Welfare Fund    
 

 As at July 1  902  3,604 
 Allocation for the year 28  15,018  -   
   15,920  3,604 
 Payment made during the year  -    (2,702)
 As at June 30  15,920  902 
  
20 WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS    

  
 Warranty obligations 20.1  130,730   126,762 
  
20.1 Movement in warranty obligations during the year is as follows:   

  
 As at July 1  126,762  127,504 
 Charge for the year 26  12,042  9,563 
 Claims paid during the year  (8,074) (10,305)
 As at June 30  130,730  126,762 

22 SHORT-TERM FINANCES - SECURED     
 Conventional   
    Running finance facility  547,155  217,703 
    Accrued markup thereon  24,205  30,103 
  22.1 & 22.2  571,360  247,806 
 Islamic  
    Musawamah  143,237  156,051 
    Accrued profit thereon  1,507  4,187 
  22.3 & 22.4  144,744  160,238 
    Import murabaha  90,086  -   
    Accrued profit thereon  471  -   
  22.5  90,557  -   
    Running musharika   -    -   
    Accrued markup thereon   271  -   
  22.6  271  
    Tijarah  -    54,000 
    Accrued profit thereon   -    2,020 
   -    56,020 
   806,932  464,064 

19.7 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund      
  

 As at July 1  7,263  7,263 
 Allocation for the year 28  32,356   -   
   39,619  7,263 
 Payment made during the year  (7,263)  -   
 As at June 30  32,356  7,263 

 36,854 

 1,351 

 29,034 

KYB Corporation World Trade Center Building 4-1,
Hamamatsu-Cho 2 Chome,
Minato-Ku, Tokyo 105 Japan Technical Partner  27,585 

Aisin Seiki Co., Ltd 2-1, Asahi-Machi, Kariya, Aichi,
448-8650, Japan Technical Partner  504 

Ogihara (Thailand) 231 Ladkrabang Industrial
Company Limited Estate Phase 3, Chalongkrung Rd,

Ladkrabang, Bangkok,
Thailand. Technical Partner  16,465 

2025
(Rupees in ‘000)

Company
Name

Address Relationship 2024

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note -----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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22.6 This represents accrued profit on running musharika facility of Rs. 0.27 million (2024: Nil) obtained by 
the Subsidiary Company from an islamic bank. The total facility limit amounts to Rs. 500 million (2024: 
Nil) and the rate of mark-up on these finances ranges from 1 month to 3 months KIBOR plus spreads 
varying from 0.25% to 0.50% (2024: Nil) and are due to mature latest by January 31, 2026. The facilities 
are secured by way of first joint pari passu hypothecation charge over present and future stocks and 
receivables of the Subsidiary Company with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, unutilized portion of the 
facility is Rs. 500 million (2024: Nil).  
 

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS  
 

23.1 Contingencies   

23.1.1 Income tax related contingencies are disclosed in note 32.5.  
 

23.1.2 In FY 2022, the Subsidiary Company received a show cause notice from the Collectorate of Customs 
Adjudication-I (West Collectorate and East Collectorate), regarding the short payment of custom 
duties and taxes amounting to Rs. 861.50 million and Rs. 28.14 million respectively. In the said notice, the 
Collector of Customs alleged that the Subsidiary Company has applied incorrect tariff rate on the 
import of a component during the period from March 2017 to December 2021. The Subsidiary Company 
filed an appeal against the order of the Adjudication department of Collectorate of Customs before  
the Customs Appellate Tribunal (CAT).  
  

 The Customs Appellate Tribunal in its order has decided the matter and upheld the earlier decision of 
the Adjudicator for West Collectorate but waived the penalty and fine imposed by the department. 
Aggrieved with the decision of the CAT, the Subsidiary Company preferred an appeal/reference before 
the Honorable High Court of Sindh (the Court). The SHC in its interim order dated July 28, 2022 has 
granted relief to the Company and restrained customs authorities from taking any coercive action 
and directed the Subsidiary Company to furnish bank guarantees in favor of the Collectorate of 
Customs until the final decision of the Court. In this regard, the Subsidiary Company has submitted 
bank guarantees in favor of the Collectorate of Customs aggregating to Rs. 258.48 million (as 
disclosed in note 23.2.1) as at June 30, 2025.  
  

 In another order, the Customs Appellate Tribunal has accepted the contention of the Company in 
other identical cases of imports pertaining to East Collectorate, and set aside the earlier order of the 
Adjudicator in favor of the Subsidiary Company. The department has filed a reference against the 
decision of the CAT with respect to East Collectorate before the Court. 
   
There are now varying decisions of two different benches of the CAT on the same issue in the Court, 
with the most recent judgment being in favor of the Subsidiary Company. Based on the facts of the 
matter and in the light of the opinion of a legal advisor, the Subsidiary Company is confident that the 
final decision of the Court in these matters will be in favor of the Subsidiary Company, and accordingly 
no provision has been maintained by the management in these consolidated financial statements.

22.1 This includes Rs. 566.91 million short-term running finance (including accrued interest of Rs. 19.76 
million) [2024: Rs. 225.72 million, including accrued interest of Rs. 23.13 million] obtained by the Holding 
Company from various commercial banks including short term running finance amounting to Rs. 
112.99 million (2024: Rs. 3.38 million) availed from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated 
company. The total facility limit amounts to Rs. 1,190 million (2024: Rs. 1,240 million). The rate of mark-up 
on these finances ranges from 1 month to 3 months KIBOR plus spreads varying from 0.20% to 0.75% 
(2024: 1 month to 3 months KIBOR plus spreads varying from 0.10% to 0.75%) per annum. The facilities 
are secured by way of first pari passu and ranking hypothecation charge on the Holding Company’s 
stock-in-trade, stores, spares, loose tools and trade debts and will mature latest by March 31, 2026. As 
at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is Rs. 642.85 million (2024: Rs. 1,037.41 million). 
   

22.2 This includes accrued interest on short-term running finance of Rs. 4.45 million (2024: Rs. 22.08 million, 
including accrued interest of Rs. 6.97 million) obtained by the Subsidiary Company from a commercial 
bank. The total facility limit amounts to Rs. 1,000 million (2024: Rs. 1,050 million) and the rate of mark-up 
on these finances ranges from 1 month to 3 months KIBOR plus spreads varying from 0.20% to 1.00% 
(2024: 1 month to 3 months KIBOR plus spreads varying from 0.20% to 1.00%) per annum and are due to 
mature latest by April 30, 2028. The facilities are secured by way of pari passu hypothecation plus 
ranking charge on the Subsidiary Company’s stock-in-trade, stores, spares, loose tools and trade 
debts. As at June 30, 2025, unutilized portion of the facility is Rs 1,000 million (2024: Rs. 1,034.89 million). 
  

22.3 This represents short-term financing facility (Musawamah) of Rs. 144.74 million (including accrued 
profit of Rs. 1.51 million) [2024: Rs. 59.66 million, including accrued profit of Rs. 0.3 million] obtained by 
the Holding Company from an Islamic bank for financing the working capital requirements of the 
Holding Company. The facility has a total limit of Rs. 250 million (2024: Rs. 250 million). These carry 
mark-up at the rate of matching tenure KIBOR + 0.5% per annum. The facility can be drawn and settled 
in tranches with maximum tenure of 180 days. The current drawn amount is payable by November 30, 
2025. The facility is secured by way of first joint pari passu hypothecation charge over present and 
future stock-in-trade and trade debts of the Holding Company with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, 
the unutilised portion of the facility is Rs. 106.76 million (2024: Rs. 190.64 million). 
 

22.4 This includes short-term finance facility (Musawamah) obtained by the Subsidiary Company from an 
Islamic bank for financing the working capital requirements amounting to Nil (2024: Rs. 100.58 million, 
including accrued profit of Rs. 3.89 million). The facility has a total limit of Rs. 200 million (2024: Rs 200 
million). This carry mark-up at the rate of matching tenure KIBOR + 0.5% per annum. The facility can be 
drawn and settled in tranches with maximum tenure of 180 days. The facility is secured by way of first 
joint pari passu hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-trade and trade debts of the 
Company with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is Rs. 200 million 
(2024: Rs. 103.31 million).   

22.5 This represents short-term financing facility (Import Murabaha) obtained by the Holding Company 
from an Islamic bank for financing the working capital requirements of the Holding Company. The 
facility has a total limit of Rs. 250 million (2024: Nil). These carry mark-up at the rate of matching tenure 
KIBOR + 0.17% per annum. The facility can be drawn and settled in tranches with maximum tenure of 
180 days. The current drawn amount is payable by December 10, 2025. The facility is secured by way of 
first joint pari passu hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-trade and trade debts of 
the Holding Company with 25% margin. As at June 30, 2025, the unutilised portion of the facility is Rs. 
159.91 million (2024: Nil).

23.2 Commitments 
23.2.1 Outstanding bank guarantees  819,529  691,529 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024
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23.2.2 This includes bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 445.86 million (2024: Rs. 317.86 million) obtained from 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company.

23.2.3 Outstanding bank guarantees issued to Collector of Customs in respect of custom duty and 
non-deduction of withholding tax amounting to Rs. 265.37 million (2024: Rs. 265.37 million) and Rs. 8.62 
million (2024: Rs. 8.62 million) respectively.  

23.2.4 Commitments in respect of outstanding letter of credit for raw material, stores, spares and loose tools 
amounts to Rs. 970.91 million (2024: Rs. 1,497.96 million), out of which Rs. 84.92 million (2024: Rs.  685.38 
million) is outstanding with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company as at the reporting 
date.   

23.2.5 Commitments in respect of outstanding letter of credits for capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 36.30 
million (2024: Rs. 2.74 million), out of which Rs. 3.28 million (2024: Rs. 2.08 million) is outstanding with 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company as at the reporting date.

24.1 Revenue recognised in local and export sales from amounts included in advance from customers 
(contract liabilities) at the beginning of the year amounted to Rs. 1.82 million and Rs. 5.88 million 
respectively (2024: local sales of Rs. 300 million).

24 TURNOVER – NET     
   

 Gross sales   
 Local sales  13,940,196  10,046,957 
 Export sales 24.2  57,167  28,196 
   13,997,363  10,075,153 
 Less: sales tax  (2,133,928) (1,540,969)
 Revenue from contracts with customers  11,863,435  8,534,184 

24.2 Region wise export sales of the Group are as under:     
 

 United Arab Emirates  43,958  28,196 
 
 South Africa  13,209   -   

25.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 16.58 million (2024: Rs. 15.89 million) in respect of staff retirement 
benefits.

 Manufacturing expenses     
 

 Salaries, wages and benefits 25.1  1,041,597  830,793 
 Stores, spares and loose tools consumed  364,431  295,041 
 Utilities  222,948  195,479 
 Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1  12,650  19,159 
 Royalty  63,174  43,981 
 Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4.2  564,078  549,379 
 Transportation and travelling  210,004  189,818 
 Repairs and maintenance  155,676  122,922 
 Packing material consumed  50,427  47,128 
 Rates and taxes  1,868  1,024 
 Research costs  9,096  2,055 
 Insurance  10,503  8,563 
 Communications and professional fee  5,655  3,727 
 Printing and stationery  2,332  2,187 
 Legal and professional charges  4,615  5,435 
 Others  3,502  7,506 
   2,722,556  2,324,197 
 
 Work-in-process   
      Opening stock  109,009  157,664 
      Closing stock 10 (126,027) (109,009)
   (17,018) 48,655 
 Cost of goods manufactured  10,708,067  8,030,928 
   
 Finished goods  
     Opening stock  107,448  222,184 
     Closing stock 10  (180,179) (107,448)
   (72,731) 114,736 
   10,635,336  8,145,664 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

25 COST OF SALES

 Raw materials consumed   
 Opening stock  1,372,893  2,131,474 
 Purchases  8,586,244  4,899,495 
 Raw materials available for consumption  9,959,137  7,030,969 
 Closing stock 10  (1,956,608) (1,372,893)
   8,002,529  5,658,076 
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28.1 Donation to following parties exceeds 10% of the Group’s total donations or Rs. 1 million, whichever is 
higher:

28.2 None of the donations were made to any donee in which a director or their spouse had any interest at 
any time during the year.

26.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 1.93 million (2024: Rs. 0.7 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

27.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 4.24 million (2024: Rs. 3.48 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

27.2 Auditors' remuneration     
  

 Audit fee for unconsolidated financial statements  2,600  2,000 
 Audit fee for consolidated financial statements  520  400 
 Fee for review of half yearly financial statements  520  400 
 Fee for other certifications  1,267  1,025 
 Sindh sales tax  432  336 
 Out of pocket expenses  491  382 
   5,830  4,543 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

28 OTHER EXPENSES     
   

 Exchange loss on foreign currency transactions - net  39,162  9,299 
 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 19.7  32,356   -   
 Workers’ Welfare Fund 19.8  15,018   -   
 Donations 28.1 & 28.2  3,803  4,028 
 Trade debts written off  840   -   
 Sales tax receivable written off  -    428 
   91,179  13,755 

29 OTHER INCOME       
 Income from financial assets   
 Profit / interest on:   
    - short-term investments - term deposit receipts  7,770  13,485 
    - deposit accounts 29.1  24,315  4,156 
   32,085  17,641 
 Income from non-financial assets   
 Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets  3,971  10,615 
 Liabilities no longer payable - written back  38,029   -   
 Scrap sales  9,020  16,907 
 Rebate on export sales  676   -   
 Miscellaneous income  4,066  3,000 
   55,762  30,522 
   87,847  48,163 

26 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES    
 

 Salaries, wages and benefits  49,197  16,106 
 Advertisement and sales promotion  60,825  44,474 
 Carriage and forwarding  74,429  53,102 
 Travelling and conveyance  7,783  4,805 
 Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4.2  3,383  3,664 
 Depreciation on right-of-use assets 5.2  793  793 
 Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1  241  241 
 Charge for warranty claims 20.1  12,042  9,563 
 Communications  461  139 
 Insurance  3,913  2,995 
 Repairs and maintenance  2,699  1,065 
 Others  2,527  2,928 
   218,293  139,875 

27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES     
  

 Salaries, wages and benefits 27.1  176,993  137,834 
 Legal and professional charges  118,910  96,026 
 Travelling and conveyance  39,238  43,949 
 Repairs and maintenance  39,007  44,033 
 Depreciation on operating fixed assets 4.2  22,762  26,943 
 Depreciation on right-of-use assets 5.2  2,993  1,500 
 Amortisation of intangible assets 6.1  1,446  1,444 
 Security services  14,915  15,573 
 Communications and professional fee  3,413  2,842 
 Printing and stationery  3,471  2,144 
 Rates and taxes  134  202 
 Utilities  2,142  1,671 
 Auditors' remuneration 27.2  5,830  4,543 
 Insurance  2,784  2,776 
 Others  8,300  8,511 
   442,338  389,991 

 Indus Hospital & Health Network  2,000  2,000 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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32.2 The Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company have opted for Group taxation for tax year 2025 
under section 59AA of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. During the year, provision for current taxation is 
based on minimum and final tax regime. Accordingly, the reconciliation between accounting 
profit/(loss) and tax expense has not been presented in these consolidated financial statements. 
  

32.3 This represents super tax charged on the Group's total taxable income for the year ended June 30, 
2025.   
  

32.4 Income tax returns of the Group have been submitted up to tax year 2024 on self-assessment basis 
under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  
 

32.5 Description of income tax proceedings:  
 

(a) During the previous year, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), Large Taxpayers’ Office, 
amended the deemed assessment order of the Holding Company for the tax year 2021. An order was 
passed, resulting in a demand of Rs. 2.23 million, as against refundable balance of Rs. 86.86 million 
claimed in the tax return, on account of incorrect adjustment of minimum tax brought forward u/s 
113(2)(c) amounting to Rs. 78.67 million (including Rs. 22.37 million minimum tax brought forward u/s 
113(2)(c) of the Subsidiary Company) and certain other inadmissible expenses claimed in the said tax 
year's return.    
   
"The Holding Company preferred an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) 
[CIR(A)] against the said order of ACIR. The CIR(A) passed an order dated January 4, 2024 and 
confirmed the order of ACIR. The Holding Company has challenged the decision of CIR(A) before the 
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is yet to be fixed for hearing. 

 During the current year, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated May 2, 2025, has 
decided the matter of minimum tax carried forward adjustment prior to TY 2022 in favour of the tax 
department. Accordingly, the management has recorded a provision for the above minimum tax 
adjustment amounting to Rs. 78.67 million in these consolidated financial statements." 

(b) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an order under section 4B of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 (‘the Ordinance’) for the tax year 2017 raising a demand of Rs. 34.45 million taking into 
consideration the group income without appreciating that the subsidiary of the Subsidiary Company 
was allowed a tax credit under section 65D of the Ordinance. The Holding Company has preferred an 
appeal before the CIR(A) against the order of DCIR who partially confirmed the action of DCIR and 
gave relief on certain grounds. The Holding Company, has challenged the order of CIR(A) before ATIR 
which is yet to be fixed for hearing. The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has not 
recorded any provision in respect of this matter in these consolidated financial statements as they 
believe that the matter will be decided in their favour.

33 EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE – basic and diluted  
   
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Group, which is based on:

29.1 This represents interest earned from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - associated company, under 
conventional banking relationships.

31.1 This represents minimum and final tax paid under section 113 and 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001, representing levy in terms of the requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37.

32.1 Reconciliation of current tax charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss, is as follows:

30 FINANCE COSTS     
   

 Interest / profit on:   
 - long-term financings  75,328  78,336 
 - short-term finances  129,103  133,633 
 - lease liabilities  1,516  177 
 Bank charges and commission  9,173  3,732 
 Amortisation of deferred income 18.1  (4,902) (8,156)
   210,218  207,722 
  
31 LEVIES (MINIMUM TAX AND FINAL TAX)     

   
 Minimum tax u/s 113 31.1  147,682  106,306 
 Final tax u/s 154  -    282 
 Prior  -    (37)
   147,682  106,551 

32 TAXATION     
  

 Current tax - expense   
 For the year  38,841   -   
 Prior  3,195   -   
   42,036   -   
 Deferred tax - income  (74,124) (73,709)
   (32,088) (73,709)

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

 Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws  189,718  106,551 
 Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing
     income tax under IAS 12   42,036   -   
 Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws, representing
     levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37   147,682  106,551 
 Difference   -     -   

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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 Profit / (loss) for the year (Rs. in '000)  238,324  (347,502)
   
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares in '000)  36,000  36,000 
   
 Earning / (loss) per share (Rs.)  6.62  (9.65)

2025 2024

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS     
  

 Profit / (loss) before income tax  206,236  (421,211)
    
 Adjustments for:     

 Depreciation and amortisation 4.2, 5.2 & 6.1  608,346  603,123 
    Levies (minimum tax and final tax) 31  147,682   106,551 
    Finance costs 30  201,045   207,722 
    Sales tax receivable written off 28  -    428 
    Trade debts written off 28  840   -   
    Liabilities no longer payable - written back 29  (38,029)  -   
    Profit / interest on short-term investments - 
         term deposit receipts 29  (7,770) (13,485)
    Profit / interest on deposit accounts 29  (24,315) (4,156)
    Charge for warranty claims 20.1  12,042  9,563 
    Provision for royalty 19.3  63,174  43,981 
    (Reversal) / provision for obsolescence  (163,663) 48,727 
    Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 29  (3,971) (10,615)
   795,381  991,839 
   1,001,617  570,628 
 
 Decrease / (increase) in current assets 
    Stores, spares and loose tools  1,260  (17,681)
    Stock-in-trade  (942,442) 474,231 
    Trade debts  (141,694) (416,614)
    Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables  (16,615) 140,341 
    Sales tax receivable  (9,905) 146,694 
   (1,109,396) 326,971 
 Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities   
    Trade and other payables  622,889  (244,673)
   515,110  652,926

35 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   
 Cash and bank balances 14 178,071  171,098 
 Short-term running finances 22  (571,631) (247,806)
   (393,560) (76,708)

36 CHANGES IN LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 As at July 1  622,493   33,932  2,480 
    
 Changes from financing cash flows     

Unclaimed dividends paid during the year 21  -    (231) -   
 Payments made during the year 16.1  -    -    (4,564)
 Long-term financing repaid during the year 17.5 (195,101)  -    -   
    (195,101) (231) (4,564)
      

Other changes     
Addition of lease during the year 16.1  -     -    8,980 

 Amortisation of deferred income during the year 18.1 (4,902)  -    -   
 Finance costs charged during the year          16.1 & 17.5 75,328   -    1,516 
   70,426  -    10,496 
 As at June 30  497,818   33,701  8,412 

---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------

2025
Long-term 
financing - 

secured 
(including 

deferred income)

Unclaimed 
and unpaid 

dividend
Lease

liabilities

 As at July 1  807,126  34,414  3,387      
 Changes from financing cash flows    

Unclaimed dividends paid during the year 21  -    (482) -   
 Payments made during the year 16.1  -     -    (3,447)
 Long-term financings repaid during the year 17.5  (319,270)  -    -   
   (319,270)  (482) (3,447)
 Other changes     

Addition of lease during the year 16.1  -     -    2,363 
 Amortisation of deferred income during the year 18.1  (8,156) -    -   
 Finance costs charged during the year 16.1 & 17.5 142,793   -    177 
      

  134,637   -     2,540 
 
 As at June 30  622,493   33,932   2,480 

----------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
Note

2024
Long-term 
financing - 

secured 
(including 

deferred income)

Unclaimed 
and unpaid 

dividend
Lease

liabilities

Note
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37.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  
    
 The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risks, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are 
summarised below:   

37.2.1 Market risk   
    
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due 
to changes in market variables. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate 
risk and other price risk. The Group manages its market risk by monitoring exposure on financial 
instruments and by following internal risk management policies.  
 

(i) Interest rate risk   
    
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of change in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of change in market 
interest rate relates primarily to the Group's liability against long-term financings and short-term 
finances with floating interest rates. The Group manages its risk by ensuring minimal utilisation of 
interest bearing financings.   
   

 Interest rate profile of financial instruments  
    
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments were 
as follows:

 Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments  
    
 A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rate at the reporting date would have changed the Group's 
profit / (loss) before tax for the year by the amounts shown below, with all other variables held 
constant.

(ii) Foreign currency risk   
    
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to a change in 
foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in 
foreign currencies. The Group manages its foreign currency risk through taking adequate cover, if any, 
in accordance with its approved risk management policy. The Group's exposure to foreign currency 
risk at the reporting date is as follows:

 Sensitivity analysis   
    
 The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  

37.1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY     
  

 Financial assets at amortised cost  
 Long-term deposits 7  19,918  19,675 
 Trade debts - unsecured 11  1,289,047  1,148,235 
 Deposits and other receivables 12  381,145  345,185 
 Short-term investments 13 75,347  77,056 
 Cash and bank balances 14  178,071  171,098 
   1,943,528  1,761,249 
    
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost   
 Lease liabilities 16  8,412  2,480 
 Long-term financings - secured 17  472,891  592,664 
 Trade and other payables 19  804,473  468,699 
 Unpaid dividend 21  -    3,819 
 Unclaimed dividend 21 33,701  30,113 
 Short-term finances - secured 22  806,932  464,064 
   2,126,409  1,561,839 

 Financial assets at amortised cost  
 
 Short-term investments 13  75,347  77,056 
 Bank balances 14  148,295  113,122 
   223,642  190,178 
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost     

 
 Lease liabilities 16  8,412  2,480 
 Long-term financings - secured 17  472,891  592,664 
 Short-term finances - secured 22  806,932  464,064 
   1,288,235  1,059,208 

 Effect of 1% increase in interest rate on profit / (loss) before tax   (10,646) (8,690)
 Effect of 1% decrease in interest rate on profit / (loss) before tax  10,646  8,690 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

 USD  
 Trade and other payables  1,522  808 
 JPY   
 Trade and other payables  41,716  4,164 
 CNY 
 Trade and other payables  956  1,643 

-----(FCY in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

(Decrease) / Increase 
 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note -----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

Note
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 A ten percent strengthening / weakening of the Pakistani Rupee against the above foreign currencies 
at the reporting date would increase / decrease profit / (loss) before tax for the year by Rs. 55.19 million 
(2024: Rs. 29.50 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, 
remain constant.   

(iii) Other price risk   
    
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from foreign currency risk and 
interest risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instruments, or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As at 
June 30, 2025, the Group is not exposed to the price risk.  
 

37.2.2 Credit risk   
    
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  
    
 The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly on trade debts, short-term investments, long-term deposits, 
short-term deposits, other receivables and bank balances.

 The credit quality of financial assets other than bank balances and short-term investments can be 
assessed with reference to their historical performance with no write-offs in recent history. The ageing 
analysis of trade debts is given in note 11.1.  
    
 The credit quality of the Group’s bank balances and short-term investments can be assessed with 
reference to external credit ratings as follows:

 For trade debts, long-term deposits, short-term deposits and other receivables, the internal risk 
assessment process determines the credit quality of each counter party, taking into account their 
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or 
external ratings in accordance with limits set by management. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly 
monitored. Accordingly, the management believes that the credit risk is minimal and in the opinion of 
the management, the Group is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 
   

37.2.3 Liquidity risk   
    
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial instruments. Management of the Group believes that it is not exposed to any 
significant level of liquidity risk.  
    
 Management forecasts the liquidity of the Group on the basis of expected cashflow considering the 
level of liquid assets necessary to mitigate the liquidity risk. The table below summarises the maturity 
profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the financial reporting date:

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date
    is as follows:     

 
 Long-term deposits 7  19,918  19,675 
 Trade debts - unsecured 11 1,289,047  1,148,235 
 Deposits and other receivables 12 381,145  345,185 
 Short-term investments 13  75,347  77,056 
 Bank balances 14  177,979  170,990 
   1,943,436  1,761,141 

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

USD  283.76   278.34   279.36   283.17 
JPY  1.97   1.73   1.87   1.89 
EUR  332.66   297.69   304.01   306.00 
CNY  39.60  38.31   38.72   39.23 
AED  77.27   75.78   76.06   77.10 

2025 202420242025

Statement of financial
position date rate Average rate ----(Rupees in ‘000)----

2025 2024

Faysal Bank Limited 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 
Habib Bank Limited 
National Bank of Pakistan 
Meezan Bank Limited 
Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan 
Limited United Bank Limited 
Bank Al-Habib Limited 
The Bank of Punjab Limited 
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited

PACRA
PACRA

VIS
PACRA

VIS
PACRA

VIS
PACRA
PACRA

VIS

 -   
 113,122 
 77,756 

 1,409 
 2,849 

 50,578 
 20 
 30 

 1,264 
 1,018 

 20,901 
 148,286 

 76,087 
 1,902 
 1,064 

 932 
 525 

 2,069 
 1,541 

 18 

Bank RatingAgency

A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+
A-1+

Rating 

 Non-interest bearing        
financial liabilities       
Trade and other payables 804,473   -     804,473   -    04,473 

 Unclaimed dividend  33,701   33,701   -     -     33,701 
 
 Interest bearing        

financial liabilities       
Lease liabilities 8,412   -     4,374   5,017  9,391 

 Long-term financings 472,891   -     174,526   375,283  549,809 
 Short-term finances 806,932   571,631   244,162   -    815,793 
  2,126,409   605,332   1,227,535   380,300   2,213,167 

-------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------

 Total 2025
Contractual cashflows

Carrying 
amount  On 

demand 
 Not later than

 one year 
 Later than
 one year 

Note
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38 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT   
    
 The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong 
credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its 
existing and potential investment projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of 
capital. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. As of the 
consolidated statement of financial position date, the debt to equity ratio is as follows:

39 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT   
    
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current 
market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique.

" The different levels of fair valuation method have been defined as follows: 
    
 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
    
 Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 
    
 Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

 As of the reporting date, the Group does not have any financial assets carried at fair value that 
required categorisation in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.  
  

40 SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE  
    
 In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 
vide SRO 1278(I) / 2024 dated August 15, 2024. The Group has disclosed its assets, liabilities, income and 
expenditure related to financing, investments and other income/expenses etc. between shariah and 
conventional elements as follows:

41 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 
   

41.1 The aggregate amount charged in the consolidated financial statements for remuneration including 
certain benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Group are as follows: 

40.1 Other disclosure requirements

40.1.1 The Group has facilities with islamic banks for short term finances (i..e: Istisna / Musawamah / Tijarah / 
Murabaha / Musharika), letter of guarantee, letter of credit amounting to Rs. 3,200 million, Rs. 650 million 
and Rs. 900 million respectively.

40.1.2 The Group has no insurance relationships with takaful operators.  
    
    
    

 Debt  1,313,162  1,089,037 
   
 Equity  6,052,567  5,814,243    
 Gearing ratio  21.70% 18.73%

-----(Rupees in ‘000)-----
2025 2024

-------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------

--------(Rupees in ‘000)-------- -------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

-----------------(Rupees in ‘000)-------------------

 Total 

 Non-interest bearing    
 financial liabilities  
 Trade and other payables 468,699  -     468,699   -    468,699 
 Unpaid dividend 3,819   3,819   -     -    3,819 
 Unclaimed dividend 30,113   30,113   -     -    30,113 
        

Interest bearing        
financial liabilities       
Lease liabilities 2,480   -     977   2,256  3,233 

 Long-term financings 592,664   -     164,564   549,809  714,373 
 Short-term finances 464,064   247,806   219,757   -    467,563 
  1,561,839   281,738   853,997   552,065  1,687,800 

2024
Contractual cashflows

Carrying 
amount  On 

demand 
 Not later than

 one year 
 Later than
 one year 

Conventional Shariah 
compliant

Total Conventional Shariah 
compliant

Total

Statement of Financial Position - Asset

Short-term investments 13 75,347 -            75,347 77,056 -          77,056
Bank balances 14 155,996 21,983 177,979 167,123 3,867 170,990
Accrued profit / interest on bank balances 12 2,666 -            2,666 5,286 -          5,286

Statement of Financial Position - Liability
Lease liability 16 -            8,412 8,412 -            2,480 2,480
Long-term financings - secured 17 472,891 -            472,891 592,664 -          592,664
Short-term finances - secured 22 571,360 235,572 806,932 247,806 216,258 464,064

Statement of Profit or Loss 
Turnover - net 24 -            11,863,435 11,863,435 -            8,534,184 8,534,184
Prof it / interest on:
  - short-term investments - term deposit receipts 29 7,770 -            7,770 13,485 -          13,485
  - deposit accounts 29 24,315 -            24,315 4,156 -          4,156
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 29 -            3,971 3,971 -            10,615 10,615
Scrap sales 29 -            9,020 9,020 -            16,907 16,907
Liabilities no longer payable - w ritten back 29 -            38,029 38,029 -            -          -          
Rebate on export sales 29 -            676 676 -            -          -

         
 

Miscellaneous income 29 4,053 13 4,066 -            3,000 3,000
Exchange loss on foreign currency 

transactions - net 28 -            (39,162) (39,162) -            (9,299) (9,299)
Finance costs 30 186,638 23,580 210,218 193,960 13,762 207,722

2025 2024

 Managerial remuneration 41,380   234,983   35,983  161,562 
 Bonus 10,086   38,577   7,096  24,389 
 Retirement benefits 3,026   10,074   2,631  8,381 
 Utilities 654  1,741   654  661 
 Medical expenses 16   4,197  9  2,628 
  55,162   289,572   46,373  197,621 
       

Number of persons 1   52   1  28 

Chief 
Executive Executives

2025
Chief 

Executive Executives

2024

Note

172 Agriauto Industries Limited Annual Report 2025 173



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025  
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     

41.2 The Chief Executive and certain executives of the Group have been provided with Group maintained 
vehicles in accordance with the Group's policy.

41.3 Five (2024: Six) non-executive directors of the Group have been paid fees of Rs. 3.27 million (2024: Rs. 4 
million) for attending Board and other committee meetings.

42 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

42.1 The associated undertakings and related parties of the Group comprises of the companies with 
common directorship, retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. The Group 
considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and directors as key 
management personnels. All the transactions with associated undertakings and related parties are 
entered into at agreed terms in the normal course of business as approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Group. 

42.2 Detail of transactions with associated undertakings and related parties during the year, other than 
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

42.3 The outstanding balances with related parties as at reporting date have been disclosed in the 
respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.

42.4 Details of compensation to the key management personnel have been disclosed in the note 41 to the 
consolidated financial statements.

43 PRODUCTION CAPACITY

 The production capacity of the Group cannot be determined as this depends on the relative 
proportions of various types of vehicles and agricultural tractors produced by Original Equipment 
Manufacturers (OEMs). 

45 OPERATING SEGMENTS

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable 
segment.

 All sales of the Group comprise of sale of components for automotive vehicles, motor cycles and 
agricultural tractors.

 All non-current assets of the Group at the end of the current and preceding year were located in 
Pakistan.

 Three (2024: three) of the Group’s customers contributed Rs. 9,436.84 million (2024: Rs. 6,791.94 million) 
into Group's revenue and each customer individually exceeded 10% of the total revenue.

46 UNUTILISED CREDIT FACILITIES 

 As of reporting date, the Group has unutilised facilities for letter of credit, bonds and guarantees and 
terms of loan available from various banks amounted to Rs. 6,024.23 million (2024: Rs. 6,111.55 million). 
The facilities are secured by way of lien on import documents and pari passu ranking hypothecation 
charge on the Group’s specific fixed assets, stock-in-trade, stores, spares, loose tools and trade debts.

47 NON ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

 The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in their meeting held on August 28, 2025 proposed 
annual cash dividend of Rs. 1.75 per share (2024: Nil) for the year ended June 30, 2025 amounting to Rs. 
63 million (2024: Nil) for the approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting of the Holding 
Company to be held on October 20, 2025.

48 GENERAL

48.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

48.2 Corresponding figures (including the following) have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, to reflect 
more appropriate presentation of events and transactions for the purposes of comparison

49 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE  
 

 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on August 28, 2025 by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company.

44 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES    
  

 Total number of employees as at June 30  941  941 
    
 Average number of employees during the year  941  960 

2025 2024

----(Rupees in ‘000)----

Name of related 
party and relationship 

with the Group

Nature of 
transactions

Percentage 
of share 

holding in 
the Holding 
Company

2025 2024

%

(Common directorship)

Interest expense Nil 23,705           35,501                            
Profit earned on deposit accounts 2,499             3,406             
Bank charges 10,918           5,213             
Guarantee issued 128,000         30,000 

Auvitronics Limited Sale of goods Nil - 375                 

Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Purchase of goods Nil - 6,797            
 Limited

Thal Boshoku Pakistan Sale of goods Nil 81,503 26,091          
 (Private) Limited

Employees’ Provident Funds Contributions made during the year Nil 25,802           23,172           

Reimbursement of travelling and 
boarding charges to a Director Nil - 2,521            

 

Retirement benefit funds

Associated companies 

Habib Metropolitan Bank 
Limited

Key management personnel

Description of item Nature  Rupees in '000 From To

Raw material Asset           31,440 Raw material Work-in process

DIRECTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

Size of Shareholding

From To
Total Shares Held No. of Shareholders

 1,682 
 913 
 367 
 439 

 92 
 33 
 17 
 9 
 12 
 9 
 9 
 3 
 4 
 4 
 4 
 5 
 3 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 

 3 
 2 
 1 

 3 
 2 
 2 
 1 

 2 
 3 
 2 
 1 
 1 
 1 

 4 
 2 
 1 

 2 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 

 5 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 

 4 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1

 3,668 

1
101

501
1001

5001
10001
15001

20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
50001
55001
60001
65001
70001
75001
80001
85001
90001
95001

100001
105001
115001

120001
135001
140001
145001
150001
160001
165001
170001
180001
185001
195001
200001
220001
235001
245001
325001
330001
410001

450001
475001
500001
530001
620001
655001
720001
745001

1245001
1560001
2105001

2640001
7400001

100
500

1000
5000

10000
15000

20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
70000
75000
80000
85000
90000
95000

100000
105000
110000

120000
125000
140000
145000
150000
155000
165000
170000
175000
185000
190000
200000
205000
225000
240000
250000
330000
335000
415000

455000
480000
505000
535000
625000
660000
725000
750000

1250000
1565000
2110000

2645000
7405000

 44,922 
 229,981 
 279,493 
 964,483 
 672,057 
 420,022 
 303,127 
 201,197 

 346,047 
 295,623 
 342,820 
 126,594 
 192,447 

 209,025 
 235,112 

 313,622 
 202,665 

 71,950 
 75,750 
 82,541 
 89,218 

 283,603 
 195,926 
 101,833 

 322,826 
 236,650 
 247,952 
 136,032 

 283,042 
 443,855 
 307,380 
 163,000 
 167,281 

 175,000 
 730,369 
 376,263 
 200,000 
 406,963 
 220,750 
 239,576 
 250,000 
 327,500 
 332,375 
 412,150

2,264,654 
 475,996 
 502,515 
 531,250 

 625,000 
 657,032 
 720,406 

3,000,000 
 1,246,275 
 1,560,173 

 2,108,750 
 2,644,500 
 7,404,427 

36,000,00

Categories of Shareholders
S.

No.
No. of Shares

Held

Category-wise
No.of Folios /

CDC Accounts

Percentage
(%)

Category-wise
Shares

Held

1
2
3
4

5
6

7
8

9

10 Foreign Investors

Individuals
Investment Companies
Joint Stock Companies
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Their Spouse and 
   Minor Children
Yutaka Arae
Fahim Kapadia
Hamza Habib
Sohail P. Ahmed
Muhammad Salman Burney
Aqueel E. Merchant
Ayesha T. Haq
Executives
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
Thal Limited
Public Sector Companies and Corporations
Banks, DFI's , NBFIs, Insurance Companies, Takaful, 
   Modarabas and Pension Funds
Financial Institutions
Insurance Companies
Modaraba
Pension Funds
Mutual Funds
Golden Arrow Stock Fund 
CDC - Trustee APIF - Equity Sub Fund
CDC - Trustee NBP Stock Fund
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund
CDC - Trustee NIT-Equity Market Opportunity Fund
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Stock Fund
CDC - Trustee NITIPF Equity Sub-Fund

 1,250 
 3,750 
 1,250 
 1,250 
 1,250 
 1,000 
 1,250 

 -   

 
2,142,070 
 287,353 

 125 
 164,096 

 1,250 
 21,917 

 13,750 
 1,750 
 3,125 

 1,246,275 
 250 

 3,750 

 3,573 
 3 

 28 
 7 

 -   
1

 -   
16

8

 12,599,400 
 6,161 

 1,413,924 
 11,000 

 -   
 2,644,500 

 -   
 2,593,644 

 
1,292,067 

 35.00 
 0.02 
 3.93 
 0.03 

 
-   

 7.35 
 -   
 -   

7.20

3.59

19  15,207,958  42.24
11 Co-Operative Societies 3  2,427  0.01
12 Charitable Trust 1  31  0.00
13 Others 9 228,888  0.64

TOTAL   3,668  36,000,000  100.00

Name of Shareholder (s) No. of Shares
Held

Percentage
(%)

Thal Limited  2,644,500 Falls in Category # 6 7.35
National Bank of Pakistan 2,136,917 Falls in Category # 8 5.94
Robert Finance Corporation, AG. 8,964,600 Falls in Category # 10 24.90

Shareholders holding Five (5) Percent or more Voting Interest in the Company

Description
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Sustainability in Action,
Responsibility at Heart
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ETP Plant
The Company established an Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP) at its 
Hub facility to treat hazardous chemicals, ensuring that only 
non-toxic water is discharged into the drainage system.

Solar Plant
The Group established a 2 MW solar power facility to reduce 
reliance on non-renewable energy, supplemented by an 
additional 0.5 MW facility. 

Corporate Social Responsibility
Corporate social responsibility is embedded in to the Company’s 
core business strategy. The Company continues to spend 1% of its 
PBT over community welfare and development initiatives. 

Beach Cleaning Activity 
Our employees participated in beach cleaning activity at Sea 
View, Karachi on February 9, 2025.
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Form of Proxy

I/W

1.

2.

3.

e 
of                                                                               in the district of
being a member of Agriauto Industries Limited and holder of 
                                                                                                                                              Ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio 
(No. of Shares) 
No.                                                                                                and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. 
And Sub. Account No.                                                                     hereby appoint 
of                                                                                                              in the district of 
or failing him/ her                      of 
who is/are also member/s of Agriauto Industries Limited as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my /our behalf
at the 44rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 20, 2025 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this                                    day of                                      2025.

Folio No. CDC Participant ID
No.

CDC Account/Sub
Account No. No. of Shares held

Signature

The signature should agree
with specimen registered

with the Company.

WITNESS 1

Signature

Name

CNIC/Passport No.

Address

WITNESS 2

Signature

Name

CNIC/Passport No.

Address

This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company or Share Registrar of the Company,
not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
No person shall act as proxy unless he /she himself /herself is a member of the Company, except that a corporation may appoint a person
who is not a member.
If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the Company, all
such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

Note:

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities:

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
ii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
iii) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.
iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless

it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

The Secretary
Agriauto Industries Limited
House of Habib, 5th Floor
Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi-75350
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